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TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

(B 1558550 - B &8 T RE)

(In HK$ million unless otherwise specified)

HER

E7

EM X

< %uﬁn M (Kes)

AR &8 M R (B aE5)

AR RER SN (B i25)

Sales

Gross profit

Gross margin

Operating profit (Note 5)

Operating margin (Note 5)

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company (Note 5)
Return on sales (Note 5)

S B R K (B 225)

Re RIBITEFRIBITER
LiEBE® (Wats)

B EBEE (K iE5)

B E@EE (K it5)

Cash and bank balances less bank loans
Working capital (Note 5)

Total assets (Note 5)

Total liabilities (Note 5)

FREN-EXCEW)
SR HRR S OB L)
R RIR HRE OB L)
BERCRERE CEAL)
BRI RS CElL)

Earnings per share — Basic (HK cents)
Interim dividend per share (HK cents)
Special interim dividend per share (HK cents)
Final dividend per share (HK cents)

Special final dividend per share (HK cents)

FIHEERBOREK (fiL5)
PR R B BR PG #E ek B R (f74E5)

FEERAZRELE(BE) (HE1)
mEN X (B8 (K1:25)

Return on average total assets (Note 5)

Return on average equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company (Note 5)

Inventory turnover on costs (days) (Note 1)

Current ratio (times) (Note 5)

mEmBERmE B (7:/&)
m@%%

Number of shares outstanding (in thousands)
Market capitalization

FIm &8 (Bit2)

Number of stores (Note 2)

SERBA ﬂ %EZE Directly operated stores operated by Group’s subsidiaries
EENBAREEZ NBE Franchised stores operated by Group’s subsidiaries
EENBAREENMAR Stores operated by Group’s subsidiaries total
FEEWB AR EEMTBE(HZ3) Stores operated by non-Group’s subsidiaries total (Note 3)
2RI B Total stores worldwide
it - Notes:
1. FEAZFEBRZFHEKRFLFRHE 1. Inventory held at year end divided by cost of sales and multiplied by number of days
in the year

2. FRAHF

3. HBEHEEERA WHEEEERERHAE 2011
FRIUFIFR) ~ FEAFRAFEE (2015 R L FTF &) K

EoEHAEEREEZ BT

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

2. Figures as at year end

3. Stores in markets operated by a joint venture in South Korea, UAE and Saudi Arabia

(prior to year 2011), Kuwait and Qatar (prior to year 2015), and third-party franchisees
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TFHMBRRIERE
TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
5,145 5,381 5,545 5,848 5,673 5,614 4,731 4,233 5,048 4,950
3,055 3,097 3,214 3,551 3,331 3,283 2,731 2,175 2,439 2,357
59.4% 57.6% 58.0% 60.7% 58.7% 58.5% 57.7% 51.4% 48.3% 47.6%
568 556 542 828 1,005 909 695 320 325 384
11.0% 10.3% 9.8% 14.2% 17.7% 16.2% 14.7% 7.6% 6.4% 7.8%
434 426 408 663 826 728 537 288 311 295
8.4% 7.9% 7.4% 11.3% 14.6% 13.0% 11.4% 6.8% 6.2% 6.0%
1,095 1,076 915 1,105 1,173 1,209 978 750 454 474
1,410 1,405 1,401 1,616 1,655 1,658 1,385 1,047 742 736
4,114 3,847 3,857 4,469 4,605 3,822 3,320 2,810 2,557 2,935
1,147 881 773 1,220 1,452 1,001 827 624 651 909
27.70 27.10 26.00 42.60 53.80 48.20 36.00 19.30 20.80 19.80
12.50 12.50 10.50 16.00 15.00 15.00 4.50 2.00 4.50 4.50
- - - - - - 4.00 - 2.00 2.00
15.00 14.50 14.50 24.00 25.00 23.00 7.00 7.00 3.00 5.00
- - - - - - 11.50 7.00 - 10.00
12.2% 11.5% 11.0% 16.1% 21.1% 21.8% 18.5% 11.1% 11.5% 10.3%
15.2% 14.5% 13.8% 21.8% 28.8% 28.3% 23.7% 14.5% 16.4% 15.1%
78 78 80 82 74 95 74 52 42 62
2.4 2.9 3.1 2.6 2.3 2.8 2.9 3.0 2.3 1.9
1,670,953 1,570,395 1,569,913 1,566,837 1,543,709 1,521,291 1,496,069 1,491,647 1,491,647 1,491,513
6,582 5,701 5,400 10,858 11,501 8,565 6,777 3,431 2,909 5,578
1,364 1,385 1,451 1,499 1,449 1,232 1,052 1,015 1,036 1,000
603 570 559 694 758 838 748 602 512 482
1,967 1,955 2,010 2,193 2,207 2,070 1,800 1,617 1,548 1,482
430 416 442 449 441 601 553 497 458 413
2,397 2,371 2,452 2,642 2,648 2,671 2,353 2,114 2,006 1,895
4. 2008% i EPlacita: 4. Disposal of Placita in 2008:
F2008% » 5% [ ] & B F Z L K FE B 2 AlPlacita In 2008, the Group disposed of its principal garment manufacturing subsidiary Placita
Holdings Ltd ([ Placita) ° 7% FET & #5Placita.> 20085 #& Holdings Ltd (“Placita”). The Group’s 2008 results excluding Placita are summarized
AEAELT - below:
(B HRIZFBEs), - U B EETAEN) (In HK$ million unless otherwise specified) 2008
HERE Sales 4,710
EF Gross profit 2,362
EFIE Gross margin 50.1%
AR & w Operating profit 330
AR & FE Operating margin 7.0%
KR AR N 5 T Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company 290
HE B #E Return on sales 6.2%
5. 2013FLUFIZ B F W K FRAEE S 5ER19[ 1ES 457 5. The adoption impact of HKAS 19 “Employee benefits” are not reflected in the years

7 1E ] 75 2
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”), | am
pleased to present the annual results of Giordano International Limited
(the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year
ended December 31, 2016.

In 2016, the Group’s profit attributable to shareholders amounted to
HK$434 million, a 2% increase over 2015. While consolidated sales
decreased by 4%, consolidated gross profit recorded a minor decrease
of 1%, attributable to the improvement in gross profit margin by 1.8
percentage points from 57.6% to 59.4%. This was due primarily to
our ongoing pricing discipline and increased sales contribution from
regions with higher margin. Comparable store sales were flat year-on-
year while comparable store gross profit was up by 2%. The Board
has approved a total dividend of 27.5 HK cents per share, in line with
our longstanding policy of returning surplus cash to shareholders. A
thorough discussion and analysis of the 2016 operating results and
financial position is provided by management in this annual report.

In the Chairman’s Statement of the 2015 annual report, | emphasized
that the Company was both aware of and prepared for the difficult
times that lay ahead. The challenging and unpredictable conditions
across our key operating regions will likely persist in the coming year.
In 2016 we were steadfast in building core competences, such as
supply chain management, quality assurance and the execution of our
strategies. These efforts have helped us successfully counteract the
adverse market conditions. We will continue to adopt and refine this
approach in the coming year.

While our overall strategy remains one of concentric diversification
based on solid foundation, we will continue to enhance our digital
strategy and cautious geographical expansion.

Our digital strategy has been and will continue to be increasingly
important. With the rapid development of smart phones and online
retail platforms serving as both a source for necessities as well as a
form of entertainment in mature and emerging markets alike, we will
continue to work on our digital and physical shopping experiences for
customers, enhancing our existing platforms while at the same time
exploring additional online and mobile retail channels. We will allocate
more resources to our digital strategy including fulfillment capability.

In Mainland China and the Middle East, we will continue to employ
market-specific expansion strategies. While at the same time adopt
market-penetration strategies in the South Asian sub-continent, Africa
and other emerging markets.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F #
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What will not change is our ongoing pursuit of operational excellence.
Through the execution of our inventory management, we will continue
to improve the acceptance and consistency of our overall product
range across all brands. This will also serve as the bedrock of our
branding strategy — strong fundamentals will serve as a foundation for
quality marketing. We will continue our initiatives to introduce lines with
higher quality and price points fitting the more discerning customers
while keeping our core items at competitive prices. We will roll-out
quality marketing campaigns in various regions to reinforce our global
brand position while at the same time continue to improve the shopping
experience we offer to our customers.

People are our most valuable asset and we will continue to invest in our
talent. | remain committed towards attracting and retaining talent at all
levels of the Company’s business and, having strengthened our global
human resources team, we have now completed the second intake of
our improved Fast Track Management Trainee Scheme, which we also
aim to roll-out in Mainland China in the coming year, as well as refined
our internal talent identification and promotion mechanism.

We will also strive to continue generating healthy cash flow and
to create value for our shareholders. While there continues to be
widespread uncertainty over the global economy, there remains a
feeling of cautious optimism within the Company.

It is therefore more important than ever that we engage and
communicate with our shareholders, stakeholders and the public at
large. As such, we will continue to observe the highest standards of
transparency and social responsibility. In this annual report, you will find
the Company’s first standalone Environmental, Social and Governance
Report which details policies and how the Company deals with any
operational risks and any implications for the environment and the wider
society. On the environmental front, aspects covered include emissions
and use of resources, while social issues comprise employment, health
and safety, training and development, labour standards, supply chain
management, product responsibility, anti-corruption and community
investment.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank our supportive
shareholders, valuable business partners and loyal staff for sharing
your Company’s beliefs and for your continuous support. In particular,
I would like to thank both the Board and our employees for their
devotion and hard work throughout the year. Together with my senior
management team and all of our employees around the world, we
will continue to strive to develop the Group’s business and to deliver
shareholder value.

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
Chairman and Chief Executive
March 9, 2017

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF GROUP RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

BIERITHE - LA TRt IEE E20164F %2015  The following commentaries refer to year-on-year (“YOY”) comparison

FI2A3THEFEZIRF([IRF]) LLE of the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 unless otherwise
stated.

e OVERVIEW

B REFAEBRMRETZTER HAZZ % W The Group is an international apparel retailer with a portfolio of

12 - 8 ¥& & B Giordano & Giordano Junior
Giordano Ladies ~ BSX « AR &N @he
MREGEEZIEEEE=Fmh -

R2016F12A31H » RPN EIFEEREE N
2,397 P9 (A& 72,318,600 5 R E & 22

fal) - 1,254 ABMPA™ - BRZH™
R ARFERE - B9 R KPR - M
R R OHEETIEMMAS - FIEE
AREHEEZEEZHELRAPE Z NBEES

4% MzEe 2 TEEMMNFRIE 6% o

HZE2016F12A31B LFEzAMHEEm £ 1
5145187870 - EFIE B59.4% - NEE A b
RFMEM B R2% (EHEMRBEAR) - M
AREB A LRI ERE QI F o

AN B AR R R A B4.34 B T - u
e MIRITETFEA1095EB T - u
AEEBEEEAGHET DEALEEEYTEER

HWRTAMEIE 2 AL B S5 -

AEBMALBRPITHER A LBRMITENEREREE 2
EIE - MBERARABE2AKLEZAHMBARTZESR
mIRHE EF AT  REEERH -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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brands, including proprietary Giordano and Giordano Junior,
Giordano Ladies, BSX, other less significant brands and non-
proprietary third party brands under license.

We operated 2,397 stores (equivalent to 2,318,600 sq. ft. of retail
floor space) in over 30 countries as at December 31, 2016, of
which 1,254 were standalone stores. The majority of stores were
in Greater China, South Korea, South East Asia and the Middle
East. We manage our store portfolio by geographic region and by
distribution channel. We target to expand our footprint in South
East Asia and franchise network in China, and the retail floor space
from these regions increased by 6% as at year-end.

Consolidated sales' for the year ended December 31, 2016
were HK$5,145 million. Gross profit margin was 59.4%. Group
comparable store gross profit? (“Group CSGP”) (measures
subsidiaries only) was up by 2% despite flat Group comparable
store sales? (“Group CSS”).

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company (“PATS”) was
HK$434 million.

Net cash and bank balances were HK$1,095 million.

Group sales refer to consolidated sales and include retail sales from directly operated
stores and wholesale Sales to all franchisees.

Group CSS/CSGP are total Giordano brand sales/gross profit of consolidated

subsidiaries, at constant currency rates, from existing directly-operated stores and
franchised stores that have been fully operating in the same prior period

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F #
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

®1:Mm4As Table 1: Store portfolio
ZEEH
Retail floor space
MmEA (F¥EHFR)
Store numbers (sq.ft. in thousand)
M12A31H MW12A31H
at December 31 at December 31
2016 2015 2016 2015
TERDHE Retail and Distribution
e N Mainland China
HEE Direct-operated stores 357 374 300 330
g g Franchised stores 562 517 453 418
BB KR Hong Kong and Macau 73 71 82 90
= Taiwan 203 205 197 202
T8 K H At 3[R The rest of Asia Pacific 581 586 578 559
PR The Middle East 191 202 224 248
SN Overseas franchisees 430 416 485 456
e Total 2,397 2,371 2,319 2,303

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016 % R % m B B R & 7
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REXRE

R AEERCEXRERE

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Table 2: Overview of Group results of operations

2F T¥E L¥E
Full Year Second Half First Half
(UGEZETAZEN) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015 Change =~ 2016 2015 Change = 2016 2015 Change
KEBHED Group sales 5145 5381 (4%) 2,613 2,645 (1%) 2,532 2,736 (7%)
e Gross profit 3,055 3,097 (1%) 1,547 1,531 1% 1,508 1,566 (4%)
M= Gross profit margin 59.4% 57.6% 1.8pp/ 59.2% 57.9% 1.3pp/ 59.6% 57.2%  2.4pp/
ERE BRE ERES
KEER Operating expenses (2,572) (2,630)  (2%) (1,288) (1,291) #FFlat  (1,284) (1,339) (4%)
=yl Operating profit 568 556 2% 301 281 7% 267 275 (3%)
MR HE Operating margin 11.0% 10.3% O0.7pp/ 11.5% 106% 09pp/ 10.5% 10.1%  0.4pp/
AN BAE BAE
EBITDA EBITDA 748 743 1% 395 373 6% 353 370 (5%)
R R e R R PATS 434 426 2% 230 218 6% 204 208 (2%)
Fa s Net profit margin 84% 7.9% 05pp/ 88%  82% 0.6pp/ 81%  7.6% 0.5pp/
BAH ERE: ERE:
2R mEHEE Global brand sales?® 6,740 6,810 (1%) 3,446 3,446 FiFFlat 3,204 3,364 2%)
2R miEER? Global brand gross profit? 4,118 4,042 2% 2,125 2,049 4% 1,993 1,993 # TFlat
AEETMHRMAMEESE  Group CSS #¥Flat 4% #¥Flat 5 FFlat (1%) 9%
AEBAHRMATER Group CSGP 2% 4% 3% 1% # FFlat 8%
RIsEEBMEL Free cash flow from
BERRERE operations 505 644 (22%) 246 287 (14%) 259 357 (27%)
RIS RIRITETFE  Net cash and bank balances
at period end 1,095 1,076 2% 1,084 1,029 5%
BREE Inventories at period end 447 491 (9%) 392 453 (13%)
FTEHKAZRERY Inventory turnover on cost
((FERESE))(R)*  (1TOC") (days)* 78 78 %5 FFlat 70 70 ¥ FFlat

8 EIRMIEHE R EFIR2016FERME - HaEE
BRREEE MBEERAEARZMATZTEHER £
Flugss  AteRAEBEEREEM -

¢ FERE A BIRM RIS E 27 E bR A H &R TR A Z H
SE

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

3

4

Global brand sales/gross profit are at 2016 exchange rates, and are greater than
Group sales/gross profit to include the total of Giordano retail sales/gross profit, in
directly-operated stores, franchised stores and stores operated by joint ventures.

ITOC refers to inventories held at period end divided by cost of sales and multiplied
by number of days in the period.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F #
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

R AEERMES D ZHEHE

Table 3: Group sales by region

28

(¥ & TE [ =

HE)

Change

(at constant

2 exchange

(A BEETHREN) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015 Change rates)

K Mainland China 1,285 1,451 (11%) (7%)

H 8 KB P Hong Kong & Macau 927 971 (5%) (5%)

ad Taiwan 615 639 (4%) (3%)

TR HE 3 [ The rest of Asia Pacific 1,388 1,317 5% 6%

PR The Middle East 626 639 (2%) (2%)

ZERDHE Retail and Distribution 4,841 5,017 (4%) (2%)
$EINNERR 2 BB S B Wholesale sales to overseas

franchisees 304 364 (16%) (16%)

4z Total 5,145 5,381 (4%) (3%)

HEX Sales

B EE 72 HERHE

AEBAHHER TE4%  BEEZETEERR
B AMETFR3% - AP EMRZHEEBRNE - K
BRETAHEERTRZRE - £ 2REEERK
5 HEEHBEERIMNHZBERAT  AEEAL
BFMHERRTF -

B R B A R B AR - AR(RAK T sZ & AT L8R
FIMTSHERR 22% T FF < 1o - AR AERFTAS
MEAMKRIREEMT  UERARBELETRE 5
BYHZEMBEHERRD11% - EEEGEEN
5 MEERBETEYSR  YEALBRMHHEERRK
FIRE - BEHER TR - DX EhRFE N
PRE - BENE  KBESBINE HBEELAR
T8 MEFBEXREREABERYK  HYEMHREZ
HEBREXTNZE -
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Sales by geographic region

Consolidated group sales declined by 4%, but would have only been
down by 3% if translated at constant exchange rates. Sales reduction
in Greater China explained mostly to the decline in consolidated sales.
Group CSS was flat amidst subdued global economic growth that
stymied consumer sentiment.

The marked slowdown of the Mainland Chinese economy largely
contributed towards the 2% CSS drop in this region. This, coupled with
the closure of non-performing stores resulting from the rationalization
of the shop portfolio, and the depreciation of the Renminbi (“RMB”)
against the Hong Kong dollar (“HKD” or “HK$") all resulted in the
reduction in reported sales there by 11%. The resilient team in Hong
Kong continued to weather the adverse retail environment and
stabilized CSS. The sales decline in Hong Kong was mainly due to
net shop closures. In Taiwan, the acute economic slowdown, falling
consumer confidence as well as plummeting Mainland Chinese tourist
numbers have all adversely affected the reported sales.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Translated at constant exchange rates, the rest of Asia Pacific recorded
an increase in sales of 6%, attributable to regional CSS growth of
5% and net store gains. Mixed currency movements in this region
contained the reported sales growth to 5% in the year under review.
Thailand and Indonesia were the two biggest sales drivers in the
rest of Asia Pacific region in 2016, sales elevated by 21% and 11%,
respectively.

In the Middle East, the unsettled regional economies have not been
conducive to consumer spending. Efforts to stimulate the economies
through infrastructure and tourism projects continue to be stymied by
the effects of plunging oil prices, which fell to below US$50 per barrel
for the first time since 2009. Regional CSS plummeted 15% in the first
quarter. We reacted by revamping the merchandise mix and promotion
strategies that together helped narrow down regional CSS decline to
3% for the full year.

Sales by brand

With respect to the core Giordano brand, 72% of sales derived
from menswear, 23% from womenswear and 5% from junior wear.
Menswear brand CSS increased by 3%, and brand CSGP rose
further to 6%. Polos continued to be our strongest product category.
Womenswear, however, recorded a drop of 3% in brand CSS. In
addition to selling through multi-brand stores, there were 42 (2015: 46)
womenswear counters in Mainland China and Thailand as at December
31, 2016.

Our premium womenswear brand, Giordano Ladies, recorded an
increase in brand CSS by 3% and brand CSGP by 4%. In particular,
CSS in the South East Asia region surged by 17%. Management will
expand the brand’s global footprint beyond Greater China.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F #
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BR1: ZEL2RREFHEERERTFED
Chart 1: Quarterly global brand sales and YOY change
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Bx2: AKEEEEALEBMATHEERITEBEMTEANSS
Chart 2: Quarterly Group CSS and CSGP change
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Gross profit

While the Group makes its purchases from a RMB-based supply chain,
its markets receive retail proceeds in local currencies. The relative
strengthening or weakening of local currencies of each market against
RMB will improve or reduce the gross profit and the gross profit margin
in each market.

As the Group reports its results in HKD, the relative strengthening
or weakening of local currencies against HKD will also increase or
decrease the Group’s reported income statements when translating the
results of operations of each market into HKD.

Although consolidated sales decreased by 4%, consolidated gross
profit decreased by only 1% to HK$3,055 million (2015: HK$3,097
million). This was attributable to the Group’s emphasis on defending
gross margin through disciplined merchandising and stringent pricing.
Group gross margin was up by 1.8 percentage points to 59.4% (2015:
57.6%).

Group average selling price rose by 3%, primarily due to the adjustment
of selling prices in the rest of Asia Pacific region from the latter half
of 2015 when their currencies depreciated sharply against the RMB.
Better market mix from the increased sales contribution of this region
further enhanced the Group average selling price.

The Group reduced average product cost by 2%, owing to the
depreciation of RMB. Nevertheless, the increased costs of higher
quality fabrics and trims offset a portion of these cost saving.

Sales volume was down by 5%, mainly due to shop closures in
Mainland China and Hong Kong.

EXR3: AKEEFTEENERRFLY
Chart 3: Quarterly Group gross profit margin and YOY change
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Table 4: Gross profit variance analysis by region

V155K THERAS THER Exye 20165 E A

2015 Average Average #E Exchange Ht 2016

(U BEETAE) (In HKS million) gross profit  product cost selling price Volume impact  Miscellaneous gross profit

KR Mainland China 776 () 37 ) 39) 1) 698

BB RRM Hong Kong & Macau 646 2 29 (49 16 - 640

= Taiwan 374 14 19 2 ] (1) 362

AR The rest of Asia Pacific 773 (28) 100 (10) ) - 829

FE The Middle East 114 16 (14) o) - (1) M3
BHELREBELFM  Wholesales &

Intercompany 114 (22) (28) ) 55 - 113

miGHEae Market mix - 8) 3 (30) - - -

S Group 3,007 (35) 143 (166) 19 0) 3,055

Hib g AR H bz - 8

HW AR EMRE T 2EESFREA - Al
A HEWME - MR R R E WS A R SHA -
H AR E MU R 4% 4008 87T TIAR
CEFENHEZEIEE BNV -

AEEBHESTHRIFTLG - £2E AR 58008
BILk2% o BB A EKH48.9% A1 AEE D2
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F20.718 8 2 B £84.2% » B & F R IR F 1%
RO7TEB S EHE11.0% °
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Other income and other gains, net

Other income and other gains mainly consisted of royalty income, rental
income, gain from disposal of property, plant and equipment as well as
interest income. Other income and other gains dropped by 4% or HK$4
million due to fewer units of staff quarters sold in the year under review.

Operating expenses

The Group remains vigilant in its spending. There was a reduction in
operating expenses by HK$58 million or 2%. Operating expense ratio
increased by 1.1 percentage points from 48.9% to 50.0%, largely due
to lower consolidated sales. With the uplift in gross profit margin of 1.8
percentage points, operating expenses to gross profit decreased by 0.7
percentage points to 84.2%, enhancing our operating margin by 0.7
percentage points to 11.0% YOY.

Rental expense decreased by 3% due to the closure of non-performing
stores, particularly in Mainland China, and rental reduction initiatives,
although this was largely offset by expansion of retail space by 3% in
the South East Asia region. Staff expense to sales was 17.5% (2015:
16.5%), attributable to salary increments and the increase in statutory
staff benefits in certain markets. Advertising and marketing expenses
declined by 5% with fewer global advertising campaigns this year.
The Group will continue to execute impactful marketing programs in
2017 where appropriate. Shop overhead expenses, comprising shop
depreciation, utilities, credit card charges and other miscellaneous
expenses, also declined by 7%.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF
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Operating profit

The Group’s operating profit was better in the second half of the
financial year, increased by 7% YQOY as compared to 3% decline in the
first half.

The Middle East recorded the highest return on sales in the Group with
an operating margin of 17.3% (2015: 17.5%), owing largely to its strong
brand equity. Although there was an initial blip in the first quarter when
CSS plummeted by 15%, and it rebounded in ensuing quarters. Greater
China made up 55% of the Group’s consolidated sales, but due to its
relatively low operating margin among the markets, it only contributed
40% of the Group’s operating profit. Upon rationalization of store
portfolio and gross profit margin uplift, we managed to increase Greater
China’s operating margin by 1.3 percentage points to 8.1% in the year
under review. Management expects the operating margin in Greater
China will continue to improve.

Exk4: ZHBEE D ZHERRKE RN T M
Chart 4: Sales and operating profit contribution by region
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Taxation

Taxation amounted to HK$122 million (2015: HK$118 million),
representing an effective tax rate of 20.0% (2015: 19.7%).

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company (“PATS”) was up
by 2% to HK$434 million (2015: HK$426 million). Net profit margin
increased by 0.5 percentage points from 7.9% to 8.4%, attributable
to strengthened gross profit margin, which compensated for the rising
operating costs, in particular, staff costs and statutory staff benefits.
At constant exchange rates, PATS would have been HK$443 million,
an increase of 4% YQY. The difficulties in Taiwan and the Middle East
markets weighing on the profits there were entirely offset by the growth
in other markets.

Table 5: Analysis of change in PATS

(KB &EETHENMN) (In HK$ million)

B 520155 R R FE 45 % 7 Reported 2015 PATS 426
6 H B K B A 2 0k I8 N Increase in profit from Mainland China 17
BB RORPIE 4 2 % F3E 0 Increase in profit from Hong Kong and Macau 17
1B EEE 2% MR Decrease in profit from Taiwan (9)
M TR E A b [ 2= A 2 s F1 38 A0 Increase in profit from the rest of Asia Pacific 14
MR SR EE A 2R AR Decrease in profit from the Middle East (4)
FEAG B 58 % 138 A0 Increase in share of profit of South Korea 3
HEBEEE A 2 R R38N Increase in profit from wholesales 2

BUE - J 1M A28 R D B

Taxation, non-controling interests and corporate

functions (23)
2016 F KT ERBREZH o REEMLER 2016 PATS without currency translation difference 443
BE¥HmEEE Currency translation difference (9)
B 520165 % R FE 45 % 7 Reported 2016 PATS 434
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The following market-specific comments by management are
in local currencies or, if in HKD, are at constant exchange
rates to remove distortions from the translation of results of
operations and financial conditions from local currencies to
HKD. The figures have not removed the impact on imported
product cost contracted at non-local currencies.

Mainland China

Table 6: Overview of Mainland China

2E TEE i -3
Full Year Second Half First Half

(UAEBEETAER)  (In RMB million) 2016 2015 Change 2016 2015 Change 2016 2015 Change
BEHEE Total sales 1,108 1,182 (7%) 564 570 (1%) 539 612 (12%)
B DOS 785 865 (9%) 396 413 (4%) 389 452 (14%)
[ ANERE 2 BB Wholesale to franchisees 318 317 #¥Flat 168 157 7% 150 160 (6%)
miEEERS Total brand sales 1,310 1,415 (7%) 643 667 (4%) 667 748 (11%)
=5 DOS 785 865 (9%) 396 413 (4%) 389 452 (14%)
MERE Franchised stores 525 550 (5%) 247 254 (3%) 278 296 (6%)

EBRATHES CSS (2%) 6% (1%)  #5FFlat (3%) 12%
A Gross profit 599 632 (5%) 305 310 (2%) 294 322 (9%)
Efl% Gross profit margin 543%  535%  08pp/  541%  544%  (0.3pp/  545%  526%  1.9pp/
BOH B H) B

L BRATET CSGP % FFlat 7% 1% 3% (1%) 10%
L2ER Operating expenses (526) (581) (9%) (262) (278) (6%) (264) (303) (13%)
BEET Operating profit 87 73 19% 47 40 18% 40 33 21%
2R Operating margin 7.9% 62%  1.7pp/ 8.3% 70%  1.3pp/ 7.4% 54%  2.0pp/
BOH B BRY
HARMTHE Number of stores at period end 919 891 28 896 928 (32)
HE DOS 357 374 (17) 360 435 (75)
mEE Franchised stores 562 517 45 536 493 43

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Commencing in the second half of 2015, we revamped our store
portfolio by exiting non-performing stores. This affected total sales
comparison such that total sales were down double-digit in the first half
of 2016 despite comparable store sales having only declined by 3%.
In the second half of the year, total sales became more comparable;
coupled with the expansion of our franchise network, the region’s total
sales modestly decreased by 1% YQY.

Amid the steady cooling of the Chinese economy, we managed to
report flat CSGP. Gross profit margin was up by 0.8 percentage points
to 54.3%, primarily due to the increase in average selling price of 3%.
We refined the product mix by offering higher quality products that
yielded higher selling prices and better margins. With the support of
a flexible supply chain, we were able to “under-buy” and stock less,
reducing the pressure to markdown at season-end.

Operating profit rose by 19% in local currency terms, and operating
margin improved by 1.7 percentage points. This was achieved through
gross profit margin improvement and better channel mix from our
franchise business, which yielded higher returns.

Profit drivers from this region include the expansion of our franchise
network in third and fourth-tier cities and e-business. Sales from
e-business rose by 13% with its sales contribution to regional brand
sales increasing to 15% (2015: 13%). Our sales in third-party platforms
both surged by more than 20% after consolidation of our online
platforms. Management will continue to invest resources to support
e-business growth. This year we will move and merge our Mainland
China distribution center and e-business warehouse under one roof to
enhance operating efficiencies and inventory control.

BExRS: PEAEFTFEMMEEERZFEED
Chart 5: Mainland China quarterly brand sales and YOY change
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ER6: FEAEFEETHLBRMATHEERTLBEMATENE S
Chart 6: Mainland China quarterly CSS and CSGP change
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EBREM Hong Kong and Macau
R7T BERRMAME Table 7: Overview of Hong Kong and Macau
25 T¥F T¥g
Full Year Second Half First Half
(U GEZETAEN) (In HKS million) 2016 2015  Change 2016 2015  Change 2016 2015  Change
BIHER Total sales 927 971 (5%) 470 492 (4%) 457 479 (5%)
ALBRMAmEEE  CSS # FFlat 7% 2% 4% 1% 8%
EH Gross profit 640 646 (1%) 327 325 1% 313 321 (3%)
ek Gross profit margin 69.0%  66.5%  2.5pp/  69.6%  66.1%  3.5pp/  68.5%  67.0%  1.5pp/
B B BAM
BN T EF CSGP 3% 6% 7% 4% 2% 8%
BB Operating expenses (562) (579) (3%) (285) (288) (1%) (277) (291) (5%)
B E A Operating profit 87 70 24% 49 38 29% 38 32 19%
TR FI& Operating margin 9.4% 72%  22pp/  10.4% 7.7% 2.7pp/ 8.3% 6.7% 1.6pp/
ERE i B B8
HRPMMEE Number of stores at
period end 73 71 2 70 74 (4)

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B &7 :

Sales recorded a decrease of 5% despite CSS being flat, due mainly to
closure of stores that took place in 2015. Trading conditions in Hong
Kong’s retail industry were challenging, but our resilient operations
team managed to increase CSGP quarter-to-quarter. Gross profit
margin enhanced by 2.5 percentage points to 69.0%, driven by the
increase in average selling price by 3%. This was the result of better
product mix from higher margin products and successful marketing

campaigns, which increased store footfall.

Rental expense to sales ratio receded by one percentage point, mainly
due to the exit from high-rent locations coupled with successful rental
reductions. While the rents for street stores may well be declining,
shopping mall rents are continuing to rise. Management continues
to evaluate the economics of prime locations and plans to open new
stores when occupancy costs return to reasonable levels. Staff costs
to sales ratio increased by 2.0 percentage points as we enhanced
our salary competitiveness in the market. Supported by strong gross
margin growth in the second half of the financial year and strict control
of other operating expenses, we widened the operating profit growth
and reported a hike of 29% in the second half or 24% for the full year.

ERARAMZETLBMTHERRTEBMNTEFNED

Chart 7: Hong Kong and Macau quarterly CSS and CSGP change
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- Taiwan
k8. BEHE Table 8: Overview of Taiwan
2E TEE L¥F
Full Year Second Half First Half
(HEEFHEEAENT) (In NTD million) 2016 2015  Change 2016 2015  Change 2016 2015 Change
BHER Total sales 2511 2,637 (3%) 1,200 1,267 (6% 1,811 1370 #HFFlat
EBRATHES CssS (3%) 1% (4%) (8%) (4%) 12%
£ Gross profit 1514 1543 2%) 728 742 (2%) 786 801 (2%)
ek Gross profit margin 58.9%  58.5%  Odpp/  60.7%  58.6%  2.1pp/  57.3%  58.5%  (1.2pp/
ERx B BAE)
nEBRATERN CSGP (8%) #FFlat (1%) (9%) (5%) 1%
L2ER Operating expenses (1,354)  (1,355) #FFlat (658) (673) (2%) (696) (682) 2%
mE R Operating profit 162 201 (19%) 67 76 (12%) 95 125 (24%)
LR Operating margin 6.3% 76% (1.3pp/  5.6% 60% (04pp/  6.9% 91%  (2.2pp/
BH) BH) B0 %)
BARMMEYE Number of stores at period end 203 205 1Y) 211 201 10

BEKEEBIR - HMEEBEEL - BEHRM
Rz 2 EHHIRERKE - Bl R AT AT
HARZ FI¥ 8 - R20165F127 - BB E LI
BE TR ZEHEB2013F10 A U R Z HIEKF &
ERZMRFEETHERINBAILBRFTENZ
BKIEREE1%  2F A LRI EFNI TE3% e
HMBAEAERESUREEABEREBEFT I
o REIRSIM IS o UL IR A B DG T F 82085
A 2 [ 18 -

EFEREENKAE19% K2 HENEINHT7.6%
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The stagnant economy in Taiwan has dampened consumer confidence
and continued to pose a great challenge to our business there.
A recent publication by the National Central University notes that
the consumer confidence index in December 2016 had fallen to its
lowest since October 2013. Full-year CSGP dropped by 3% despite
successfully narrowing the CSGP drop to 1% in the second half of the
financial year. We responded to the market weakness by reshaping the
product mix to offer more price-competitive products. This also helped
restrict the decrease in operating profit in the second half of the year.

Full year operating profit shrank by 19% with operating margin down
from 7.6% to 6.3%. We opened net ten stores in the first half of the
financial year, but they failed to deliver expected sales and adversely
affected the operating margin. Management will carefully evaluate
Taiwan’s expansion plans and non-performing stores, especially in the
absence of any imminent signs of growth.
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EXRs: AEZEEALBEMMHEEERTHBRMATEFNEE
Chart 8: Taiwan quarterly CSS and CSGP change
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DBAHME The rest of Asia Pacific
R DAHMEMRE Table 9: Overview of the rest of Asia Pacific region
2% FHE by
Full Year Second Half First Half
(WEEETAEN ZET  (nHKS million, translated at ) g g
EXHE constant exchange rates) 2016 2015 Change 2016 2015 Change 2016 2015 Change
BHEE Total sales 1,400 1,317 6% 713 679 5% 687 638 8%
LBRFATHES CSsS 5% 5% 4% 3% 5% 9%
A Gross profi 837 713 8% 432 391 10% 405 382 6%
EME Gross profit margin 50.8%  58.7% 1pp/  60.6% 57.6%  30pp/  59.0%  59.9%  (0.9pp/
ERE ERE] ANH)
I BRATEN CSGP 6% 4% 7% 2% 4% 7%
B2ER Operating expenses (677) (622) 9% (335) (309) 8% (342) (313) 9%
2R Operating profit 166 151 10% 97 83 17% 69 68 1%
BT Operating margin 11.9%  115%  Odpp/  136%  122%  14pp/  100%  10.7%  (0.7pp/
ERE ERE] ARH)
BRMPMEE Number of stores at period end 581 586 5) 582 559 23
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®10: TAHMERHZMATEHE

Table 10: Store numbers in the rest of Asia Pacific
region markets

i

At
20164 20154
12H31H 12A31H
December 31 December 31
2016 2015
e Indonesia 237 224
RE Thailand 159 153
BRAED Malaysia 90 90
EipIik Singapore 45 47
g India 29 49
B Australia 20 22
RIHE Cambodia 1 1
MmAg Total number of stores 581 586
BEEZEB(FAR) Total retail floor space (sq. ft.) 577,700 558,800

ARBRE  LEREAMBFEET+F AR
MR ZEORAN - ARRIDEETEGUAR
BEE -EMNXETAEEL R TE2HREKEH
BEETNFFZENRIERIOMBE DK
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i AR 100878 7T (20154 : 1,8008 8 7T) © #5
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BERBEYE  BREBEFFER/) -

HawREIEMH Z2HmAMT

HRFIMREFENLER HES R TEES
ZERE BUE=FEEIES 2FULEM
MHERREETE1% - RS HREFEEKF -
WERFEZEAB/ - At - EFE EF1AE
Bo# o JEFEE LIR3%ATE
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The depreciation of the RMB, especially in the second half of the
financial year, benefited the import costs from this region as most
production orders were settled in RMB. The gross profit margin
enhanced by 1.1 percentage points, predominately from the 3.0
percentage points increase in gross profit margin from the second half
of the financial year.

Currencies in this region have been gradually appreciating to the
Group reporting currency, HKD. Profitability declined by HK$1 million
(2015: HK$18 million) in the year under review due to the translation
of operating results in local currencies to HKD. There was still negative
impact to reported results when translating the operating results from
these markets into HKD, but the impact was smaller compared to last
year.

Commentaries on key markets in this region are as follows:

Against a high third quarter base when Singapore celebrated its
Golden Jubilee last year that attracted unusually high store footfall, full
year CSS eventually dropped by only 1%. As we trimmed down the
stock level, we had less stock clearance pressure. Therefore, gross
profit margin increased by 1.1 percentage points, attributable to a 3%
increase in average selling price.
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The Malaysian government introduced Goods and Services Tax in
April 2015. This encouraged unusually high consumption prior to
the implementation, creating a rather high comparable base. CSGP
was up by 2% although CSS was down by 3%, primarily due to the
increase in gross profit margin by 3.8 percentage points, driven by
the increase in average selling price by 14%. This was largely due to
the alleviation of markdown pressure after successfully reducing stock
levels, as well as the adjustment of selling prices to compensate for
the unfavorable impact of import costs denominated in RMB when
the Malaysia Ringgit depreciated quite heavily against RMB in 2015.
Owing to the achievement of high gross profit margin growth, operating
profit increased by 5% YQY in current exchange rates, or 11% in local
currency terms.

With 237 shops as at year-end, Indonesia is our largest market in
South East Asia. Its sales accounted for 35% (2015: 34%) of our retall
sales value in the rest of Asia Pacific region. In Indonesia, we run
both Giordano brand and licensed brand DOS and in the year under
review, and their performance varied. Giordano brand CSS expanded
by 5% whereas licensed brand CSS slipped by 27%. Supported by
GDP growth of 5% in the year under review and better merchandise
assortment, Giordano brand CSS increased by the same extent. On the
other hand, licensed brands’ sales decline was primarily due to upward
adjustments of licensor-directed retail prices and delayed shipments of
merchandise. The licensor has since revised its pricing guideline in the
middle of the financial year. We did see a gradual improvement in the
CSS, although we have yet to see a noticeable rebound. With the net
addition of 13 stores in the past 12 months, reported sales increased
by 11%. However, escalated operating expenses, particularly rental
expenses and statutory staff benefits, brought down operating margin
by 2.3 percentage points, resulting in a 3% decline in operating profit.
The local management team has built one of the strongest Giordano
brand images among all markets, providing a solid foundation to keep
the business on a growth trajectory.

Thailand reported an overwhelmingly strong performance in the
year under review, with CSS and CSGP surging by 20% and 21%,
respectively. Operating profit translated at constant exchange rate also
surged by 64%, leveraged by increased sales and controlled operating
expenses.

CSS in Australia saw a double-digit dip in the first half of the
financial year. We responded by restructuring the sales force there
and managed to narrow down CSS decline to 8% for the full year.
Nevertheless, operating loss still widened YOY. Management continues
to assess if this market fits in the Group’s ongoing strategy.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF

25



26

EEEBzmAR 2
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

"1 . D AREMiEEIRTISEI 9 2#HES Table 11: Sales by markets in rest of Asia Pacific region

REEERTHEZHESE
Sales at AR ERE &P ER

constant exchange rate CSS CSGP
(UBEETAERN)  (In HK$ million) 2016 2015  Change 2016 2015 2016 2015
s Singapore 309 317 (3%) (1%) 10% (1%) 9%
e Indonesia 486 444 9% 5% 1% 4% (2%)
552k P a8 Malaysia 183 184 (1%) (3%) (7%) 2% (8%)
B Thailand 327 262 25% 20% 15% 21% 15%
BN Australia 78 84 (7%) (8%) 8% (9%) 6%
HE India 10 21 (52%) (39%) (15%) (39%) (18%)
RIFE Cambodia 7 5 40% 42% TEAN/A 1% TEENA
Mt Total 1,400 1,317 6% 5% 5% 6% 4%

BRY EAHMEFTFEALEMTHEERTLEEMTEFNEE
Chart 9: The rest of Asia Pacific quarterly CSS and CSGP change
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==l The Middle East
R12: hEEPE Table 12: Overview of the Middle East
2F TEE tyz
Full Year Second Half First Half
(NEBETBENL - (In HK$ milion, translated at g g #
BETEZRE constant exchange rates) 2016 2015 Change 2016 2015 Change 2016 2015 Change
BHEE Total sales 625 639 (2%) 310 319 (3%) 315 320 2%)
EBRATHEER CSsS (3%) (3%) (3%) (5%) (4%) 1%
A Gross profit 413 414 5 FFat 200 209 (4%) 213 205 4%
ek Gross profit margin 66.1%  64.8%  13pp/  645%  655% (1.0pp/  67.6%  64.1%  3.5pp/
ERE] AnE) ERE
HEBRATEN CSGP (1%) 1% (8%) #5 FFlat (1%) 2%
BEER Operating expenses (306) (302) 1% (152) (157) (3%) (154) (145) 6%
eyl Operating profit 108 112 (4%) 48 52 (8%) 60 60 % FFlat
L Rh= Operating margin 17.3% 175% (0.2pp/  155%  16.3%  (0.8pp/  19.0%  18.8%  0.20p/
AN ERE) AR
BRMmEE Number of stores at period end 191 202 (1) 196 202 (6)

FRAE - REEENBETHNEE  BBER
RERKBEBR AL E 2 BHEEBER I MESR
B (B2009F AR B XK EFMHE0ETTIAT) R
FREBERATZE - HWRALRPFIMHEHEENE
FETHKIG% - tEREE  RAXFERES A
BAERHER  CSHEE2FALRPIMHERK
TEAERE3% - RIMBERE 2 BT HHER T
14% > JHEZRRNFEEEAPINAAER - ZFERTIH
REMEEAXTREEEEEEFT LKA
e EF4A  ARETREBRBF R RERE
B YEAHBETKBBARZEEB ZHER -
FGAHZEEB2TE  HEBRD4% -
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In the Middle East, unsettled regional economies have not been
conducive to consumer spending. Efforts to stimulate the economies
through infrastructure and tourism projects continue to be stymied by
the effects of plunging oil prices, which fell to below US$50 per barrel
for the first time since 2009, and government austerity measures.
Regional CSS plummeted 15% in the first quarter. We reacted by
revamping the merchandise assortment and promotion strategies that
together helped narrow down regional CSS decline to 3% for the full
year. Sales in our wholesale markets through franchisees decreased
by 14%, primarily due to net closure of stores. This was the result of
weakened consumer demand from depreciated local currencies against
a strong United States dollar. In April last year, the Group completed
the acquisition of Kuwait and Qatar operations, and has consolidated
sales from these operations since the completion date. Without
consolidation, sales would have decreased by 4%.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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RETEX®RE BEHEE NE2%  BENR
FRFP - EMNXEMIEBELH  T2RANS
MBEMmZERMEANREMN - HEEMBMTK
B AEM TR RELLTRA% - EREBEE
RE2ERE RPN YHELHEIFERIF
EPNE SV

At constant exchange rates, despite sales were down by 2%, gross
profit was flat YOY. Gross profit margin was up by 1.3 percentage
points, primarily due to improved product mix from high-margin
products. The increasing rental expense slightly deleveraged
the operating results, which recorded a decrease of 4% YOY.
Management will continue to enhance operating efficiency to
combat the adversity there and will seek to expand our footprint
when the economy turns the corner.

ER10: PREEATUBRMATHERERTLEMATEFNE B
Chart 10: The Middle East quarterly CSS and CSGP change
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EE(—EeELQT) South Korea (a joint venture)
K13 . FEHE Table 13: Overview of South Korea
2F T¥E L¥f
Full Year Second Half First Half
kit o » 2016 2015 - 2016 2015 2016 2015
(HEEEEBEN) (In KRW million) Change Change Change
BHES Total sales 215,037 218,007 (1%) 113,518 115,543 (2%) 101,519 102,464 (1%)
EBRATHES Css (4%) (3%) (6%) 1% (2%) (6%)
E Gross profit 119,822 118,555 1% = 63,452 62,065 2% 56,370 56,490 ¥ FFlat
% Gross profit margin 55.7%  54.4%  13pp/  55.9%  53.7%  22pp/  555%  55.1%  0.4pp/
BAH BRE B
BFEGIES CSGP (1%) (7%) (2%) (3%) # ¥Flat (9%)
a Net Profit 12,641 11,749 8% 7,497 6705 7% 5444 5044 8%
FE(R R I Share of profit 6,131 5,698 8% 3,491 3,252 7% 2,640 2,446 8%

(BREDL :485%) (% of equity holding: 48.5%)

HRMPMHE Number of stores at period end 200 198 2 195 200 (5)

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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—MHEEBLEEERE R 2 HH48.5%
BERRSEALRMAMEERBR 4% - KAt
EPTEFNTRE1% - &FE 7T 2R —BIEBEE
FIRZBEE (S HERE2015F T HEFRREYRIEES
AE/REEHAR ) 18 EFRERAIEH D H - MER
CEFERNETTFEEL  BH2015F12H318 18
tt - 2016512 A31B 2 F BB 76,2008 8 7T -
HZ=2016F12A31H - HFERE ASIUIH105K
B E8OK o

BELETRERENERMNPEE 2 BEER -
BAZzEEEMNZEHERFEERS%  BKE
AIME R MBI R3% - EEREREARKEEKH
RASEZRBEERRIERAE - PRSEMNE

South Korea, a 48.5% joint venture under an independent management
team, registered a 4% decrease in CSS and 1% decline in CSGP.
Gross profit margin was up by 1.3 percentage points. This was after
an extended period of unusually low gross profit margin, particularly in
the second half of 2015, when the Middle East Respiratory Syndrome
broke out. South Korea underwent inventory rationalization during the
year under review and had HK$62 million less inventory on December
31, 2016 as compared with December 31, 2015. Its inventory turnover
days also fell from 105 days to 80 days for the year ended December
31, 2016.

The depreciation of the Korean Won (“KRW?”) against HKD continued to
lower our share of profit there. Our share of profit rose by 8% in local
currency terms, but only increased by 3% at current exchange rates.
Going forward, management expects that South Korea will further
enhance product margins from leveraging the Group’s sourcing power.

Bx1: EEFEAULBRMTHEERTHEMTEFN 2 S
Chart 11: South Korea quarterly CSS and CSGP change
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AEEHBMMEFRFESHER R

®14: BHIMBBRFSHMBLARAMT

GROUP WHOLESALES TO OVERSEAS FRANCHISEES
AND NON-CONSOLIDATED ENTITIES

Table 14: Store number of overseas franchisees and

s non-consolidated subsidiaries

i

At
20164 20154
12A31H 12H31H
December 31  December 31
BEmEES By market 2016 2015
[ South Korea 200 198
ke Myanmar 111 112
FEE Philippines 76 68
i Vietnam 28 25
=N Japan 10 9
Hmmi5 Other markets 5 4
MmAg Total number of stores 430 416
HWEEZBM(EAR) Total retail floor space (sq. ft.) 485,200 455,700
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Wholesale sales fell by 16% to HK$304 million (2015: HK$364 million),
primarily due to reduced purchases from South Korea which underwent
inventory rationalization. Elsewhere, the Philippines, Myanmar and
Vietnam have collectively registered 20% sales growth and the Group’s
wholesale sales to these markets increased by 10%. Management will
continue to support the growth of our overseas franchise network.

FINANCIAL CONDITION
Free cash flow from operations

Free cash flow from operations is essential to create shareholder value
and this has been a constant key performance indicator internally.
During the year under review, free cash flow from operations was
HK$505 million (2015: HK$644 million). The high level of free cash flow
from operations in year 2015 was to some degree exceptional due
to timing difference in settlement with suppliers. The cash conversion
rate, which measures our ability to convert reported profit into cash
and calculated by dividing free cash flow before taxes paid of HK$619
million to EBIT, was 100% (2015: 120%).

Net cash and bank balances at HK$1,095 million, this represents a
slight increase with last fiscal year-end (2015: HK$1,076 million). During
the year under review, we added HK$298 million short-term bank loans
denominated in HKD to leverage interest rates differential among banks
in the region for yield enhancement.
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EEERRRBRASRRITHEFTURREEER
SzERBRERERREAIFRMAZEKLE
YTARBRMAzERRITHRERES

"6 R EXBIE2ERHRESRE

Management considers the current cash and bank balances and free
cash flow from operations sufficient to support our business operations
and fund our growth and initiatives.

Table 15: Free cash flow from operations

(KB EETRENL) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
EBIT EBIT 622 609
WrE R Depreciation and amortization 126 134
BEARMT RS Capital expenditure less disposals (100) (83)
JEMRA QR B A DB B AR T Share of pre-tax profit of joint ventures/

(HMBRRE) associates (net of dividends) (21) (18)
LEEEE Changes in working capital - 112
HEZRE RNBREHE 2B Decrease in rental deposits and

repayments less amortization 1 19
EHAh Others 9) (40)
2AHIE Tax paid (114) (89)
REEEBFESZERRESRE Free cash flow from operations 505 644

®16: RERBTEFEB M

Table 16: Analysis of change in cash and bank balances

(X B EETTAEN) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
FURERBITERE Cash and bank balances at

beginning of the year 1,076 915
NEEEBMEZERRENE Free cash flow from operations 505 644
FIGIRITER Addition of bank loans 298 -
BT IR R IR M R = AR R Dividends paid to shareholders and

non-controlling interests (477) (470)
WEER SR REB XD Acquisition of Kuwait and Qatar

operations - 16
BT R P15 B Proceeds from issuance of new shares 2 3
ME H =5 Exchange difference (11) (32)
FRESRBTERE Cash and bank balances at end of

the year 1,393 1,076

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF

31



32

%EEEZHHL& *ﬁ

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Bt #5 7R R
WE - BERRE

RAFE - WF%M@OO%;‘%%E$%§§1 0418
BT (20154 + 9,8008 7B 7T) - ARG PI™ MG
AR EIEEH%%%E&QEE%E%E&%W& LA
RABRMZBEFER -

BERRUZGHERR

BERFENRLHESERBE2012K%2015F W iE
RERER - RADETFERENS  EHEEY
/ﬂ'fﬁ l:luFFE °

a2

/A

BB TTAERIER PIEA48.5% N MEA S AT
Eos o #E e B R JE R 22,3008 B L i i
TE 165 4F A% A1J4,3008 76 7T+ 85 B YA 8.3,300
B M EBIRE Z 53,3008 B LT -

NoE
@Db

cn)#\ﬁw_ﬁt

+

%

HELHRHEZRANFE

MR2016F12A31H  HE L K & B[ RIB
Wk 00 B T £2.4318 8 T (20154 : 2.521878
J0) - EB AN LA S TEN 585,0008 8 T 0 I
16,7008 78 JU Bk S AT IR 8 o

A

(=3

ok
¥

FTELRGISRBRAERZEZHEZ T—HELSE
B2 ZOEF N o REBR2016F12A318 217
B A 4,4008 8 T 9% E4.47E B JT (2015512
H31B : 491848 x) - FRN - FEREBHR78
X BEFHAER -

Zliﬁlﬁﬁﬁgtﬂf e N B OKEE B 2 17
LA&&TF?%E‘Z/\FFTT( MHEIRGEEE]D -

EHERLRTEAENEBZ2FELFRMZ

/fm M B RBITTRRARRMTIEEREEARE

FIMFE - BEMH Fé?ﬁﬂtbiﬁ‘&ﬁ“f%uﬁm
RAEFENER2015F12A31BH P 12% -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

Financial position
Property, plant, and equipment

During the year, we increased capital expenditure by HK$6 million to
HK$104 million (2015: HK$98 million) on the back of additional stores
and store upgrades. Management will continue to invest in our shop
ambiance to strengthen our brand image.

Goodwill and put option liabilities

The goodwill and put option liabilities arose from the acquisition of
the Middle East operations in year 2012 and 2015. We performed
annual impairment test and concluded that there was no impairment to
goodwill.

Interests in joint ventures

The HK$480 million balance represents our 48.5% interest in the South
Korean joint venture. The decrease in balance by HK$23 million during
the year under review was due to share of profit for the year of HK$43
million, offset by dividends received of HK$33 million and currency
translation difference of HK$33 million.

Leasehold land and rental prepayments

At December 31, 2016, leasehold land and rental prepayments
decreased by HK$9 million to HK$243 million (2015: HK$252 million),
mainly attributable to additional rental prepayments of HK$59 million,
offset by amortization of HK$67 million.

Inventory

Inventory control is a key indicator of merchandising efficiency and
remains a core competence of the Group. Group inventories at
December 31, 2016 dropped by HK$44 million, or 9%, to HK$447
million (December 31, 2015: HK$491 million). During the year, ITOC
days closed at 78 days, the same as last year.

The Group responsibly monitors inventories at our suppliers and
Mainland China franchisees as well as our own consolidated inventories
(collectively, the “system inventory”). Although inventories at suppliers
and Mainland China franchisees are not our legal liabilities, this
discipline ensures that we do not build up off-balance sheet inventories.
The system inventory was down by 12% compared to December 31,
2015, in spite of bulk production and stockholding by suppliers of core
items.
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®R17: RAHFE

Table 17: System inventory

i
At
20165 20154
12A31H 12H31H
December 31 December 31
(UG EETTAENT) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
rEERBZEFE Inventories held by the Group 447 491
HERKEMEERSEZFE Inventories held by franchisees in
Mainland China 88 75
HEFHZERERCRTE) Finished goods at suppliers
(not yet shipped) 20 67
A GEHRE Total system inventory 555 633
JE UG J% FE (1 BE = Trade receivables and payables

AEBEERBKERR T E M - AREEERR
% o B E=2016F12A318 L F & - BWRFOR &
HEuAs4K - BEAFMAE EFA3K - B HI B BO0K
ZREWERRE IR 2 7% » E2015F KR °
REREFE - EBHEIFREHEAI7TX (20155 -
38K)  TAB0EASAZIEF{ZEH -

RKHEKE
BEEgHREZNRBIREEZ=2016F12A31H
IEFEZARBRESR15.08L (2015%F : B
14.5%81(l) » BFREREARFREAEFRE L
BARBIEAL A - B% B 4% A2.36E T - Rk
BERY2ERReR  HEBASEERFHESM
Mo AEBZHERABRRLEERNGRE - EEE
HEERHNESHARPHERKE -
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The Group monitors the recoverability of trade receivables to mitigate
bad debt risk. Trade receivables turnover days for the year ended
December 31, 2016 was 54 days, an increase of 3 days compared to
last year. Trade receivables past due more than 90 days represents 7%
of trade receivables, same as 2015 year-end. Trade payables turnover
days in the year under review was 37 days (2015: 38 days), which was
comparable to the normal credit period of 30-45 days.

Final dividend

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend
of 15.0 HK cents per share (2015: 14.5 HK cents per share) for the year
ended December 31, 2016 to shareholders, subject to the approval of
the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. This totals HK$236 million and reflects the
continuing strong free cash flow, working capital management and net
cash position. Group policy is to return surplus cash to shareholders.
Management is confident that there are sufficient funds in the business
for medium term investments.
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OUTLOOK

In the near future, we foresee both challenges and opportunities in
the markets we operate in. The macroeconomic and geopolitical
conditions, particularly in the United States and Europe, will cause
some degree of uncertainty globally, affecting market sentiment and
dampening consumer appetite. That said, our unrelenting pursuit
of operational excellence and discipline, coupled with initiatives
taken to stimulate the economies within which we operate will allow
management to persevere.

The likely ongoing, but gradual depreciation of the Renminbi will
continue to benefit the Group insofar as average product cost is
concerned. Likewise, however, translated sales from Mainland China
will be negatively impacted and this may also frustrate any increase
in sales attributable to resurging local currencies in South East Asia.
Management will continue to monitor ongoing changes in the dynamics
between the currencies and take appropriate action when we anticipate
threats or opportunities.

Management’s outlook on Mainland China continues to be cautiously
optimistic. We will complete the merger of our two existing warehouses
in southern China into one facility, which will improve operating
efficiencies and allow us to further reinforce our inventory control. The
expansion and improvement of our Mainland franchise network will
also continue into 2017. In terms of our China e-commerce business,
management will strive to advance its partnership status with third-
party platforms.

Our Hong Kong operations and management teams will strive to
maintain the momentum in rental savings, focused renovation of its
retail outlets, the expansion of its retail network as well as carefully
selected marketing campaigns. That said, this will be in the context of
tougher market and operating conditions in the coming year, and while
the rents for street stores may well be declining, shopping mall rents
are continuing to rise and this may hinder the growth potential of our
business in Hong Kong.

In Taiwan, the reduction in number of tourists has had a major
impact on the economy. Impending regulatory changes relating to
overtime payments will also pose a challenge, although both our local
management team and Group management have prepared measures
well in advance to respond.
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Collectively, the rest of Asia Pacific will continue improving its
merchandising and marketing. We do not see imminent threats in this
region.

The performance of our Middle East business improved in the latter half
of last year and our local management team will strive to maintain this
momentum into 2017. That said, uncertainties and challenges remain
in the region. While oil price is slowly recovering, sustainability remains
an issue. As interest in imminent world-class events such as the 2020
Expo in Dubai and the football world cup in 2022 begins to gather
pace, more visitors may be attracted to the Emirates, but this remains
to be seen. Management will continue to enforce strict discipline in both
costs and merchandising control.

Our South Korean joint venture appears to have continued its
recovery. The management team, having decisively rationalized
inventory throughout 2016, should be able to continue its performance
momentum through improved merchandising and cost control.

Regional economic environments are not conducive to overall sales
increases in the medium term, therefore management will continue
to focus on improving CSS and CSGP growth. Finally, management
is confident that it will continue to sustain good cash balances by
managing the Group’s working capital and cash flow from operations.

OTHER INFORMATION
Human Resources

On December 31, 2016, the Group had approximately 8,000
employees (December 31, 2015: 8,100). The Group offers competitive
remuneration packages and generous, goal-oriented bonuses targeted
to different levels of staff. We offer senior managers performance-
based bonus schemes and share options to reward and retain a high
caliber leadership team. We also invest heavily in training in sales and
customer service, management, planning and leadership development
to retain a skilled and motivated workforce.
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Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter (Chairman and Chief Executive), aged 64,
is the Group’s Chairman and Chief Executive. He is also chairman of
the Management Committee and Nomination Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He joined the Group
in 1987, became the Chief Executive on February 8, 1994, and was
elected Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Group on August
10 in the same year. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group.

Dr. LAU is also an independent non-executive director of Fairwood
Holdings Limited, which is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Dr. LAU is currently the Chairman of
the Advisory Committees on management and marketing at The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University as well as Adjunct Professor of Marketing
at City University of Hong Kong.

Dr. LAU holds a Doctorate degree in Business Administration from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University, an MBA degree from the University
of Calgary in Canada and a Master of Buddhist Studies from The
University of Hong Kong. He is a member of The Canadian Institute
of Chartered Accountants and the Society of Certified Management
Accountants of Canada. Dr. LAU had over 12 years of management
and accounting experience in both the private and public sectors in
Canada before joining the Group.

Dr. CHAN Ka Wai (Executive Director), aged 40, joined the Group in
January 2000 and was appointed as an Executive Director and the
Chief Operating Officer of the Company on June 20, 2014 and April
1, 2015, respectively. He is a member of the Management Committee
of the Company and also a director of certain subsidiaries and joint
ventures of the Group. Dr. CHAN is responsible for all of Mainland
China while directing the Group’s operations to meet budget and other
financial goals, as well as establishing goals, allocating resources and
assessing policies to drive the Group’s performance. Dr. CHAN has
over 15 years of experience in the apparel retailing and marketing
business.

Dr. CHAN holds a Doctorate degree in Business Administration from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a Master of Arts in Global
Business Management from City University of Hong Kong.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. Mark Alan LOYND' (Executive Director), aged 38, has been with
the Group since September 2013 and was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on March 9, 2017. Mr. LOYND is currently the
General Counsel, Company Secretary and Group Human Resources
Director of the Company. He oversees legal, regulatory, compliance,
corporate governance, human resources and talent development affairs
of the Group. Mr. LOYND is also chairman of the Risk Management
Committee and a member of the Management Committee of the
Company as well as director and company secretary of various
subsidiaries and joint ventures of the Group.

Mr. LOYND was called to the Bar in Hong Kong in 2007 and is a
Member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators in London, the United
Kingdom. He holds a Bachelor of Laws from Aberystwyth University
in the United Kingdom as well as a Master of Arts in Arbitration and
Alternative Dispute Resolution (with distinction) and a Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws, both from the City University of Hong Kong. He
possesses over 15 years of experience in handling regulatory and
compliance matters for listed companies, mergers and acquisitions,
joint ventures and other commercial law affairs, as well as labour and
maritime law issues.

Mr. Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI? (Executive Director), aged 58,
was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on February
1, 2013. He is also the chief executive officer and managing director
of Giordano Middle East FZE and a member of the Management
Committee of the Company.

As the chief executive officer and managing director of Giordano Middle
East FZE, Mr. CHUGANI heads the Group’s business in the Middle
East, India, Africa, Central Asia and Europe. Giordano Middle East FZE
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and provides strategic
support, logistics and management to the Company’s franchise
partners across the region.

Mr. CHUGANI began his career in 1979 when he set up Sindbad’s
Wonderland, the Middle East’s first Indoor Family Entertainment Centre
at the Al Ghurair Centre, Dubai.

In 1993, Mr. CHUGANI successfully entered into a joint venture with the
Company and has successfully expanded the business from its original
base in United Arab Emirates (“UAE”) to numerous markets around the
region.

! Appointed on March 9, 2017
2 Resigned on March 9, 2017
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Known for his distinct management and leadership style, Mr. CHUGANI
received the 2014 Retail Professional of the Year Award from the
Middle East and North Africa Shopping Centre and Retailer Awards
organized by the Middle East Council of Shopping Centres and the
International Council of Shopping Centers.

He has received numerous other accolades during his career including:
a Special Recognition award in the 2013 Arabian Business Indian CEO
Awards in Dubai, was named one of the Top 20 Indian CEOs in the
Arab World by Forbes magazine in 2013, 2014 and 2015; and received
a special recognition award from the Entrepreneurs Organization, UAE
Chapter in 2014.

Mr. CHUGANI is also a founding member and Advisor of the Middle
East Council of Shopping Centres. His contribution to the retail industry
in the region spans over 38 distinguished years.

Mr. CHUGANI studied business management at De La Salle University
in the Philippines, where he graduated with honours and was bestowed
the St. La Salle Award for 2012-2013 academic year as an outstanding
alumnus by his alma mater, De La Salle University in Manila,
Philippines.

Dr. CHENG Chi Kong, Adrian Jr (Non-executive Director), aged 37,
was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company on May
22, 2012. Dr. CHENG was executive vice-chairman and joint general
manager of New World Development Company Limited and has been
re-designated to executive vice-chairman and general manager with
effect from March 1, 2017. He is also an executive director of New
World Department Store China Limited, Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Group Limited and International Entertainment Corporation, and a
non-executive vice chairman of Modern Media Holdings Limited, all
are listed on the Stock Exchange. Dr. CHENG has been an executive
director of New World China Land Limited, which was a listed public
company in Hong Kong until its delisting on August 4, 2016. He is
a director of Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited. He is also the chairman of New World Group
Charity Foundation Limited. Dr. CHENG worked in a major international
bank from September 2003 to April 2006 and has substantial
experience in corporate finance.

Dr. CHENG holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree (cum laude) from Harvard

University, and was conferred the Honorary Doctorate of Humanities by
the Savannah College of Art and Design.
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Dr. CHENG is the vice-chairman of the Youth Federation of the
Central State-owned Enterprises, the vice-chairman of All-China
Youth Federation, a member of the Tianjin Municipal Committee of
The Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, the chairman
of China Young Leaders Foundation, the honorary chairman of K11
Art Foundation and a member of Board of the West Kowloon Cultural
District Authority.

Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong (Non-executive Director), aged 54, was
appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company on May 22,
2012. He is also as an executive director of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. CHAN
has been in the jewellery industry for 35 years.

Mr. CHAN also serves as member of the standing council of China
Gold Association, member of National Technical Committee on Jewelry
and Jade of Standardization Administration of China, vice chairman
of the Shenzhen Gold & Jewellery Association, administrative director
of the Gems and Jewellery Trade Association of China, executive
vice chairman of Guangdong Gold and Silver Jewellery Chamber of
Commerce, general vice-chairman of Gold Association of Guangdong
Province, vice chairman of the Guangdong Golden Jewelry and
Jade Industry’s Association, as well as director of the Gemmological
Institute, China University of Geosciences (Wuhan).

Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT (Independent Non-executive Director),
aged 72, joined the Group in May 1991. He is also chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Dr. BUTTIFANT was a non-executive director of Global-Tech Advanced
Innovations Inc. and China Nepstar Chain Drugstore Ltd., both of
which were delisted on NASDAQ Global Market LLC and New York
Stock Exchange in March 2016 and August 2016, respectively. Dr.
BUTTIFANT was also senior adviser to MCL Financial Group Ltd, the
arrangement of which terminated in the year. Dr. BUTTIFANT has been
re-appointed as a director of KLC Transactions Limited in January
2017, and is also appointed as a director of KLC Corporate Advisory
and Recovery Limited from the same date.

From 2011 to 2014, Dr. BUTTIFANT was an executive director of
Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Hsin Chong
Construction Group Ltd.) (“HCGH”) and a non-executive director of
Synergis Holdings Limited (“Synergis”) from 2009 to 2014, both of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

* For identification purpose only
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In July 2010, Dr. BUTTIFANT was an executive director of the IDT
International Limited. In October 2009, Dr. BUTTIFANT was a director
of Mission Hills Group (“MHG”) — corporate finance and prior to this
appointment, he was the consultant to MHG since December 2008.
Prior to joining MHG, Dr. BUTTIFANT served as a principal of KLC
Kennic Lui & Co. Limited (“KLC”), a professional accounting firm,
and managing director of KLC Transactions Limited. Prior to joining
KLC, Dr. BUTTIFANT was the executive director — finance of MHG. In
December 2004, Dr. BUTTIFANT was the managing director of Hsin
Chong International Holdings Limited, a controlling shareholder of
both the construction company, HCGH (which was acquired by MHG
in November 2007) and a property management service company,
Synergis (which was acquired by HCGH in September 2008). Dr.
BUTTIFANT was also an alternate director to both public companies.
Dr. BUTTIFANT was an operating partner of Baring Private Equity Asia
Limited. He was also the managing director of Auto lItalia Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited) (“Auto
Italia”) from 2001 to 2002 and was the Advisor to the board of directors
of Auto ltalia from November 2002 to April 2004. Prior to joining Auto
Italia, he was the managing director of IDT International Limited for over
8 years and had worked for Polly Peck Group and Sime Darby Hong
Kong Limited for more than 11 years in the capacity of finance director
and managing director. Dr. BUTTIFANT was formerly an independent
non-executive director of Alltronics Holdings Limited from 2005 to
2009 and Maxnerva Technology Services Limited (formerly known as
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited) from 1994 to 2015, both of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange. Dr. BUTTIFANT is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Chartered Management
Institute, the Hong Kong Management Association and the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. He has been awarded an honorary doctorate
of Business Administration (Honoris Causa) by Edinburgh Napier
University, United Kingdom in February 2013.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. KWONG Ki Chi GBs Jr (Independent Non-executive Director), aged
65, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company on April 26, 2004 and is a member of the Audit Committee
of the Company. Mr. KWONG is also an independent non-executive
director of another listed company, AMS Public Transport Holdings
Limited. Mr. KWONG graduated from The University of Hong Kong with
a Bachelor of Science degree in Physics and Mathematics and was
awarded a Master of Philosophy degree in Economics and Politics of
Development by the University of Cambridge, England. He has served
in the Government of Hong Kong for 27 years and held positions
principally in the economic and financial fields. He was the Secretary for
the Treasury from 1995 to 1998, with responsibility for public finances,
and Secretary for Information Technology and Broadcasting from
1998 to March 2000, with responsibility for information technology,
telecommunications and broadcasting. He left the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in March 2000 to join the
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited as executive director
and first Chief Executive, following the demutualization and merger of
the Stock Exchange, the Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited and
their associated clearing houses and retired in April 2003. Since then,
Mr. KWONG had served as the managing director/executive director/
non-executive director of various companies, including Hsin Chong
International Holdings Ltd, Hongkong Sales (Int’l) Ltd, Macau Legend
Development Ltd and Chenavari Investment Managers (HK) Limited.

Mr. KWONG is a non-official Justice of the Peace in Hong Kong and
has been awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

Mr. Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH (Independent Non-executive
Director), aged 56, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on June 28, 2013. He is also chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. RUDOLPH worked for
18 years as a Fund Manager for Franklin Templeton Investments, with
the last 14 in Hong Kong. Over that time, Mr. RUDOLPH developed
extensive knowledge and experience of businesses across the world
and Retail and in Asia Pacific, consumer producers were a particular
focus. Prior to his employment by Franklin Templeton in Hong Kong,
Mr. RUDOLPH worked for 4 years with Franklin Templeton in the USA,
and before that in London for 7 years at Morgan Stanley, 3 years at
UBS Philips and Drew and 3 years at Coopers and Lybrand (now
part of PricewaterhouseCoopers) in London. Mr. RUDOLPH has been
a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of England and
Wales since 1986. He holds a degree in Economic History from the
University of Durham in the United Kingdom.

*  For identification purpose only
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Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) (Independent Non-
executive Director), aged 46, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on November 11, 2015. He is also
a member of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of Company.

Professor HUANG is currently a Professor of Management at the
Department of Management, Hong Kong Baptist University. Since
2010, he has served as an Adjunct Professor in the Centre for Work,
Organization and Wellbeing, Griffith University. He has also been
appointed as a Visiting Professor in Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics since 2012.

Professor HUANG received an Honours Diploma from Lingnan
University (Hong Kong) in General Business Management in 1994, a
MA from Lancaster University (England) in Organizational Analysis &
Behaviour in 1996 and his PhD from the University of Groningen (The
Netherlands) in Organizational Psychology in 2002. He has worked as
a trainer for several companies in Hong Kong before commencing his
PhD studies in the Netherlands.

Professor HUANG’s research interests include empowerment;
leadership; employees’ well-being and emotions; cross-cultural
organizational psychology and management issues in China. He has
published inter-alia in the Academy of Management Journal; Journal
of International Business Studies; Journal of Management, Leadership
Quarterly; Journal of Organizational Behavior; Journal of Occupational
and Organizational Psychology; Journal of Cross-Cultural Psychology;
Management and Organization Review, Asia Pacific Journal of
Management; Journal of Environmental Psychology and International
Journal of Cross-Cultural Management.
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The Board is dedicated to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance within a sensible and practical framework. The
Board firmly believes that the principles of transparency, accountability
and independence are essential for upholding the interests of all
stakeholders and maximizing shareholder value.

The Board is committed to excellence in corporate governance, it is
responsible for developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance as well as compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements. On January 1, 2016, the Board has
adopted the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) as stated in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange as the Corporate Governance Code
of the Company in substitution of the Company’s Code on Corporate
Governance.

During the year of 2016, save for the deviations from Code Provisions
A.2.1, A.4.2 and A.4.3, which are explained in the relevant paragraph
below, the Company fully complied with the Code Provisions in the CG
Code.

BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. It sets the Group’s overall objectives
and strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and financial
performance and reviews the corporate governance standards of the
Company. It also decides on matters relating to annual and interim
results, notifiable transactions, appointments or re-appointments of
Directors, dividends and accounting policies. The Directors, individually
and collectively, are committed to act in good faith in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. The strategies and plans as
decided by the Board are implemented by management. Management
assumes full accountability to the Board for the day-to-day operation of
the Group.
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Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board is composed of four
Independent Non-executive Directors, two Non-executive Directors and
three Executive Directors.

The Independent Non-executive Directors and the Non-executive
Directors bring a diverse range of expertise, skills and experience to
provide effective guidance and an outside perspective to all major
decisions of the Group. To assist in the discharge of their duties, the
Directors have free and direct access to both the Company’s internal
and external auditors and procedures are in place to allow the Directors
to obtain independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.

Given the overall composition of the Board and the expertise, skills
and experience that each Director brings individually, the Group
believes that the Board is appropriately structured to provide sufficient
checks and balances to protect the interests of the Company and
its shareholders. The Board will regularly review its composition
to maintain a proper balance and diversity of expertise, skills and
experience to ensure continued effective leadership and oversight of
the Company’s businesses. Biographical details of the Directors are set
out on pages 36 to 42 of this annual report.

In accordance with good corporate governance principles, the Board
had established three Board Committees: the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee. In addition,
a Management Committee and a Risk Management Committee are
also in place to support the Board and the Board Committees. During
the year of 2016 and as at the date of this report, the composition
of the Board, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee is set out below. The Management
Committee and Risk Management Committee are discussed in the
relevant sections in this report.
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Audit Nomination = Remuneration

EEEHE Members of the Board Committee Committee Committee
HITES Executive Directors

2IEEE L Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter - C M

(FRRTEAEE) (Chairman and Chief Executive)
REEEL Dr. CHAN Ka Wai - - _
BBV A Mr. Mark Alan LOYND! - - -

Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANISE &2 Mr. Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI? - - -

SIERR ST A Mr. Dominic Leo Richard IRWIN? - - -
FHITESE Non-executive Directors

BENEL gp Dr. CHENG Chi Kong, Adrian Jp - - -
BRiEE T4 Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong - - -
BIFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors

2B L Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT C M M
BPE E L& aBs up Mr. KWONG Ki Chi s Jp M - -
Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH %t & Mr. Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH M M C
=HEHE Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) M M M
B it: Notes:

C ABHEZZEEWER
M BEHEEFZEEHKE
! R2017F3H9REZR T

2 R2017F3A9R BT
3 201643 A3H B T

FESTENEBZRAWLAME - X155 REHEAM
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¢} Chairman of the relevant Board Committees
M Member of the relevant Board Committees

! Appointed on March 9, 2017
2 Resigned on March 9, 2017
8 Resigned on March 3, 2016

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships with each other except that
Mr. KWONG Ki Chi serves on the board of AMS Public Transport
Holdings Limited as independent non-executive director; while
Dr. CHENG Chi Kong, Adrian serves on the board of New World Group
and subsidiaries as executive director and serves on the board of Chow
Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited as executive director; and Mr. CHAN
Sai Cheong serves on the board of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group
Limited as executive director.

It is the Board’s opinion that this relationship does not affect the
Directors’ independent judgment and integrity in executing their roles
and responsibilities.

Directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance

The Company has obtained appropriate directors’ and officers’
liabilities insurance in line with the CG Code.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Independent Non-executive Directors comprise four members of the
Board, as required under Listing Rules for the minimum of one-third
with at least one independent Non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors has confirmed with the Company in writing his
independence from the Company. The Company therefore considers all
of the Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

None of the Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-Executive
Directors owned any shares of the Company up to the date of this
report.

Trainings for Directors

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company provides a comprehensive induction package covering the
summary of the responsibilities and liabilities of a director of the listed
company, the constitutional documents and the Guides on Directors’
Duties issued by the Companies Registry to each newly appointed
Director to ensure that he is sufficiently aware of his responsibilities and
obligations as Director.

The Company Secretary reports from time to time the latest changes
and development of the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices
and other regulatory regime to the Directors with written materials, as
well as organizes seminars on the professional knowledge and latest
development of regulatory requirements related to director’s duties and
responsibilities.
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During the year of 2016, all Directors participated in the following

trainings:
EHER

EEZgNE Members of the Board Types of Training
HITES Executive Directors
2 HEE L Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter

(FRERITHAEZ) (Chairman and Chief Executive) A'B:C
PRe=fEE+ Dr. CHAN Ka Wai A*B'C
Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI %t 4 Mr. Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI A'B-C
PG LD Mr. Dominic Leo Richard IRWIN* TEA N/A
FHTES Non-executive Directors
B E MG L up Dr. CHENG Chi Kong, Adrian Jp A'B-C
BRIt B % & Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong A'B:C
BIEHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
2RAE L Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT A C
BEE LA eBsup Mr. KWONG Ki Chi GBS uP A’ C
Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH % 4 Mr. Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH A'C
= BEHE Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) A'B:C

A 2N S /R K/ iE

attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

B: A& MKEHEL/LHIE LIRS

giving talks at seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

C: HERLE  —REK BFZHRILETSEHAIHRE MELREHREHR

reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy, general business, director’s training and

responsibilities etc.

* R20164F3H3H FF T
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* Resigned on March 3, 2016
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Directors’ attendance and time commitment

The Board holds four regular meetings a year and additional meetings
as and when required. Regular Board meetings are scheduled in
advance to facilitate the fullest possible attendance. The Company
Secretary assists the Chairman in setting the agenda of the Board
meetings and each Director is invited to present any businesses that
he wishes to discuss or propose at such meetings. Furthermore,
all Directors have access to the Company Secretary for advice and
services to ensure that board procedures and applicable law, rules and
regulations are adhered to. Board papers are circulated to all Directors
and other attendees not less than three days before the Board
meetings to ensure timely access to relevant information. Draft and final
versions of the minutes are circulated to all Directors for comments.
Any Director who is unable to physically attend any Board meeting may
participate electronically by conference call or via alternate arrangement
in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws (“Bye-Laws”). Moreover,
pursuant to the Bye-Laws, Board approval may also be obtained by
way of circulation of a resolution in writing on urgent matters when
convening a Board meeting is not practicable. Sufficient information
and explanatory materials will be provided to the Directors at the same
time when a resolution in writing is circulated.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, four full Board meetings
were held to review the quarterly performance results and discuss the
Group’s strategy going forward, as well as other business. In addition,
one set of resolutions in writing were passed.
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Attendances of each Directors at the meetings of the Board, Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”) during the year ended
December 31, 2016 are as follows:

HER/EENY
Attendance/Number of Meetings
=g ENEEE R%ZEE FHzEE i
L E ] L L BEXE
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration

Board Committee Committee Committee
BEEpg Name of Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM
HITES Executive Directors
fEEEL Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter 4/4 T NA 11 11 1

(FERITEEH) (Chairman and Chief Executive)

REGEL Dr. CHAN Ka Wai 4/4 TEB NA TEA NA T NA 1/1
Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANIZ: £ Mr. Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI 4/4 @A NA @R NA @M NA 0N
TE R A Mr. Dominic Leo Richard IRWIN* il AEE NA NEENA A N/A AEE N/A
FHTES Non-executive Directors
BERMBL P Dr. CHENG Chi Kong, Adrian Jp 4/4 A NA A N/A AEE NA 0/1
[ jud=p Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong 4/4 TERE NA TEA NA TER N/A il
BUFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
ERAEL Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 4/4 2/2 1 11 1A
BEE%E s up Mr. KWONG Ki Chi 68s Jp 4/4 1/2 TE A N/A T A N/A 1/1
Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH% & Mr. Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH 4/4 2/2 11 il 11
ERHE Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) 4/4 1/2 11 1/1 1/1
EEEE Total number of meetings 4 2 1 1 1

BT RESHRARTREBZ AR - BRI
BETTEHERANTEELE T EE T -

* R2016%3H3H BT
EECERE. EERER

STRMEXEAA2G8TE  BUES (BRBHEEL
HMER)RBESE EPB=F—RK-
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In order to facilitate free and open discussion of issues, the
Independent Non-executive Directors may also meet without the
presence of the Executive Directors from time to time.

* Resigned on March 3, 2016

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTOR

Code Provision A.4.2 provides that every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.
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According to the Bye-Laws, any new Director (other than the Chairman
or the Managing Director) appointed by the Board is subject to
retirement and re-election by shareholders at the next general meeting
of the Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or at the next
AGM of the Company (in the case of an addition to their number)
following his appointment. At each AGM, one-third (or the number
nearest to but not exceeding one-third) of the Directors (other than the
Chairman or the Managing Director) will retire from office by rotation,
and every Director (other than the Chairman or the Managing Director)
is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

The Bye-Laws also allow for removal of a Director by an ordinary
resolution.

Currently, all Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive
Directors are appointed for a specific term of three years and subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election pursuant to the Bye-Laws,
whereas the Chairman or the Managing Director are not subject to
retirement by rotation.

In the opinion of the Board, stability and continuation are key factors to
the successful implementation of business plans. The Board believes
that it is beneficial to the Group that there is continuity in the role of the
Chairman and, therefore, the Board is of the view that the Chairman
should be exempt from this arrangement at the present time.

Code Provision A.4.3 provides if an independent non-executive director
serves more than nine years, his further appointment should be subject
to a separate resolution to be approved by the shareholders.

Mr. KWONG Ki Chi has served as an Independent Non-executive
Director for more than nine years since April 26, 2004. In accordance
with the Bye-Laws, Mr. KWONG retired from office by rotation at
the 2015 AGM and offered himself for re-election at the 2015 AGM.
An ordinary resolution was passed at the 2015 AGM to approve
the appointment of Mr. KWONG Ki Chi as an Independent Non-
executive Director. Mr. KWONG will retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming AGM and offer himself for re-election in order to comply
with Code Provision A.4.3.

The Board is of the opinion that Mr. KWONG Ki Chi remains
independent notwithstanding the length of his service and believes
that his extensive knowledge and experience will continue to generate
valuable contribution to the Company and the shareholders as a whole.
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At the forthcoming AGM, Dr. CHENG Chi Kong, Adrian, Mr. CHAN Sai
Cheong and Mr. KWONG Ki Chi shall retire by rotation in accordance
with Bye-Law 98 of the Bye-Laws.

Dr. CHENG Chi Kong, Adrian, Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong, and Mr.
KWONG Ki Chi, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM. Save for the aforesaid, the other Directors will
continue in office.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Currently Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter, holds the positions of Chairman
and Chief Executive. Such practice deviates from Code Provision A.2.1
which stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

In view of Dr. LAU’s extensive experience in the industry and deep
understanding of the Group’s businesses, the Board believes that
vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive in Dr. LAU
provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership, allows for
more effective planning and execution of long term business strategies
and enhances efficiency in decision-making.

The Board also believes that the Company already has a strong
corporate governance structure appropriate for its circumstances in
place to ensure effective oversight of management. The main elements
of this structure include:

° Having Non-executive Directors comprise three of five of the
Board;

¢ Including all for Independent Non-executive Directors as Audit
Committee members;

° Ensuring that all Independent Non-executive Directors have free
and direct access to both the Company’s internal and external
auditors and independent professional advice where necessary;
and

e Having a “whistle-blowing” mechanism in place to allow the
Group’s staff members to anonymously and confidentially report
to the Head of Internal Audit any suspected acts of fraud or
gross misconduct by senior management, including that of the
Chairman and Chief Executive. Details about the “whistle-blowing”
mechanism are discussed under the section “Risk Management
and Internal Control”.
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The Board believes that these measures enable our Independent
Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors to rigorously
supervise the Group’s management and effectively control key issues
relating to strategy, risk and integrity. The Board continually reviews the
effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance structure to assess
whether any changes are necessary.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all four Independent Non-executive
Directors and is chaired by Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT, a qualified
accountant with extensive experience in financial reporting and
controls.

The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors, reviewing and
monitoring the external auditor’'s independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process and discussing with the external
auditor the nature and scope of the audit. It is also responsible for
reviewing the Group’s financial information, overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting system and risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing the interim and final results of the Group prior to
recommending them to the Board for approval. To this end, the Audit
Committee has unrestricted access to both the Company’s internal and
external auditors. Its terms of reference are available on the websites of
the Company and Hong Kong Exchange and Clearing Limited (“HKEX”).

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year to review financial
reporting and risk management and internal control matters. The Head
of Group Finance, the Chairman of the Risk Management Committee,
the Head of Internal Audit, the Company Secretary and representatives
of the external auditor of the Company are expected to attend the
meetings. At the discretion of the Committee, other members of
management may also be invited to attend its meetings.

In 2016, the Audit Committee held two meetings. During the meetings,
the Audit Committee reviewed with the external auditors the audit
strategy summary, the final results for the year ended December
31, 2015 and the interim results for the six months ended June 30,
2016. The Audit Committee also reviewed the activities of the Group’s
Internal Audit Department and its internal audit report, and discussed
with management the report’s findings and recommendations on
the Group’s business operations. Besides, it also evaluated with
management the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems to ensure its effectiveness, with particular attention to the
adequacy of resources, the qualifications and experience of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting staff, as well as their training
programs and budget.
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The Audit Committee also reviewed the terms and conditions of
continuing connected transactions of the Group which took place
during the year.

Nomination Committee

In compliance with the requirements of the CG Code, on March 21,
2012, the Board established the Nomination Committee comprising
of three Independent Non-executive Directors and the Chairman, and
chaired by Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge,
experience) of the Board, on a regular basis, and to identify individuals
qualified to become Board members. It is also responsible for
assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors
and making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors. The recommendations of the Nomination
Committee are then put forward for consideration and adoption, where
appropriate, by the Board. Its terms of reference are available on the
websites of the Company and the HKEX.

The Board has also adopted a board diversity policy in 2013 which sets
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Company recognizes that increasing diversity at the Board level
will support the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
skills, regional and industry experiences, educational background,
race, gender, and other qualification. The Company will also take into
consideration its own business model and specific needs from time to
time in determining the optimum composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee has set measurable objectives based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, length of services and other qualities. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidate(s) will bring to the Board.
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In 2016, the Nomination Committee held a meeting to review the size,
composition and structure and diversity of the Board, and assessed
the balance of skills and experience of the Board as expedient
with diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of
the business of the Group and reviewed the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is composed of three Independent Non-
executive Directors and the Chairman, and chaired by Mr. Simon
Deveilliers RUDOLPH.

The Company adopted Code Provision B.1.2(c)(i) out of the two
models suggested by the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee
is responsible for reviewing and determining the remuneration,
compensation and benefits of Directors and senior management. When
the remuneration package of an individual Director is under review,
the Director in question is required to abstain from voting to avoid
any conflict of interest. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the
HKEXx.

In 2016, the Remuneration Committee held a meeting to review
the remuneration and bonus of the Chairman and Chief Executive,
confirmed the 2015 guaranteed bonus to the Chairman and Chief
Executive and ratified and approved the 2015 bonus payments to
Directors and senior management. The Chairman and Chief Executive
abstained from voting to avoid any conflict of interests at the said
meeting.

Management Committee

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
operations of the Group’s businesses to a Management Committee.
The Management Committee is fully accountable to the Board and
comprises the Chairman and Chief Executive and the Executive
Directors together with the Head of Group Compliance, the Head of
Group Finance and one senior management representative.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of Directors and their corporate governance
duties include:

e To develop, review and update the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

e To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

e To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

e To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors;

e To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report; and

e To develop, review and monitor the implementation of the
shareholders’ communication policy to ensure its effectiveness,
and make recommendation to the Board where appropriate to
enhance shareholders’ relationship with the Company.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company understands that a reasonable and comprehensive
remuneration package is an important factor in attracting, retaining
and motivating high quality personnel. As such, the Company
works to ensure that remuneration is competitive and aligned with
the Company’s objectives and performance. The Company takes
into consideration a number of relevant factors in determining its
remuneration policy, including the salaries paid by comparable
companies, job responsibilities, duties and scope, employment
conditions in the Group, market practices and the financial and non-
financial performance of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing and
determining the remuneration of the Directors. In doing so, the
Committee considers factors such as the fees paid by comparable
companies, time commitment, the responsibilities and likely workload
of the relevant Directors and other employment conditions in the
Company to ensure that the Independent Non-executive Directors and
the Non-executive Directors are appropriately paid for their time and
responsibilities to the Company.
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The Company’s remuneration structure for its employees, including
the Chairman and Chief Executive and the Executive Directors, is
composed of fixed compensation, cash performance bonuses, variable
cash incentives, long-term incentives, and retirement schemes as
discussed below.

Fixed compensation includes an employee’s basic salary, allowances
and benefits (e.g. medical). Basic salary and allowances are set and
reviewed annually for each position, taking into consideration the
Company’s remuneration policy, the Company’s and the individual's
performance as well as market conditions and practices. Benefits
are regularly reviewed and determined largely on the basis of local
standards and practices.

Employees are also eligible to receive an annual cash bonus based on
their performance at the Group, business unit and individual levels. The
bonuses awarded to the Chairman and Chief Executive, the Executive
Directors and members of senior management are reviewed annually
by the Remuneration Committee. In 2016, the cash performance
bonus component accounted for 65.6% of the total remuneration of
the Chairman and Chief Executive and the Executive Directors. Please
refer to Note 10(a) to the financial statements for details. In addition,
the Company operates sales and business-related incentive schemes
to motivate certain staff such as front-line sales associates to achieve
specific sales or other business targets of the Company.

The Company also operates share option schemes to provide long-
term incentives to reward and retain a high calibre management team.
The details of the schemes, together with information on options
exercised and outstanding in respect of the Executive Directors and
employees as at December 31, 2016 under the schemes, are set out in
the section of Share Option Information of this annual report.

Pursuant to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, the
Company participates in an MPF scheme registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority.

Details of Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments of the

Company are set out in Note 10 to the financial statements on pages
124 to 126 of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management
and internal controls, particularly in respect of financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions, and as such
monitors the effectiveness on an ongoing basis. Appropriate policies
and procedures have been put in place to safeguard the assets against
unauthorized use or disposition; control over capital expenditure;
maintain proper and accurate accounting records and enhance
the reliability of financial reporting; and to ensure efficiency and
effectiveness of operations and compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations. Such policies and procedures are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement,
loss, error or fraud, and to manage and minimize rather than eliminate
the risk of failure in the Group’s operational systems.

The Group’s risk management and internal control framework includes
the following major components:

e An organizational and governance structure with defined
responsibility, proper segregation of duties and delegated
authority;

e Systems and procedures of financial control, risk management
and internal control to identify and measure risks and conduct bi-
annual risk assessment to monitor the progress of risk mitigation;

e  Operational and financial budgeting and forecasting systems for
performance measurement, including regular variance analysis
against budgets and plans, and setting key business performance
targets with appropriate measures to rectify deficiencies;

e  Stringent policies and procedures for the appraisal, review and
approval of significant contracts, major capital and recurrent
expenditures;

e A “whistle-blowing” mechanism to allow the Group’s staff
to anonymously report any suspected acts of fraud or gross
misconduct by senior management, including that of the Chairman
and Chief Executive, to the Head of Internal Audit who will refer the
report to the Chairman of the Audit Committee for further action;
and

e  Strict internal procedures and controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information.
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The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for the
Group’s risk management and internal control system and the review
of its effectiveness to a Risk Management Committee. The Risk
Management Committee is composed of four members including the
Head of Group Compliance, the Head of Group Finance, the Head of
Internal Audit and one senior management representative. It reviews
all material controls in accordance with the Code Provisions on risk
management and internal control of the CG Code, and reports to
the Board twice a year. The Risk Management Committee is fully
accountable to the Board for providing assurance on managing and
monitoring the systems of risk management and internal controls.
The Committee evaluated and was satisfied with the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of the staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function as well as their training
programmes and budget for the year, and reported to the Board
that in all material respects the systems of risk management and
internal control over risks associated with the Group’s operations was
sufficient, appropriate and operated effectively on a continuing basis.

Co-operating closely with the Risk Management Committee, the
Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring the risk
management and internal controls of the Group.

The keys tasks of the Internal Audit Department include:

e Unrestricted access to review all aspects of the Group’s key
activities, risk management, control and governance processes;

e Conduct independent, comprehensive and regular audits
of financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of business and support units and
subsidiaries, including recommending improvements and
monitoring corrective or remedial measures taken by the units and
subsidiaries to minimize risk exposure;

e  Conduct special reviews of areas of concern identified by
management or the Audit Committee;

e Investigation of business ethics, conflict of interest and other
Group policy violations; and

e Qversee the “whistle-blowing” mechanism.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F #



AEREA A REBUARRRE - BEZRZEGRER
EBE#/EZEE  WIARRFEERKE -
NEHBEABANREARELAAETEEBRERS
UMEB 2 ENER  REEFTETESFRAM
EVZESERERTIZRHEHER  UEEELE
BERLE BEZZEQABRERZBANBETE
B MBANSGERAEELE -

F2016F BN AEE M EREERR T &
WE BB T AKREEARHARMES) - HEE
EBEEAFNEABITHE  WEREMRENE
ZEREG - MBERHRETORE - ABEREEZEE
EHEANEE BT

BERZNEESFA

ARRIERNA S EHESHETELRRHNITAST
Bl ([ETEAFRZNITASTE) « EFRITER
BRI ATE R BEITAETEITESR
SWEEST R ([EETA) Rz BF2ER] - I
ERENEH KRA2BEEFELHTERE 28
BEEHEREE2016F12A31B ILFEARND BT
TR REITTESFLX BNITHTRFT MR o

AN - ARAFR2005F3AERM T (A E T i
TRHERHEIEAESFR]) - WH20094F &2013F F
R ESR] UEEZEEENERAREEN
ETVvELFRS ZZETRIRE S RIERL
METEARBBLHFCEE - BeNRER - ARE
KA ERMRES -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F

TRELBHRES
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Adopting a risk-based approach, the Internal Audit Department
implements the audit plan approved by the Audit Committee and
management, which is based on a risk assessment methodology. It
furnishes independent and objective evaluations and recommendations
in the form of an internal audit report to management. The Head of
Internal Audit reports directly to the Audit Committee twice a year on
major findings, corrective actions and responses from management.
The Audit Committee has free and direct access to the Head of Internal
Audit without reference to the Chairman or management.

During the year of 2016, the Internal Audit Department issued audit
reports to management which covered significant business processes
and activities of the Group. It worked with management to establish
action plans to address any identified control weaknesses. Post-audit
reviews were performed to ensure those agreed actions have been
implemented as intended.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions”). This is on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules, and has been updated from time to time.
Having made specific enquiries to all Directors, all Directors confirmed
that they had complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code and the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions throughout
the year ended December 31, 2016.

In addition, the Company adopted in March 2005 and updated in 2009
and 2013 a Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Specified
Employees, which governs the securities transactions of those
employees who may possess or have access to inside information. The
said code covers areas such as prohibitions and conduct in the dealing
of the Company’s securities, avoidance of conflict of interests and
confidentiality of the Company’s information, etc.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period to ensure that they give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group, its financial performance
and cash flows for that period. The Group’s consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
are responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are
selected and applied consistently, and that where judgment has been
applied and estimates made, they are prudent and reasonable.

The statement by the principal external auditor of the Group,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, regarding their reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 74 to 81 of this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration charged by the Group’s principal external auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers and its affiliated firms for non-audit and
statutory audit services is set out below:

(X B EETHEN) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
IERRBEREREER Non-audit services (included tax- 1 1
ETREEZEFR related matters, certain agreed-upon
HAb B3R ARTS) procedures work and other
reporting services)
EEBEZ Statutory audit 5 5
mE Total 6 6

NEIWE
BEYHLEBE2013FOARETARME - I A
KEEREE -

EREFVAQAWEERE  BEXARMERHEE
RMERH - MEREFTENRFIEROER. A
AMBHIS BT - WEEBBTF RITHRAZM
BEEERNERERUER  URHEENHREIA
MERBERER -

7 ST A TR B R20165F N <7 L AR Bl $£3.291%
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Mark Alan LOYND has been the Company Secretary since
September 2013. He is also an employee of the Group.

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary for advice and
services to ensure that board procedures and applicable law, rules and
regulations are adhered to. He is responsible for advising the Board
through the Chairman and Chief Executive on governance matters and
facilitates induction and professional development of Directors.

Mr. LOYND confirmed that he has complied with Rule 3.29 of

the Listing Rules and received not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in 2016.
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INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

Earning shareholders’ trust and confidence has always been the
major emphasis of the Company’s efforts in investor relations. The
Group’s senior management keeps a constant and open dialogue with
the investment community through company visits, conference calls,
information sessions and participation in major investor conferences to
communicate clearly the Company’s business strategies, developments
and prospects. About 60 meetings with institutional investors and
research analysts were held in 2016.

The Company has a wide and diverse shareholder base of institutional
and retail investors. To ensure all shareholders have equal and timely
access to important company information, the Company proactively
utilizes internet and other forms of electronic communication to deliver
information in a timely and transparent manner. To strike a balance
between keeping shareholders abreast of the Company’s performance
on one hand and avoiding an unhealthy focus on short-term results
on the other, the Company decided against following the CG Code
Recommended Best Practice of publishing quarterly financial results.
Instead, the Company publishes operations updates for the first three
and nine month periods on the websites of the Company and HKEX.
Annual and interim reports, stock exchange filings, press releases and
other materials are also accessible on the corporate website.

The Board welcomes shareholders’ views on matters affecting the
Group, and encourages their attendance at shareholders’ meetings
to communicate any concerns they may have with the Board or
management directly. The Company’s AGM is an especially important
forum. In order to encourage and facilitate shareholder attendance
at its AGM, the Company gives at least 20 clear business days’ prior
notice. To ensure clear communication, each substantially separate
issue is proposed under a separate resolution.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws, any shareholder holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
to vote at general meetings shall have the right, by written requisition,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

Investors and shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at
shareholder’s meetings or to make enquiries of the Board may do so by
contacting our Investor Relations Department whose contact details are
listed on page 166 of this annual report.

The Company held its 2016 AGM on May 27, 2016. The meeting was
held at Block B, 3rd Floor, Tin On Industrial Building, 777-779 Cheung
Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
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The Chairman opened formal business at the 2016 AGM by advising on
the voting procedures and the level of proxies received. The following
proposed ordinary resolutions were passed by way of poll votings at
the meeting:

e  Adoption of the audited consolidated financial statements and the
reports from the Directors and the independent auditor;

e  Resolution on a final dividend;

° Re-election of retiring Directors;

° Re-appointment of auditor;

e Resolution on the grant of general mandate to issue shares; and

e Resolution on the grant of the general mandate to repurchase
shares.

The 2017 AGM will be held on May 26, 2017. Each of the resolutions
as set out in the notice of the 2017 AGM will be voted by poll pursuant
to the Listing Rules.

There was no change in the Company’s Bye-Laws during the year. If any
amendment to the Bye-Laws is necessary, according to the relevant law
governing the Company, the Company will propose the amendment for
shareholders’ approval at a general meeting of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of Special General Meeting on Requisition
by Shareholders

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
special general meeting of the Company (“SGM”).

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of
the Company or at the registered office of the Company, to require a
special general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition pursuant to Section 74
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Company Act”). If within
21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with
the provision of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act.

The written requisition requiring a special general meeting to be called
can be sent to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong as set out in the “Corporate Information” section of this annual
report for the attention of the company secretary.
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Procedures for Making a Proposal at General Meeting
by Shareholders

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which
may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company:

(@) any members representing not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of the Company on the date of the requisition; or

(b) not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposal must be deposited at the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong. The Company would
take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements, and
the shareholders concerned would be responsible for the expenses
incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements
under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once valid documents
are received.

As regards proposing a person other than the retiring Director
for election as a Director in a general meeting, please refer to the
procedures available on the website of the Company.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary at 5th Floor, Tin On
Industrial Building, 777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

Hong Kong, March 9, 2017
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The Directors are pleased to submit their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and of the
Group for the year ended December 31, 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
business of the Group is the retail and distribution of men’s, women’s
and children’s fashion apparel under Giordano and Giordano Junior,
Giordano Ladies, BSX, other less significant brands and non-
proprietary third party brands under license through its own stores as
well as third party franchisees. Although targeted at different market
segments, the brands all strive to deliver excellent quality, value and
service to consumers.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance by geography and by brand
for the year ended December 31, 2016 is set out in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business is provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis section on pages 8 to 35 of this annual report.
Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
can be found throughout this annual report, particularly in Note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements. No important event affecting the
Group has occurred since the end of the financial year under review.
The outlook of the Group’s business is discussed in the Management
Discussion and Analysis section on pages 8 to 35 of this annual report.
Certain financial key performance indicators which complement and
supplement our financial disclosures are set out on pages 2 and 3
as well as in the Management Discussion and Analysis section. An
account of the Company’s relationships with its key stakeholders and
discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and performance,
and compliance with the applicable laws and regulations are included
in the Corporate Governance Report and Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages 43 to 63 and pages ESG.1 to ESG.28 of
this annual report, respectively.

The above sections form part of the Directors’ Report.

Compliance with the Applicable Laws and Regulations

We have in place compliance procedures to ensure adherence to
the relevant laws and regulations that are relevant to the Group. The
Board is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
with the support and assistance of the legal and company secretarial
department.
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The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
the Companies Ordinance and the Securities and Futures Ordinance
as well as their subsidiary legislation, codes and guidelines are
the principal sources of our compliance obligations. Laws in other
jurisdictions may also apply to our non-Hong Kong operations, and
both in Hong Kong and elsewhere, we rely on the assistance of
external law firms and professional advisers to manage our legal and
compliance risks.

We communicate information on relevant new laws or changes in laws
and regulations to our staff to ensure compliance, and also regularly
remind our staff of their compliance obligations.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2016 and the
financial position of the Company and of the Group as at that date are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 82 to 159 of this
annual report.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of 12.5 HK cents per share was paid to
shareholders of the Company on September 23, 2016.

The Directors has recommended the payment of a final dividend of 15.0
HK cents per share for the year ended December 31, 2016, subject to
the approval of the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”), to those shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
June 7, 2017.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2016, the retained profits of the Company together
with the contributed surplus available for distribution amounted to
HK$765 million (2015: HK$820 million).

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at December 31,
2016 are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
ten fiscal years is set out on pages 2 and 3 of this annual report.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF

65



66

EEEHRES
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

BEBX

AEBRAFEERNZEZIBHNA46.2875 7T (2015
F:33688L) °

BITER
MR2016F12A31H » AEE B2.98E B LRTTE
FAER—FANEE (2015F + £) -

TEHERREFR

AEBERAFEATERERMENEERESD
LT

¢

BEH
RAHER 32%
hAHEREAEA R 50%

AERERAFERAERREPAENHEREY
K 730% °

AARAMEERHTABBEAREABRE (BEE
FTR MR AR A 7 BB TIRANS% A | ) B A
5 B () T A B B LA 5 o 5 L (T M2 o

iR 2=
KABZHRARKEZERZ &
R R M FE22 -

BREESR

KNG BTS2 HE R AR R BERERAE
EREEFBEHNAFREICOBEEF1658 -

HBER A

R EBELERERE
ARAZ AR L BRDELBERZRTE -
e R 1 B A R R S -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donations made for charitable purposes by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$462,000 (2015: HK$336,000).

BANK LOANS

As at December 31, 2016, the Group had bank loans of HK$298 million
(2015: Nil) that were repayable within one year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate percentages of purchases attributable to the Group’s
major suppliers during the year are as follows:

Purchases
The largest supplier 32%
Five largest suppliers combined 50%

The percentage of the sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers is less than 30% during the year.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholders (which, to
the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company) had a beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest suppliers and customers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are shown in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

A summary of the Company’s share option scheme and details of the
movement in share options of the Company during the year are set out
on pages 160 to 165 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws although there are no restrictions against having such rights
under the laws of Bermuda.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F #



BE HEIEEARAZLHES

HE2016F12A31H L FE » N AR Sk E K
BAAMEREE HEXELOAQREMLEME
%O

EEg
REFENRBEFRREE 2 BHL  AARZE
5

HITES
2 e tE =+
(FERITHAEZ)
PRe=fEE+
BB
Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI 4t 42
B B S AR

FHITES
WEMEL op
Rt 8 &

BIYFHITES

EiRAIE LT

BB E & 5 & GBS uP

Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH L 4
E9) R €53

i 201743 A9A KL T
2 H2017F3A9H B
3 H2016F3 A3 A FHT

RIBARA 2 ARAIRIFEISIERE - BEREL -

RUEEERERBEEREARNEERRBFAS
tRESR  ERENAER  AMBBRET-

E£H0 - ARAIESZZEABERFHNRANFR
FEI6EEFE428 °

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F

EEEHRES
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended December 31, 2016, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
(Chairman and Chief Executive)

Dr. CHAN Ka Wai

Mr. Mark Alan LOYND'

Mr. Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI?

Mr. Dominic Leo Richard IRWIN?

Non-executive Directors
Dr. CHENG Chi Kong Adrian Jr
Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT

Mr. KWONG Ki Chi GBS uP

Mr. Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH
Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu)

! Appointed on March 9, 2017
2 Resigned on March 9, 2017
3 Resigned on March 3, 2016

In accordance with Bye-Law 98 of the Company’s Bye-Laws,
Dr. CHENG Chi Kong, Adrian, Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong and Mr. KWONG
Ki Chi shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report are set
out on pages 36 to 42 to this annual report.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF

67



68

EEEHRES
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEEREM

BEFTREFEI35IBI)E  EEERBEARRQF
B 2201696 A30H IFHifE 2 R B & B HiAE O &
EFEFINAT

EEME

20166 A13B R AR ARIZHITEEMREET
T A EFFFH $2,220,000.005 T °

H2017F1 A1B#E » AR A EF LITIHEE 2
BT ESFEH S A3,543,336.00/8 7T °

2017F1A1H # » AR & Z ¥ 77 % Slshwar
Bhagwandas CHUGANI% £ 8] ¥ & B #H &
110,489.00/ 7T ° M201743 898 * CHUGANI%E
ABHERRAIPITES

EEEAEHR

#2016%  BEEMLHEATIFAANESS
B

e  Apex View Holdings Limited

e BHFARAR

e  CYU Advertising & Promotion Limited
o Eletop Limited

e  Giordano (Hong Kong) UK Limited

e  Giordano Cambodia Limited

e  Giordano Corporate Services Limited
e  Giordano Fashions LLC

o NP EERAF

° Giordano Investment Pte Limited

o (ENIABERATF

e  Giordano Vietnam Limited

e  Giordano.com Limited

e  Obvious Success Limited

s REGEBRAA

e Truly Smart Limited

BH2017F3A10E HBEMBELHFHAELES
RAR(—KREXER ETZ AR 28775
FTERBFEACERTANTREFFALE -

201743 A9H
TEE -

CEBXNELERRER/NREH

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51(B)(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information of our Directors since the report date of the Company’s
interim report for the period ended June 30, 2016 are set out below:

Directors’ emoluments

Dr. CHAN Ka Wai, the Executive Director of the Company, is entitled to
an annual salary of HK$2,220,000.00 with effect from June 13, 2016.

Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter, the Chairman and Chief Executive of the
Company, is entitled to an annual salary of HK$3,543,336.00 with
effect from January 1, 2017.

Mr. Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI, the Executive Director of the
Company, is entitled to a monthly salary of HK$110,489.00 with effect
from January 1, 2017. Mr. CHUGANI resigned as Executive Director of
the Company on March 9, 2017.

Personal information of Directors

In 2016, Dr. CHAN Ka Wai was appointed as director of our
subsidiaries as follows:

e Apex View Holdings Limited

e  Bluestar Exchange Limited

e  CYU Advertising & Promotion Limited
° Eletop Limited

e  Giordano (Hong Kong) UK Limited

e  Giordano Cambodia Limited

e  Giordano Corporate Services Limited
e  Giordano Fashions LLC

e  Giordano Holdings Limited

e  Giordano Investment Pte Limited

e  Giordano Limited

e  Giordano Vietnam Limited

e  Giordano.com Limited

e  Obvious Success Limited

e  Tiger Enterprises Limited

e Truly Smart Limited

Dr. CHENG Chi Kong, Adrian has been re-designated from executive
vice-chairman and joint general manager to executive vice-chairman
and general manager of New World Development Company Limited, a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, with effect
from March 1, 2017.

Mr. Mark Alan LOYND was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on March 9, 2017.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
do not have any service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the year, none of the Directors is interested in any business,
apart from the Group’s businesses, which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s businesses.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Details of the continuing connected transactions and significant
related party transactions are respectively disclosed under section
headed “Connected Transactions” on page 72 and in Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Save for the above, no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
or any its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or his
connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”), were as follows:
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REATRGBZHERE
Long positions in shares of the Company
FREAARZRAHE
Number of shares of the Company held
FTETERES BRER
(85 iz #&) Aotk
(Htat1) (12
Derivative Approximate
PN £ interests percentage of
EEHE Personal  (share options) CEl shareholding
Name of Director interests (Note 1) Total (Note 2)
21 27,318,000 - 27,318,000 1.74%
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI (47 Note 3) 1,200,000 1,766,000 2,966,000 0.18%
BR3 42 300,000 3,000,000 3,300,000 0.21%
CHAN Ka Wai
Bist - Notes:

(1) PTAETAEmZ AR DIEARTRMZ BEE &M
ETEEZENE BRAMRINAFREIG0EES
1658 -

(2) R IER2016F12A31 A AR A B 1T % 51,570,952,518
st -

(3) 201793 H9HEHT -

Br Eat #EFE SN 0 A20165F12A31H » AR AES
FEZTHABRABRESBZHEALIHERR
AEIHETRAEREE (TERESHSLPEEDIE
XVER) Z B - MR G S ES A BN E
FRAE G EISEREEF MR i m
AR KARBIZETAMGARNQR KB
ERTKAE °

EERERNHER 2R

BN ARFREI60E EF166E [ BAE Z EHH B
DAWBEEIN  RARBEFERNEAERE - ARF
HEALAIERAR - FRMER RSN E AR FGE
SLEFIYENZBEAERRRES (BRERFER
R ARMIBERE T X) Al & AR R A SR A A
B {0 K (& 7 M B 25
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(1) Derivative interests are share options granted to the Directors pursuant to the share
option schemes of the Company and details of which are set out on pages 160 to 165 of
this annual report.

(2) Based on 1,570,952,518 shares of the Company in issue as at December 31, 2016.

(3)  Resigned on March 9, 2017.

Save as disclosed herein, as at December 31, 2016, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under Share Option Information section on pages
160 to 165 to this annual report, at no time during the year under
review was the Company, or any of its holding companies, fellow
subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company (including their spouses and children under
18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at December 31, 2016, the following persons, other than Directors
and chief executive of the Company, had interests or short positions
in the Company’s shares or underlying shares was recorded in the

ZRERIREWT register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO:
FRAARZRAEE
Number of shares of
the Company held
BR&ER
BAk
(Hfit2)
Approximate
percentage of
TERRERE g #E RE shareholding
Name of substantial shareholders Capacity Long Position Short Position (Note 2)
Aberdeen Asset Management Plc HEKE 94,177,469 - 5.99%
and its associates Investment Manager
BlackRock, Inc. SEHEE 2 251,697,469 - 16.02%
Interest of controlled corporation
REHEE 2 B - 114,000 0.007%
Interest of controlled corporation
BlackRock Global Funds BHEEA 94,739,000 - 6.03%
Beneficial owner
Cheng Yu Tung Family XEEEE 2 #R 384,830,000 - 24.49%
(Holdings) Limited (4% Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation
Cheng Yu Tung Family XEEEE 2 #R 384,830,000 - 24.49%
(Holdings Il) Limited (44 Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited XEEEE 2 #R 384,830,000 - 24.49%
(#fz# Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation
BAREER)ERLRF REHER 2 s 384,830,000 - 24.49%
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited Interest of controlled corporation
(H1&# Note 1)
BARBREATRRF RIEHEE 2 384,830,000 - 24.49%
Chow Tai Fook Nominee Limited Interest of controlled corporation
(15 Note 1)
Sino Wealth International Limited BREBA 384,830,000 - 24.49%
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(1)  #2016%12A31H * Sino Wealth International Limited
¥ 5384,830,000 K ARG - HEHAAKBREAFR
RARZERA MAAXEREABRAFRHEKRE
(¥2h%) BBRA Rl Z#2H] - Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings)
Limited 2Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited?
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited? B4 5 4949.0% }.46.7%
#2% * MChow Tai Fook Capital Limited 8| 7 B A8 (32 i%)
BRDFFFELT78.6%MHE - HIkCheng Yu Tung Family
(Holdings) Limited * Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings i)
Limited + Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited ~ & A%& (¥ 5%)
BRAARBARBRIEABRRAEE RKSin0 Wealth
International LimitedFT# A8 2 R I P 6 #E as ©

(2) RIER2016F12A31H AR A B #1719 1,570,952,518
BRatE -

B SRR EEE SN - R20165E12A31H » AR A
WEERANRR ZRD REBROFESAEALA
KRAPIRIEFEHF M E G EI36EFEE 2 Bl
ZHRERTOAR o

EEAN
BREEAKIN  REFEN - ADALEIT T 08

TEAEARRERXERXG AR EIERT
K& -

BEFFREERX

BEARRZARMA ARAGREEREME
T B 1T H T S A 5 Rk A B 1
RTARSFRREE MARRREE  ARES
WADTZ BEFRABE - b ARFACHE
EALAHAMERTDRHEENEERE
EWMBERTRR -

BEREALTRS
REBRAFENE TN EABEYR SRR A H
B 75 K 34 -

BEXZ

RIBELETRAFIAAT - AEBERAFEARNRLZ
RDBUFERER S - HEHRRHE - 2 E
SRR Z FRE o

TR BEE SN - AREBRANFE AR EAE
ARE EWRAE1AAREL IR EE

%
ot
Nl
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Notes:

(1)  As at December 31, 2016, 384,830,000 shares of the Company held by Sino Wealth
International Limited which is a wholly-owned by Chow Tai Fook Nominee Limited,
which in turn controlled by Chow Tai Fook (Holdings) Limited. Cheng Yu Tung Family
(Holdings) Limited and Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited held approximately
49.0% and 46.7% interest in Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited respectively, which in
turn held an approximately 78.6% interest in Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and
accordingly each of Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited, Cheng Yu Tung Family
(Holdings Il) Limited and Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited, Chow Tai Fook (Holding)
Limited and Chow Tai Fook Nominee Limited is deemed to have an interest in the
shares of the Company held by Sino Wealth International Limited.

(2) Based on 1,570,952,518 shares of the Company in issue as at December 31, 2016.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2016, the Company had
not been notified of any interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which are required to be recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the
year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company’s Bye-Laws provides that each Director or other officer
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Company has maintained
appropriate directors and officers liability insurance in respect of
relevant legal actions against the Directors.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the year are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the transactions entered into by the Group that
constitute continuing connected transactions are exempted from the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any connected

transactions which were subject to the reporting requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution to re-appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company and to authorize
the Directors to fix their remuneration will be proposed for approval at
the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
Chairman and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, March 9, 2017
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Giordano International Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 82
to 159, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2016;
e the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

e the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
December 31, 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants ("the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
e Goodwill impairment and valuation of put option liability

e  Valuation of inventory

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BRESSHE
Key Audit Matter

BMNEANEEERENSE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

EERERBEHATHEEENME

Goodwill impairment and valuation of put option
liability

BREE U BREN 158 - B17326 1 H 5700 B
B BB EFPHIMEL) - 2(5)REZ S5 155 RHE+
HIHTEE40) > (i)

Refer to Note 15 “Goodwill”, Note 26 “Put Option Liability”,
Accounting Policies Notes 2(i), 2(s) and Critical Accounting
Estimates and Judgements in Note 4(i) & (ii) to the
consolidated financial statements

SIRRatEERBERNEEHRGS46188 T AP541(E
BTERENBBEN NP REBCATERPRER]) - 1t
HomBe#or#BEz —EHREeEFETUUTHBIREES
Bil) NETHERENR - S0 RERLAHAEFER
PREBHIFEFIERRAFAEORGERT - RHHER
ERNEBEEEABRBUAAEEIIT - R2016F12H31H
EEENRLCHEABRI21EET -

Of the HK$546 million goodwill on the consolidated
balance sheet, HK$541 million arose from the acquisitions
of the Giordano Middle East businesses (the “Middle East
Business”), which has been allocated to a group of cash
generating units (“CGUs”) for the purpose of goodwill
impairment testing. In addition, put options exist over the
remaining interests held by the non-controlling shareholders
of the Middle East Business. The put option liability is stated
at fair value at each balance sheet date, and as at December
31, 2016, amounted to HK$121 million.

WERREBAESHENTWESETHERSHEEED
HEANEEBEERHNRS MBI AER  WIEAREER
EWERAKAH

The assessment of the recoverable amount of the goodwill
and the put option liability valuation for the Middle East
Business were based on the same cash flow projections
prepared by management, using fair value less costs to sell
calculations.

BMAIZSHREERAARERL PR EEER P REKT
RREEFIEREE HE o

We focussed on these balances because the valuation
models involve significant judgements made by management
about the future results of its Middle East Business.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BMARBTEEEENEEEREKARANGERE i
BERZEAEZEGEES MR EEGEER - WiEEEE
ANBREEEHAEANKHREETER - AR BMESEL
ERAERBHZAIMNEEETHER  UTHEEENTEAE
2o

We evaluated management’s valuation models by assessing
the appropriateness of the valuation methodology, the
process and controls by which the models were drawn up
and compared the underlying inputs to the latest Board
approved budget. We also compared historic actual results
to those budgeted to assess the quality of management’s
forecasting.

HREZBEBEN T REYETETRNETREELE T 8
BGEB SR MURMEEEIFETRRANBRERR
A - FRIE

Given the uncertainty in the macro-economic environment
for a number of the CGUs in the Middle East, which has led
to difficult trading conditions, we have focussed on the key
assumptions and inputs used in the calculations, particularly:

e RAMRERARFEE  WREMEBELQFMITERBER
FrEMRLLERBEE R AEZEFI IR T EITIE
the risk adjusted discount rates used, and assessed
these against the cost of capital of the relevant
companies and industry and country specific
comparable entities;

e EHFEHEHRXERGEAETHNRRERE
RELERZERATREBHENZ OB - KRS
877 E & E R ERTER E R F EIMNIB T E1TER 5
EMBEREGEEERTBABETT LR -
the projected annual sales growth rates and the terminal
growth rates for the CGUs, as these were considered
to be the key drivers of the valuation of the Middle East
Business. We compared management’s assumptions
of these against external retail industry outlook reports
and country specific economic growth forecasts from
different sources.
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BMNEANNEEERENSE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

FEM®E

Valuation of inventory

BREE I BHENT20 &) - &FHEEF 890 732(m)
REZ@q1ha R HEr A ey ff it 4(i) -

Refer to Note 20 “Inventories” and Accounting Policies Note
2(m) and Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements in
Note 4(iii) to the consolidated financial statements

M2016F12ABTHERBNFFERBRIATEET - FE
RECABEA SR FENBREEINRTRE M BEHREK - RET
XGENAERFEEAG B ESEKEMEN
WEBERABICARZEP mRAMREFHFRETRATISK
MR I TBI R B P & o

The net inventory balance at December 31, 2016 was
HK$447 million. Inventory is carried in the consolidated
financial statements at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The net realisable value of inventory in the apparel
industry is difficult to estimate and could be impacted
by changes in economic conditions in places where the
Group operates, as well as changes to customer taste
and competitor actions in response to changes in market
conditions.

BB IZEERERARGA MR FEEReRRFERAN
AN BB E VR 2 e -

We focused on this area due to the inherent complexity and
judgement in estimating the amount of inventory provisions
required.
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We reviewed management’s sensitivity analysis and
performed our own sensitivities, where we flexed the key
assumptions within a reasonable range, to determine at what
level the headroom in the model would be eliminated.

ERRAERE  BMARREERBE N EER KA HENRER
BIRABEBEXF -

We were satisfied that management’s judgements and
assumptions used in the valuation were supportable, based
on the available evidence obtained.

BPARATZFERRIAZTHSBENFERSE - NERRE
EoRERENEEN  WARBEERRNENTE THER
B ZE & LE ] B SRR I o

We tested a sample of inventory items categorised into
different seasons of the year to gain comfort over the
categorisation and ageing of inventory and recalculated, on
a sample basis, the mathematical accuracy of the provision
percentage applied.

MBE2ERLHELSR BMNEUEEEUERNBL ERGRT
BERRWTEAREER - U E i FEREN S BN - K
MEKFFERERAEARRERHERETLE - WAGT
HEEEENGIRM -

We assessed the reasonableness of the provisions by
challenging management’s projections on current trends
and demands for the remaining inventories, with reference
to historic sales experience. We also assessed the
reasonableness of the inventory provisions by comparing a
sample of inventory items to actual post year end sales.

ERRERE BMRAREEENHERRANRLERE
BB

We found the assumptions made by management in respect
of the inventory provisions were supportable based on the
available evidence.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF

77



78

BURBA®RES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Hfs 8
BEARBEEAHABELAE - KR REFR
MMFARE R - BT REA M KRR LR E
CGE

BPEAHTBHRRNERLTREEMES &
PITRTEZFEMEREREMATANEEFS

[N
Ciiii

BABRMYAHMBHRERNBN - RAINEEEM
BEMES  FUERT  ZEEMEEERES
HHBEHRABRMEESFBEPHRTHEOBRF
EEREBEREUTFFEERERRANER -

ERBMCHTOTHE NREAMABRBEMESR
FEERBERRL  RAREREZEE - HES
| BPPREE @RS -

EERAEERSOHUBRRAKE
HEE

EAREFARERETESMAERMI(E
BB EREERD) REECRBERD) a5 R Z K
BEEEMTENAFYBERE  UHERRR/E
AU BBRERNBEE I FEARRFFAHERME
BERERRAPFOAMENER -

ERELHMTHREN SERENEEENLE
fmEm ) PEERER T RERSEEEEH
MEE URERFECEARIER RIES
AEREREERAELEE  ARELBERD
BERFE -

REERAREBESENMBREBRE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Tse Ming Yee.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, March 9, 2017
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

HZE2016F12A31B EFE

For the year ended December 31, 2016

(2R E TSN - (In HK$ million, Mt
HUEEETHAEN) except earnings per share) Note 2016 2015
SHE R Sales 5 5,145 5,381
iz RN Cost of sales (2,090) (2,284)
ES Gross profit 3,055 3,097
HElg A MEMUE - F5E Other income and other gains, net 6 85 89
DB A Distribution expense (2,299) (2,242)
THER Administrative expense (273) (388)
482 F Operating profit 7 568 556
MEEH Finance expense 8 (1) _
[N bl Share of profit of joint ventures 16 43 42
R B B A Profit before taxation 5 610 598
IR Taxation 11 (122) (118)
AR F E R Profit for the year 488 480
FEAE 3 F) - Profit attributable to:

RRAFIRE Shareholders of the Company 434 426

FEPE S 1 A 25 Non-controlling interests 54 54

488 480

RRNFREEN R 2 Earnings per share for profit attributable to

TR & A shareholders of the Company 12

AR GEN) Basic (HK cents) 27.7 27 1

g OB) Diluted (HK cents) 27.7 27.1

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE2016FE12A31MAILEE

For the year ended December 31, 2016

(X EEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
REEER Profit for the year 488 480
Hihsir e W= - Other comprehensive income:
RUEBEERERZER Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
At ESREE Fair value change on available-for-sale
NRrEz B (HiF17) financial asset (Note 17) 22 -
BHNHEB AR - AEAH Exchange adjustments on translation of overseas
EHRrinE 2 EH R subsidiaries, joint ventures and branches (35) (121)
TEEFEREZE KRR Total comprehensive income for the year 475 359
EhEsEe RS : Total comprehensive income attributable to:
iNZNE] 423 Shareholders of the Company 416 319
FEPE I MR Non-controlling interests 59 40
475 359
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

HZ12A31H
As at 31 December
B
(U B EETAEN) (In HK$ million) Note 2016 2015
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
EE Y e Property, plant and equipment 14 221 239
kS Goodwill 15 546 546
AR NRIRER Interest in joint ventures 16 480 503
AIEHESsmERE Available-for-sale financial asset 17 35 13
RIEBRZEEZAAE Financial asset at fair value
BREZEHEE through profit or loss 18 28 28

HETH RHES BN RIE Leasehold land and rental prepayments 19 192 205
HEZe Rental deposits 127 109
REFREE = Deferred tax assets 27 50 48

1,679 1,691
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 20 447 491
HE L RSB RIE Leasehold land and rental prepayments 19 51 47
JE LS AR SR T H A JE R Trade and other receivables 21 544 542
e RIR{THETT Cash and bank balances 29 1,393 1,076

2,435 2,156
EEHE Total assets 4,114 3,847
ERREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BAREE Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 22 79 79
] Reserves 25 2,470 2,483
BRI B Proposed dividends 13 236 228
KABIRE Equity attributable to shareholders

FE(hiE e of the Company 2,785 2,790

JEIz I M RE S Non-controlling interests 23 182 176
RSB Total equity 2,967 2,966

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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EHEEREER (R)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

HZ12A831H
As at 31 December
B
(X B EETAEN) (In HK$ million) Note 2016 2015
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
B LA & Put option liabilities 26 19 19
ELERIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 27 103 111
122 130

G IR=R Current liabilities
FERHBE N N EL A FE ST 3K Trade and other payables 28 538 559
BUHZHEEA A Put option liabilities 26 102 102
RITER Bank loans 30 298 -
18 Taxation 87 90

1,025 751
BEAE Total liabilities 1,147 881
ERREBEAR Total equity and liabilities 4,114 3,847
BEREBEE Net current assets 1,410 1,405
EEHERRBERS Total assets less current liabilities 3,089 3,096
2B R =&
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter CHAN Ka Wai
EZE EZE
Director Director
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EHEETRER
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

BHZ=2016F12A31ALFE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

B &t

(X EETHREN) (In HK$ million) Note 2016 2015
mEEK . Operating activities:
FR 25 A A Profit before taxation 610 598
A Adjustments for:
FEAE & % A R A Share of profit of joint ventures 16 (43) (42)
ME+THRMSTEMNZIEH  Amortization of leasehold land and

rental prepayments 19 67 58
A BHA Interest income 6 (12) (11)
e Depreciation 7 118 126
o3 B BR W B BT B 1 R P LA Gain on remeasurement of previously

AREENFTERLEFES held interest upon step acquisition

2 7 Was of subsidiaries 31 = 2)
HEME - BBEREE Net gain on disposal of property,

2 E plant and equipment 6 - (11)
At EemEEREREE Impairment loss on

available-for-sale financial asset 6 - 2
M I REEL Impairment loss on property,

FBEEE plant and equipment 14 1 1
RITERFE Interest on bank loans 8 1 -
BREER Share option expense 9 1 3
PE i 5 & Exchange difference (10) (33)
LEES FMBMTIEZE R  Operating cash inflow before changes

BB BN in working capital, interest and tax 733 689
FE 2R Decrease in inventories 44 o7
JE LS AR 51 e H At B R 2 (Increase)/decrease in trade and

(g m) @ other receivables (23) 40
JE A AR R S HMh R 2 (Decrease)/increase in trade and

Rk 2>) /1 N other payables (21) 45
LEEYMEE RS Cash generated from operations 733 801
24 B Interest paid (1) -
BEREBHER Hong Kong profits tax paid (20) (13)
B8R IE Overseas tax paid (94) (76)
REEBCHS Net cash inflow from

RAFEE operating activities 618 712

86 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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EHRERER (K)
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

BHZ=2016F12A31HILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

B &t

(X EETHREN) (In HK$ million) Note 2016 2015
REFEK . Investing activities:
BEWE  HWBINEME Purchase of property,

plant and equipment 14 (104) (98)
HeEME  HERRE WA Proceeds from disposal of property,

pland and equipment 4 15
U BE B B A A Acquisition of subsidiaries

(RBRIBTEF LIRS EE) (net of bank balances and

cash equivalents acquired) 31 - 16
MELTHRASEMRIE I Increase in leasehold land and

rental prepayments 19 (59) 47)
HEES 2D Decrease in rental deposits 1 16
RITEHFERZ (M) B (Increase)/decrease in bank time deposits 29 (100) 90
=R &S Interest received 12 11
SR E= RN g Dividends received from joint ventures 16 33 35
REXEKZHS Net cash (outflow)/inflow from

GRE) " RARE investing activities (213) 38
Eﬂﬁ%ﬁ : Financing activities:

BITRAFISEIR Proceeds from issue of share capital 2 3
B I HI MRS AR B Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (53) (46)
EREE Dividends paid (424) (424)
FIZIRITER Addition of bank loans 298 -
MEXKEESRHUBE Net cash outflow from financing

activities 177) (467)
REPRSEEZIEM Increase in cash and cash equivalents 228 283
FNRESRBESEELER Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year 939 688
ReRESEENEER Effect of foreign exchange rate
BE2E changes on cash and cash
equivalents (11) (32)
FRECRESESEER Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the year 1,156 939
RERREEERFEZIN ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
He RFI1THE Cash and bank balances 29 1,393 1,076
o FERAE i_{lﬂ LA EZIH]  Less: Bank deposits with maturity over
ZIRITE BAFE R three months (237) (137)
1,156 939
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2016F12A31HILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

%8
GROUP

RAARRERER
Attributable to shareholders of the Company

(NBERTAEN)
(In HK$ million)

e
Share

capital

SARH
Contributed

surplus

&%
ROG%
Capital
redemption

reserve

BRE

L
KRR Share ENGE A%
Share options Exchange Other

premium reserve reserve reserves

TlttEse
REERR
Available-for-
sale financial

asset reserve

EREd
Retained

profits

FEHH
B
Non-
controlling

interests

BEEE
Total
equity

R01651A18
At January 1, 2016

79

383

918 2 40) u

1,351

2,790

176

2,966

REREA
Profit for the year
Hthira s -
Other comprehensive income:
-TREESRAELLEZED
Fair value change on available-
for-sale financial asset
-BOMBLAA AR
RARTREZESBE
Exchange adjustment on
translation of overseas
subsidiaries, joint

ventures and branches

- - (40) -

2

434

434

2

(40)

54

488

2

(33)

f5ake

Total comprehensive income

- - (40) -

2

434

416

59

475

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

%8
GROUP

RAARRERER
Attributable to shareholders of the Company

HZE2016F12A31HILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

(N BERTAESN)
(In HK$ million)

e
Share

capital

SARH
Contributed

surplus

&%
ROG%
Capital
redemption

reserve

RiEE
Share

premium

BRE
R
Share
options

reserve

EXRE
Exchange

reserve

A%
Other

reserves

TittEse FEHH

REERR B
Available-for- ERER Non- BEEE
sale financial Retained &% controlling Total

asset reserve profits Total interests equity

BREERS:
Transactions with owners:
FRAAE
Transfer among reserves
Bl
Share option scheme
-RiTRBREREG R
Shares issued upon exercise
of share options
-BREER
Share option expense
FEHERERE
Dividends to non-controling
interests
0155 RERE (W 13)
2015 final dividend (Note 13(b))
165 BRE (it 13)
2016 interim dividend (Note 13(a))

()

- - - (53) (53)

- (228) (228) - (228)

- (196) (196) - (196)

ARREEALERAAAT
HEADREE

Total contributions by and
distributions to owners of

the Company

®

- 15) (421) (83) (474)

HfEELERS
Total transactions with owners

®

- (415) (421) (59) (474

R2016%12531R
At December 31, 2016

79

383

920

(60)

4

2 1,370 2,785 182 2,967
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EHERBEH R (K)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

BZE2016F12A3BIEFE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

%8

GROUP
TRARERERS
Attributable to shareholders of the Company
v e ] AfLE SRR
{1 i SRAERR s
e GARH Capital Rt Share ER &R e Avallable-for- Zraf Non- BakE
(HEEETAEN) Share  Contriouted ~ redemption Share options Exchange Other sale financial Retained At controling Total
(In HK$ milion) capital surplus reserve premium resernve reserve reserves  asset reserve profits Total interests equity
1201551 A1H
At January 1, 2015 78 383 3 916 22 67 9 - 1,346 2910 174 3,084
REREA
Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 426 426 54 480
Hthira s -
Other comprehensive income:
SENMERE BERAR
ARAREELAE
Exchange adjustment on
translation of overseas
subsidiaries, joint ventures
and branches - - - - - (107) - - - (107) (14) (121)
BEalE
Total comprehensive income - - - - - (107) - - 426 319 40 359
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EHEZED R (K)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

HZE2016F12A31HILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

&
GROUP
ARAREEGER
Attributable to shareholders of the Company
EX Ble EHES S
el L CREERR 30
Bx GARH Capital Rt Share EiER EEE  Avalable-for- ERA Non- EaeE
({EERTEEN) Share  Contriouted ~ redemption Share options Exchange Other sale financial Retained At controling Total

(In HK$ milion) capital surplus reserve premium resernve reserve reserves  asset reserve profits Total interests equity

BREERS
Transactions with owners:
LR
Transfer among reserves - - - - 8] - 2 - 3 2 - )
B
Share option scheme
-RiERERE T2 R
Shares issued upon exercise
of share options 1 - - 2 - - - - - 3 - 3
-EREER
Share option expense - - - - 3 - - - - 3 - 3
ABaNEENERER
(i)
Non-controling interests arising on
business combination (Note 31) - - - - - - - - - - 8 8

BRENBARMEE 2R EH

ERg&E MWL)
Recognition of put option

liability arising from acquisition

of subsidiaries (Note 31) - - - - - - (19) - - (19 - (19)
b ERRS
Dividends to non-controling

interests - - - - - - - - - - (46) (46)
1UERBRE (Wt 13t)
2014 final dividend (Note 13/6)) - - - - - - - - (228) (228) - (228)
WI6FREARE (H:198)
2015 interim dividend (Note 13(a)) - - - - - - - - (196) (196) - (196)

ARAREALERMALA
AREADREE
Total contributions by and
distributions to owners of
the Company 1 - - 2 - - [21) - (421) 439) (38) [4m

BFEEERS
Total transactions with owners 1 - - 2 - - (21) - (421) (439) (38) 477)

2015512431 A
At Decerber 31, 2015 79 383 3 918 2 (0) I - 1351 2,790 176 2,966

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

1.

—RER

ERREBEER AR ([ARQR]) REWES
naEl (HBIAEE]) FB—@% A %£2,400
MIEH I EMIOZEER cEEMEDHERL
4 & Giordano K.Giordano Junior ~ Giordano
Ladies « BSX « EMHBEE /N Z Mg RIREL
BB EE =M 2R ERE -

AR RN1995F3A3H R IE A K ZE19814F
RAVEEBREAMKNLAZREBREM
NE) e AP EEM PN Canon’s Court, 22
Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda °
HEBTZEEMBMURBEBENERYERE
TI7T-TTR R LZ T X KESE - RRAIHEFH
REABEXSGMBRARILNE—MH LT
(B fa 5% - 709) ©

BREFRIGERRIN  RAEHBBHRRUBEE BT
BEAL - WA I K REKXE KR2017F3H9H
EEEoRBE -

TESTEE
BRABHYBBRREANEZSATBRH
RTEX - BARERBIN  WEBREMII R
FMEFENERER -

(a) MBEEE
AKEHDBHRERDIZBREBSTMAE
([BFegHmAg)BHh 2 E@BE AR
BHmEER ([BEAWBHREELED]D R
2o REHUBERIEZEBELKAEZRE
BEMRAUHRHESRHEE  REBEERIE
NABEREBZEMEENRTES/RT

B2 AR ERFEMELER -
HEERFBVHEREENGERHY B RE

HEEER - LEZQ A -BEHEE
NHEBEEBAEE 2 ST BREEH
HE o —LFESEHE RS R EEER
B AHAHMBRERBEEARZE LR
AR ANA RO MY REA R -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Giordano International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) distribute and sell fashion apparel under
the brand names of Giordano and Giordano Junior, Giordano
Ladies, BSX, other less significant brands and non-proprietary
third party brands under license through an extensive network with
approximately 2,400 shops spanning over 30 countries.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on March 3, 1995 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda.
The address of its principal place of business in Hong Kong is 5th
Floor, Tin On Industrial Building, 777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company has its primary listing on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 709).

The consolidated financial statements have been presented in
million of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ million) unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board on March 9, 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-
sale financial asset, financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss and derivative financial instruments, which are carried
at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. FESFBE (&)
(b) MBEREER 2 ERNTE

(c)

AEBEEAT ZEHER] - W R2016
FIABR 2 B2 AEBYRFEE
e

- KBHRAZERSNHAR-FEN
B E R E1RAE 2

— EBEBEMENEBHENUEZTE-&
AastERE16E BB G LR
SE3BSRHYE N -

— B FRE%ER2012-2014AH K
FENE R

- BEES-FEEEAZRE
2 -

SR S5 B 8 R E (A1 B0 0 A
2 EFATERUARBUELLE -

fef R B% 40 Y 37 28 B A 2 X

% TR A AN R e & B K% AR 12 #2016
FIATBRABNFEERBER - BEX
BEAGHMBRETER - LEFER
ERMEBEER TG HAREENE HH
BRREKEATE  WATIEHER
B

ERMBRELERFISHK[EARTF
ZEHNEREEHBA

BE QRN D G D B U ATER AL
Al o B E B ERIF185E OB E
HEE MR HRBEENKRA) MEE
S EAE R OCREZERR) - %
A9 R Bl AW A T & ah 3 IR 75 B0 4% Il #E
BEEEFEER - WERTHFE2EE
PR SEE SRR TT AR
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201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b) Impact of new and amended standards

(c)

The Group has adopted the following amended standards
which are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning on
or after January 1, 2016:

Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations
- Amendments to HKFRS 11;

—  Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and
amortization — Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38;

— Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle; and

- Disclosure initiative — amendments to HKAS 1.

The adoption of these amendments did not have any impact
on the current period or any prior period and is not likely to
affect future periods.

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

A number of new standards and amendments and
interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after
January 1, 2016 and have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. None of these is expected
to have a significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, except for the following:

HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with
customers”

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the recognition of
revenue. This will replace HKAS 18 which covers contracts for
goods and services and HKAS 11 which covers construction
contracts. The new standard is based on the principle that
revenue is recognized when control of a good or service
transfers to a customer. The standard permits either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach for the
adoption.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

2. FESFBE (&)
(c) 7= AR Bk 4k B9 37 2 B M0 A2 32 ()

BRVBREEAFIGHREF
ZENEREENRAL(E)
EEERAERANERNESES G
BRERNTE - WER - AERBEREMA
MEAGEECHUBRENTE -F
BB M & A RISB 1657 MR FE20184F 1 A
1R ZRABMPERFERM - B AT
AREBFEE TS E LR B HAT R Ak £
U

BERVBREERF165%HE ]
FRMBHREERNE165[HE | HEHK
ETEHAHEREERBRAER
KREHERBEHENE D HME -
RIBZFER - BE (ZHEHERBHER
B)EXNEENERA BEERER - 1
—PISNE REMEEERS -

L ERB T EYEEBLCEREN ST
BRIE - NIRERE  EEBTHEUEMNL
S EFIE15.44188 L (R HE32) - A
i EENDABETCZSAESEREE
MEERRRAHERNEE - AR
A EEENFBMRESREDE -

I ETEB VB E2019F1 B1H 8 2 % 5
IRBT I E RN o B Al - AEETEFT
SR B AT ER A 22l o

BB EM AR ERN BB RS R
5B (ARMBRERELZES) -
BASHEHEHAKREEEATE -
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) New standards and interpretations not yet

adopted (continued)

HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with
customers” (continued)

Management is currently assessing the effects of applying
the new standard on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. At this stage, the Group is not able to estimate
the impact of the new rules on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial
years starting on or after January 1, 2018. At this stage,
the Group does not intend to adopt the standard before its
effective date.

HKFRS 16, “Leases”

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being recognized on
the balance sheet, as the distinction between operating and
finance leases is removed. Under the new standard, an asset
(the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay
rentals are recognized. The only exceptions are short-term
and low-value leases.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for Group’s
operating leases. As at the reporting date, the Group has
non-cancellable operating lease commitments of HK$1,544
million, see Note 32. However, the Group has not yet
determined to what extent these commitments will result in
the recognition of an asset and a liability for future payments
and how this will affect the Group’s profit and classification of
cash flows.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after January 1, 2019. At this stage,
the Group does not intend to adopt the standard before its
effective date.

There are no other HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC) interpretations

that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a
material impact on the Group.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Subsidiaries

(i)

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognizes any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognized in profit or loss.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

Consolidation (continued)

Business combination (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured
is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealized
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform
with the Group’s accounting policies.

Change in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
in their capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposal to non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at
the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognized in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognized in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries (continued)
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(e)

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost,
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or
joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and
obligations each investor have. The Group has assessed
the nature of its joint arrangements and determined them
to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for
using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognized at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognize the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of
losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests
in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the joint ventures), the Group does
not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
ventures.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Joint arrangements (continued)

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and
its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealized losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the
joint ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the senior decision-
makers. The senior decision-makers, who are responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, have been identified as the directors and
senior management that make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s companies are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the company
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(HK$), which is the Company’s functional and the
Group’s presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the transaction dates or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognized in the consolidated income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognized in profit or loss as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets, such as equities classified as
available for sale, are included in other comprehensive
income.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii) Group companies

(iv)

The results and financial position of all the group
companies (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
balance sheet date;

— income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average rate is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case, income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rate on
transaction dates); and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognized in
other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entities and translated at the
closing rate. Exchange differences arising are recognized
in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
equity holders of the company are reclassified to profit or
loss.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Property, plant and equipment

Buildings, leasehold improvements and other fixed assets
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Cost represents the
purchase price of the asset and other costs incurred to bring
the asset into its existing use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

- Freehold land is not amortized.

—  Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years
after the date of completion.

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease or their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years after
the date of completion.

-  Plant and equipment 5 years
—  Other property and equipment 3 - 5 years
Assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and

adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognized in
the consolidated income statement.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F #



B HmRMEE (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. TESFHE &)

(i)

1)

Gk

BEELBWBTRA BERAIRA
BT WHERMBREERKES
HEENMERESEANFTREOREE
THRENESAERBRANDAEEER
AEERGNRKBINAHRAFEE
NAEEMEE -

RERHAMNS EXHEHTEAN
BAEREgsEESEARSELETIRS
EH BT (FRR R (A o E 3 R
#) c AEROENEEE TxETMAE
EIRARBREZIEAREEAZNR
EER - EEELEN B RETTERE -

HEBRNRERSSFET  NMEH
HBENBEE BRI TR (E - BIE A
B o 7 E AR B B A) e O 2 EE (f2
REEEAREEREENARSE) L
8o ERBERNBER R L RTE
FziEEEEE -

FERMEERE
ERSaTRENEES W AAHER
MEERFBHEE  EBSFARBEETA
Ao AFEENEE  EREMHHIRAE
ot B B U AR T 1B P RE DA UK (B B o
TRERS - REBEREENKREE
BHEATKE AN ZEER - A iE
THANEENAAEBENRBEERAN
EREERE ZHARSERE - RFERE
B BEZUSRAHERASRE R
ELET)NREERAES - BREEN
EXXBENFESREEESERS A
HI R E R S Al ABEETTIRET

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F

201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

1)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures and represents the excess of the
consideration transferred, the amount of non-controlling
interest in the acquire and the acquisition-date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquire over the fair value
of the net identifiable assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
a potential impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher
of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognized immediately as an expense and is
not subsequently reversed.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortization and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value-in-use. For the purpose
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
level for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Financial assets
Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
classified in this category as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-
current.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months after the
balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group’s loans and receivables comprise
“trade and other receivables” and “cash and bank
balance” in the balance sheet.

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified
in any of the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12 months of
the end of the reporting period.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Financial assets (continued)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on the trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognized at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognized at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed
in the consolidated income statement. Financial assets are
derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” category
are presented in the consolidated income statement within
“Other income and other gains, net” in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognized in the consolidated
income statement as part of other income when the Group’s
right to receive payment is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available for sale are recognized in
other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognized
in equity are included in the consolidated income statement
as “gains and losses from investment securities”.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Impairment of financial assets

(i)

Assets carried at amortized cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss
event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognized in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan or held- to-maturity investment has
a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient,
the group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument's fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognized (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognized
impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated income
statement.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(ii) Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the
case of equity investments classified as available for
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost is also evidence that the
assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognized in profit or loss — is removed from equity
and recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognized in the consolidated income statement
on equity instruments are not reversed through the
consolidated income statement.

(m) Inventories

(n)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis.
Cost of purchased goods is invoiced prices plus procurement
costs.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price at which
inventories can be sold in the normal course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within bank loans in current liabilities on
the consolidated balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

Bank loans

Bank loans are recognized initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and are subsequently stated at
amortized cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognized
in the consolidated income statement over the period of the
bank loans using the effective interest method.

Bank loans are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

t)

(u)

Put option arrangements

The potential cash payments related to put options issued
by the Group over the equity of subsidiary companies are
accounted for as financial liabilities when such options may
only be settled other than by exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of shares in
the subsidiary. The amount that may become payable under
the option on exercise is initially recognized at fair value with a
corresponding charge directly to equity.

The Group recognizes the cost of writing such put options,
determined as the excess of the fair value of the option over
any consideration received, as a financing cost. Such options
are subsequently re-measured at fair value as a result of
the change in the expected performance at each balance
sheet date, with any resulting gain or loss recognized in
the consolidated income statement. The charge arising is
recorded as a financing cost. In the event that the option
expires unexercised, the liability is derecognized with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which they are incurred, except
to the extent that they are capitalized as being directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale.

Current and deferred tax
(i) Current tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Current and deferred tax (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Current tax (continued)

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on interests in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Current and deferred tax (continued)
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(ii) Deferred tax (continued)
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(iii)

Outside basis differences (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognized on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements only to
the extent that it is probable the temporary difference will
reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference can be
utilized.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

(v) Employee benefits

(i)

Pension obligations

Except for the pension scheme arrangements in Taiwan,
the Group operates defined contributions schemes and,
if applicable, participates in central defined contribution
provident fund schemes for all qualified employees. The
assets of the said schemes are held by independently
administered funds separated from those of the Group.
Contributions to these schemes are made by both the
employers and employees at rates up to 20% on the
employees’ salaries.

The Group's contributions to the defined contribution
plans and mandatory provident fund scheme are
expensed as incurred and, if applicable, are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the scheme or the plan prior to vesting fully in
the contributions. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been made.

The branches of wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group
in Taiwan have a defined benefit scheme (“Old Scheme”)
governed by the Labor Standard Law and a defined
contribution scheme (“New Scheme”) governed by the
Labor Pension Act which became effective on July 1,
2005.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF

109



110

B %R M EE ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2016412 A31H
December 31, 2016

2. FESFBE (&)
(v) BE®R (&)

(i)

(ii)

RAKEHE (H)

HES T AEEFETRRAR
HNESXNBEIZERKEES

MBBERNEFERRE CEKRE
FEBEBZ2REGNE T 2R
FE /ENRARITE2ESR

FolBmZ2%RBENRE - IRE
R EREBBFEMIL AN &
HEOERREEED R A ERITR
% o

EFHT - 8B REHREZET
SINBIZERFS  RARE®
KRR E - &= iEE LR A9,0007T
S WYHFEAEINSIRREZ
BABRFEA

BURR 1 3249 B9 F K

REBERE -HEUREGE AR
XMz HETSE - AEERE L
BREMNSEERBEZAAER
R VER X - BB A HE 57 8 HA R
IXHERBED2ECROBREZ
NAEMERE @ MR REMIED
LRBELZZE (PIMANENR
HEREBER) - FMERBELE
RREHA FTEZERESRE Z
BRA-REEEH AKEHE
CHESERRS DIy 18
ZHAB - EBFRREFRFOER
2 ARAMHFNERAER AR
ERTHBHEYRRESIERE

AL

ERBEEITER - SWEER
ARMBREMERE R HRARET
ABA (E{E) R EES -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v) Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Pension obligations (continued)

Under the Old Scheme, the Group has an obligation
to ensure that there are sufficient funds in the scheme
to pay the benefits earned for the service years of all
employees before the New Scheme was effective and
the subsequent service years of employees who chose
to continue to participate in the Old Scheme. The
branches currently contribute at 2% of the total salaries
of participating employees as determined and approved
by the relevant government authorities. The assets of the
Old Scheme are invested by the Bank of Taiwan.

Under the New Scheme, the branches contribute each
month at 6% of the salary of employees, with a cap of
NTD9,000 who choose to participate in the New Scheme
into individual pension accounts at the Bureau of Labor
Insurance.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognized as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. At each balance sheet
date, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to become exercisable.
[t recognizes the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the consolidated income statement
and a corresponding adjustment to equity over the
remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w) Provisions

(x)

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be
made.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, rebates, returns
and value added taxes. The Group recognizes revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement.

(i) Sales of goods - retail

Sales of goods are recognized when products are sold
to the customer. Retail sales are usually in cash or by
credit card. The recorded revenue is the gross amount of
sales, before netting off credit card fees payable for the
transactions. Such fees are included in distribution costs.
Revenue is shown net of returns, rebates and discounts.

(ii) Sales of goods - wholesale

Sales of goods are recognized when products are
delivered to the customer, the customer has accepted
the products and collectibility of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

(iii) Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method, taking into account
the principal amount outstanding and the interest rates
applicable.
(iv) Royalty income
Royalty income is recognized on an accrual basis
in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

(v)

(2)

Revenue recognition (continued)
(v) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive
payment is established.

(vi) Rental income

Rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Leases (as the lessee)
Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Rental payments applicable to such
operating leases are charged to the consolidated income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease periods.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognized as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities exposed it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, cash
flow interest rate risk and price risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Group
uses derivative financial instruments to manage certain risk
exposure when necessary.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from commercial
transactions, recognized assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations. Foreign exchange
risk arises when future commercial transactions or
recognized assets or liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.
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LEGHKE YEEXEERR -

TEHE—REBES ETRER
REXBEEERSAZAERAN
HeoAEEEHABRITEERLE
IHBERFETEEHEE FEH
&30-608
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

As at year end, the foreign exchange risk of the Group
mainly arises from purchases from a Renminibi-based
supply chain and sales proceeds in local currencies of
the relevant group entities. Foreign exchange risk arising
from recognized assets and liabilities is considered to be
insignificant. This is due to the balances denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entity are generally settled promptly
leaving minimal outstanding foreign currency position as
at the balance sheet date.

To manage foreign exchange risk arising from
commercial transactions, recognized assets and
liabilities, companies in the Group may use forward
foreign exchange contracts when major fluctuation in the
relevant foreign currency is anticipated.

The Group has certain investments in foreign operations,
whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency
translation risk.

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from balances
with bank, trade and other receivables, rental deposits
and amounts due from related parties. The carrying
amounts of these balances represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets. As at December 31, 2016, all the bank deposits
are deposited in the high quality financial institutions
without significant credit risk.

Retail sales are usually made in cash, through popular
credit cards or through reputable and dispersed
department stores. The Group’s credit sales are only
made to wholesale customers with an appropriate credit
history and on credit terms of 30-60 days.
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3. MBRERER (&)
(a) ¥ HEREZE (&)
(i) FE=REE (&)

TRE7H20164F %2015%12 31
BZEZEBEBA -

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)

The table below shows the major types of debtors as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015.

|
Group

(X G EETAENT) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
S Counterpart:
BEARA Department stores 181 200
PN Franchisees 73 64
FEU{E A RERRK Credit card receivables 17 9
Hiy Others 3 2
FEUCBR FX (A aE21) Trade receivables (Note 21) 274 275
EES Landlords 212 215

486 490

HETHOH R BEL BTG -
AEEYEFHEHEET B ZRT
IR (2015 : &) ©

REBE SRR
AEEFEBEFTHRRITREA R
KERZREREMBERTRE
MR MRSFEY  REFHRD
B -

(i)

AEER2016F12A318 2 &2 2881
BEEHAR —FARE - BRFEDLR
[REAEBER —FEIHINEEE
EARRER2016F12A318 2 & H
BaBEaR —FAEE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

M4 v s mmmamaa

(iii)

These counterparts have no default history in the past.
The Group holds nil bank guarantees (2015: nil) from
landlords.

Liquidity risk
The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by maintaining
sufficient banking facilities and cash and cash

equivalents, which is generated from the operating cash
flow and financing cash flow.

As at December 31, 2016, all of the Group’s financial
liabilities are due within one year. As at December 31,
2016, except for the Group’s put option liability which
is due after one year, all of the Group’s and Company’s
financial liabilities are due within one year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. MBRERER (&)

(a)

B EE (&)
(iv) REREFRE

B8R 7717 5X13.931E7% 7T (20154F -
10,7618 L) KB HIRITEH2.98
BAT (2016F : F) - AEEW
BEMEAFEEERARE - N F
SR B ZRITERMCHIRT
BESASEMHRERENER
% MZERBEAEE 2 EW
TER AEEZBRARKCERS
MEAMLETXMENEXEH T
B EZHEEPRENNEEGHHE
EBWAEK -

(b) E£EERR

(c)

AEENESEREER  BEREAEEH
REREEEZR N URARREMREK
RO RFnE R -

REBIELEARGRE AKEARESENE
HIEE  #AERNTRRNKRESE [
BRRBEEEARNIBEITHR -

B E R

AEBHEERAERRER - HHARA
SEHABAZRERGHEERBERT
KEERAHHEINBEREAAE
BRI S REE -

MAEEHHEZSREERRIER
EEAAEEENERMEEZARES
W% HEMAERZHEFTE
BIAREBEHZE2016F12A31HIEFEZ
RSN, R 1768 T (20154 ¢
658 L) KF 5 F #5318 00,5 1408
BT (20155 - 14088 7T) °
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Financial risk factors (continued)
(iv) Cash flow interest rate risk

Except for the bank balance of HK$1,393 million (2015:
HK$1,076 million) and short-term bank loan of HK$298
million (2015: Nil); the Group has no other significant
interest-bearing assets and liabilities. The bank balance
and short-term bank borrowings at floating rate expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk which is
insignificant to the Group. The Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates. Management does not
anticipate significant impact resulted from the changes in
interest rates.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives on managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern as well as
maximizing returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders.

In order to improve the capital structure, the Group may
raise long term debts, adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders and issue new
shares.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk because
investments held by the Group are classified on the
consolidated balance sheet as available-for-sale financial
asset and financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

As at December 31, 2016, if there had been a 5% change in
the fair value of available-for-sale financial asset and financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s equity would have increased/
decreased by HK$1.76 milion (2015: HK$0.65 million) and
net profit would have increased/decreased by HK$1.4 million
(2015: HK$1.4 million).
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4.

EZgsHfhst R ¥

EET R 2 A SR EETT > LIABE
ERERMEBRARERER  BRERA
BRTHRKEMHNGIEEY -

EESAEFRREE

AEBLHRRKELEERRR - B2 G5TA
A2 LA SRR ER A RAR o AT AT
itz st hERREHE BRI BUZAER T E
MBRFEHEEMBEZREEEENAE -

(i) FEEBERE

BIRH FE2() it 2 5T BUR - AKEE
FREERSHREMREETAR - ]
SEHETZAKRBSEIRERPE
BEFF BRI E R AERRHE KR (A
BeERE)ETFT  MmEHEXEEME
ZRECEHELCHERARREESRE -
WA Z IR ERFTEIRE - WEBRARKE
SRELRTER B ELRESE (KM
FE15) °

(i) FHRLHEEBNAIRE
ETAKENEBAHR P REHLR
e AREMHEBREHRGHER
BRAAEER ZFERAAEIRER
A 1% % M) IR SR E - BEE P 1R b /T PTUR
BHBAR, EBOKRERRRMRN
MEBRKR (EEE - FERFTMNE)
o ZAfEL HE - TRREROESHAHK
KEBEREATE -RKBBHREM
BAENERSIRREHFEENTEH
BERENDIAER  AEESEMKES
HEBERN A R B R PR
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

(i) Assessment of impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in Note 2(j). The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations or its fair value
less costs of disposal, whichever is higher, and both bases
require the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the CGUs and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, an impairment loss may arise
(Note 15).

(ii) Fair value of written put option liabilities

Certain of the Group’s business combination activities
involved put options issued by the Group over the equity of
subsidiary companies. The Group recorded such written put
option liabilities at their fair values which are determined in
accordance with the terms under those relevant agreements
and with reference to the estimated post-acquisition
performance of the acquired subsidiaries. Judgement is
required to determine key assumptions (such as growth
rate, margins and discount rate) adopted in the estimation
of post-acquisition performance of the acquired subsidiaries.
Changes to key assumptions can significantly affect the
amounts of future liabilities. Put option liabilities shall be re-
measured at their fair value resulting from events or factors
emerge after the acquisition date, with any resulting gain or
loss recognized in the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. EEGTHEETRHE (&)

(iii) FE R FE

FEAE#RFEERSEKMETESEN
BREFTIHERX - BB RERTT
MM BERERUERZERMIEDL -
MR R A BE R AR R & B 2 IR
RAHBREHUREPORRGFEF
PO EmREEARIEREMHREX
B BEENSEERENFHLSE
&t e

(iv) FTBH

(v)

AEBEARZERIERRBANEH
ERNMSHEEERERRFTZEMN
ERENHE RAFXHBRETER
ZREMERKREAZIRL S MtE -
SEREESEIHEAREIGIA 2 fh
AAMEREMHEETHBEZEE
RZEFRRZIBREMBERAY S LHZ
THIR FHEEBTEFLEELZ
HIE AR A S SR TR IR

FEFERBEMEERE

BEAEHABRZANERTEENE
NEEZIERBEEZ AKRERNETT
WEE - AEBEEHZEEELTRE
EH - BEEENESFERPDEEZAMD
WeEE  DRBEHARERAZFEE
28 REEEAEEXERAEE
BEERA (2RMIGER) ETE -

B

ZEHEARRAHRMGE -

(vi) ITE

WE - KR RREDILEBFERFH
NEBENE AEEERENZEFE
EZ B ERFHUBEREMREREH
AXHZBE - ERFHIREANEE
HEBUZEEZBERKRMETE - 10
BAEZGEAAEERNE - AIFEERK
MMz & -
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Net realizable value of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated selling
prices in the ordinary course of business less estimated
selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in economic conditions in places
where the Group operates and changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to changes in market
conditions. Management reassesses these estimates at each
balance sheet date.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining
the worldwide provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Assessment of impairment of non-current
financial assets

The Group conducts impairment reviews of non-current
assets that are subject to depreciation and amortization
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Management
assesses the recoverable amount of each non-current asset
based on its value in use or on its fair value less costs of
disposal (by reference to market prices), depending upon the
anticipated future plans for the assets. These calculations
require the use of judgments and estimates.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets
regularly in order to determine the amount of depreciation
to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives
are based on the Group’s historical experience with similar
assets. The depreciation for future periods is adjusted if there
are material changes from previous estimates.
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5.

LE S
AEERERRBEUREEZIUNBEERE
BOEE e ARBEZOMIERY - TERDE
DEZEBHRIB T NHE T EINNEBZ
X -TEEENSERREZAREREES
ERDHEDBZEL -

wRE  TERDHD BN S EAE RS
REsagE ([EEED RNERE - - BER
B BERTAEMETISLLAEEXN
ZEWMBIEEY - REPITEMEKRLD
TAMEARFR - REFAERE - LXRFPE
BRI MBEER -

mhEAHE - AEBEIRRNEEGordanoX&
Giordano Junior ~ Giordano Ladies ~ BSX
HMARR \ERELCEZHEEFEE =@
[& o

DERERENRRAMBMZ A B R REE
A BESERBENRIE - WA HE

REE 2 EEDBHER LR L BN LM E
ZAME

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments based on its
development strategies and operational control. There are two
major operating segments: Retail and Distribution and Wholesale
Sales to overseas franchisees. Management manages the Retail
and Distribution operating segment geographically and by brand.

Geographically, the Retail and Distribution operating segment in
Mainland China and the Middle East comprise directly operated
stores (“DOS”) and franchise stores. Hong Kong and Macau, Taiwan
and the rest of Asia Pacific do not have material local franchised
stores. Group stores span most of Asia Pacific and the Middle East.
There are also presently insignificant sales from franchised stores in
south Asia, North America, and Central Europe.

As for brands, the Group presently manages Giordano and
Giordano Junior, Giordano Ladies, BSX and other less significant
brands and non-proprietary third party licensed brands.

Segment operating profit is before finance expense, share of
profit of joint ventures and taxation. This is the measurement
basis reported to management and the senior decision-makers for
the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

Analysis of the Group's operating segment sales and operating
profit by geographic regions is as follows:

2016 2015

FSpievil il
$EHE  Operating HEE  Operating
(UBEETEREN) (In HKS million) Sales profit Sales profit

TERSH Retail and Distribution
HEAR Mainland China 1,285 102 1,451 90
EERRM Hong Kong and Macau 927 87 971 70
aE Taiwan 615 39 639 49
SREMME The rest of Asia Pacific 1,388 164 1,317 151
TR The Middle East 626 108 639 112
4,841 500 5,017 472

HEFAHETBIMIES Wholesale sales to

overseas franchisees 304 54 364 52
PEEE Segment results 5,145 554 5,381 524
Rl 7 Corporate functions 14 32
HEER Finance expense 1) -
ElEAE AR Share of profit of joint ventures 43 42
B AT F Profit before taxation 610 598

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

Further analysis of the Retail and Distribution operating segment
by brand is as follows:

2016 2015

v @ERER

€%  Operating $4€%  Operating

(UEEETAEN) (In HK$ million) Sales profit Sales profi
TERDH Retail and Distribution

Glordano [ Glordano Junior Giordano and Giordano Junior 4,130 422 4,302 414

Giordano Ladlies Giordano Ladies 401 65 393 43

BSX BSX 147 9 167 1

Efty Others 163 4 155 14

4,841 500 5,017 472

AARERES EREBRRMAHINEF
2 SHERE A12.31EE T (20154 : 13.35(8%8
JC) - R B K BE A12.8518 7 JT (20154 ¢
14518 L) MAREMTBEEIINERE 28
E58526.29188 7T (20154 : 259588 7T) °

DEZ B2 tHEEE10.12(8 78 T (20154 -
10.76(B8C) E TADFE Y -

FERENEREIEER A2,6008 8T
(20154 : 3,600&8 8 7T) + B KEFIA1,500
BB T (20154 : 1,7008 8 7T) * B & £
1,800& /& 7T (20154 : 1,6008 L) » K
H i [& 54,3008 & 7T (20154 : 3,9008 %8
70) KR A2,4008 7 T (20154F : 2,6008
BIT) °

PR KRE 2 FTS TR E F A1,4008 8 7T (2015
F:2,4008%870) © BB KR A1,10088
70 (20154 :+ 1,100& /& 7T) * &/ AB6008 /&
7T (2015%F : 7008 % 7T) » B K E i@ A
4,7008 & 7T (20154 : 4,0008 & 7T) © M+
FA9008 7 7T (20154 - 9008 T) °

TeremMTEARBELEHRBEAE  REBZIER
)& E MR A1.97TE B T (20155  2.0118/8
7o) R B ARE A0.72(87%8 7T (20154 : 0.91
BEIL)  RREMMEHA12.978EF T (2015
F 1310 ET) °
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The Company has its domicile in Hong Kong. Sales to external
customers from Hong Kong and Macau are HK$1,231 million
(2015: HK$1,335 million), Mainland China HK$1,285 million (2015:
HK$1,451 million) and external customers from other markets
HK$2,629 million (2015: HK$2,595 million).

Inter-segment sales of HK$1,012 million (2015: HK$1,076 million)
have been eliminated upon consolidation.

Depreciation and amortization charged related to Mainland China
was HK$26 million (2015: HK$36 million), Hong Kong and Macau
HK$15 million (2015: HK$17 million), Taiwan HK$18 million (2015:
HK$16 million), the rest of Asia Pacific HK$43 million (2015:
HK$39 million) and the Middle East HK$24 million (2015: HK$26
million).

Income tax expense charged related to Mainland China was
HK$14 million (2015: HK$24 million), Hong Kong and Macau
HK$11 million (2015: HK$11 million), Taiwan HK$6 million (2015:
HK$7 million), the rest of Asia Pacific HK$47 million (2015: HK$40
million) and the Middle East HK$9 million (2015: HK$9 million).

The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets located in Hong Kong was HK$197
million (2015: HK$201 million); Mainland China HK$72 million
(2015: HK$91 million) and other markets HK$1,297 million (2015:
HK$1,310 million).
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5. BB (4E) OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)
$'§ BroalEERBRE D DTET Analysis of the Group’s segment assets by geographic regions is
as follows:
PHEE
Segment assets
(A B &EETRENL) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
NEEE Segment assets

A B K Pz Mainland China 775 967

B KR Hong Kong and Macau 1,064 636

=9 Taiwan 184 179

a5 K E it & The rest of Asia Pacific 658 617

FER The Middle East 840 856

3,521 3,255

A& NB R Interest in joint ventures 480 503

AHEECZERMEE Available-for-sale financial asset 35 13
REREEZANEREZEHEE Financial asset at fair value

through profit or loss 28 28

EERIBE E Deferred tax assets 50 48

BEHRSE Total assets 4,114 3,847

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS
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OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS, NET

(X B EE TAENT) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
WA Rental income 13 16
FEET R A Royalty income 37 36
BE 3 B 1R R RE Net exchange loss = 2)
FLEUA Interest income 12 11
ISR ON Dividend income 3 5
HEWZE  #RREEFERR Net gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment - 11
At EERmEERESE Impairment loss on
available-for-sale financial asset - 2)
DRI S B R R AR R Gain on remeasurement of
EMTEREFE 2Rz WE previously held interest
REFH 22 W upon step acquisition of
subsidiaries - 2
Hag A Other income/gains 20 12
85 89
GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 121
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December 31, 2016

Y2
Nt

7. &&imA
EEEFIEMBTHIEE :

OPERATING PROFIT

The operating profit is stated after charging:

(X B EE TAENT) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
FHE T TE A ROIA 5 Amortization of leasehold land
prepayments 8 8
ZE A B & Auditor’s remuneration 6 6
W EBEREETE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 118 126
T RETF Operating lease rentals in respect
ZiEHEBA of land and buildings
—REMALH — Minimum lease payments 861 892
—HAHEESER - Contingent rent 229 224
— B - Management fee 60 54
BREFEEEFENFE ZHE Provision for obsolete stock and
stock written off = 5
BT (Hi29) Staff costs (Note 9) 900 886

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS
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8. RMEEH 8. FINANCE EXPENSE
(X B EE TAENT) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
IRITE T B Interest on bank loans 1 -
9. ETHK 9. STAFF COSTS
(K FEETAREN) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
HeRkIA& Salaries and wages (including
(BREEEW2) directors’ emoluments) 830 806
BREER Share option expense 1 3
BRE -REHREE Pension cost - defined
contribution plans 69 77
900 886
AREEBRN NEFERGERAKRGERZ HK During the year, no unvested benefits were utilized by the Group
(20154F « £) A K H K FE o R20164F & to reduce the level of contributions (2015: Nil). As at December 31,
201512 A31H » BB MK FEFH 7 KEE 2016 and 2015, no unvested benefits were available to be utilized
SHELHE K - in future years.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 123
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10.EEPVFFZFAELRS 10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(a) EEE £ (a) Directors’ emoluments

EXEHE

#5%

Employer’s

BigMEa>  HiRE contribution
e %%  Discretionary Other  to pension Rt
EEng Name of Directors Fees  Salaries Bonuses**  benefits¥  schemes Total
BEFT  BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

2016
ZIBlfE LAU Kwok Kuen, Peters - 3,470 14,183 1,715 18 19,386
Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI2  Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI2 - 1,351 3,270 21 49 4,691
[ CHAN Ka Waiz - 2,003 497 33 18 2,551
R Dominic Leo Richard [RWINA! - 715 - - 5 720
BEm" CHENG Chi Kong, Adrian" 200 = = - - 200
Bt g CHAN Sai Cheong' 200 - - - - 200
=2 Barry John BUTTIFANT* 400 - - = 5 400
BEF KWONG Ki Chi* 350 - - - - 350
Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH* Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH* 350 - - - - 350
Yy WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu)* 350 - - - - 350
1,850 7,539 17,950 1,769 90 29,198
2015

ZIBIfE LAU Kwok Kuen, Peters: - 3,399 13,756 1,933 18 19,106
Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI*  Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI* - 1,462 4,049 44 49 5,604
R CHAN Ka Wai* - 1,617 370 16 18 2,021
SRR Dominic Leo Richard IRWIN21 - 2,651 11 21 18 2,801
BER CHENG Chi Kong, Adrian" 200 - - - - 200
Fug=i CHAN Sai Cheong' 200 - - - - 200
2N Barry John BUTTIFANT* 400 - - - - 400
BE KWONG Ki Chi* 350 - - - - 350
Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH* Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH* 350 - - - - 350
i WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu)*? 58 - - - - 58
2E" LEUNG Kwok's 154 - - - - 154
1,712 9,129 18,286 2,014 103 31,244

t FERITHRBER

s WITES

* B HITES

" EMITES

# Hih s BIEREHA - BRE  FERKIE
2Bk

o TERIRE R O B R FE A IRE 2 B iRE
PR TR E

1 MR2016F3ASHEITE S

2 N2015FE 11 AIIBEFESE

8 1201595250 Bt

124 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Chairman and Chief Executive
Executive directors

Independent non-executive directors

Non-executive directors

Other benefits include insurance premium, share options, housing and

tax allowances

Discretionary bonus is determined based on profit sharing ratio or pre-
determined achievement rate of profit targets.
Resigned as a director on March 3, 2016
Appointed as a director on November 11, 2015

Passed away on May 25, 2015

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F #



%R (E)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

10.EEVFEMNELR () 10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(a) EEB & (E) (a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
MNAFEARN MAANTEEYNZ2ME The aggregate amount of emoluments payable to directors of
wERIn N the Company during the year is as follows:
(BB F T BEN) (In HK$’000) 2016 2015
we Fees 1,850 1,712
HAp Bl - Other emoluments:
AEX%HE RIKSEHEIHK Basic salaries, contribution
AR R B to pension schemes,
allowances and benefits in
kind 9,398 11,246
TE4L Bonuses 17,950 18,286
29,198 31,244
(b) ENESFEHE (b) Five highest paid individuals
REAFER  AEBRAUKSFHBER The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
BFE3NL (20154 : 3h) EE - EfE > the Group for the year include 3 (2015: 3) directors whose
FEER EXHE o T2 (2015 emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
F)RaFBEMSEEAT The emoluments payable to the remaining 2 (2015: 2)

individuals during the year are as follows:

(LB T T REN) (In HK$’000) 2016 2015
EX%FH& Basic salaries, housing

B EEeL - allowances, other

H b2 Ah allowances and benefits

REYW = in kind 4,720 4,679
BRIKEET IR Contribution to pension

schemes 34 18
TE4T Bonuses 1,920 1,424
6,674 6,121

BTIEaTBRERMeERNEENT The emoluments of the remaining highest paid individuals fell

within the following bands:

i < 48 5l AE
Emolument bands Number of individuals
2016 2015
JB
HK$
2,000,001 - 3,000,000 1 1
3,000,001 - 4,000,000 1 1
GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 125
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MEHmRMEE (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

10.EEM N EMER (F)

(c) MEE - TRFEFERNEA

10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(continued)

(c) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other

dealings in favour of directors, controlled

EREFZESNEETBREMHRD
EX - EERNEMAXZHESR

EI

RAMETIREFENRRAES - X
Mz EEFERMEABRYE %%%

%ﬁ@ﬁ@aﬁﬂ‘“%x J\ZE
RREMZ S EFZREEBA
383(1)(d )11*&%62265%—*
= (20154 « &) o

11. BLIH

BENE %Rrﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁifoEnﬂEnﬁﬂmﬂﬁz

16.5% (20154 : 16.5% ) 7 i Kt &
B ER A RER 2 MRAHE

bodies corporate by and connected entities with

such directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour
of the directors, their controlled bodies corporate and
connected entities for disclosure pursuant to section 383(1)(d)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of 622G

(2015: Ni).

11. TAXATION

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2015:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year. Income
tax on profits assessable outside Hong Kong is calculated at the
rates applicable in the respective jurisdictions.

(KB EETRENL) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
AEEREBE Current income tax
—&HE - Hong Kong 20 20
— BB AN - Outside Hong Kong 72 70
—BAFEBEBEER — Over provision in prior years 2 -
—MB AR REE AT ZA S E R T — Withholding tax on profit
Z IR distribution from subsidiaries
and joint venture 27 37
117 127
EEBE Deferred tax
CEMER ZITE RED Origination and reversal of
temporary differences 5 (7)
M FEBERE Over provision in prior years = ©2)
5 9)
MIEXH Taxation charge 122 118

BREXH T BREAFEREARERR

T I81,100& 78 7T (20154 : 1,1008 %8 70) -
REFFBERA ZEMLEERRER TR

ZANEMRE R Z TS HEHE ©

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

This charge excludes the share of joint ventures’ taxation for the
year of HK$11 million (2015: HK$11 million). The share of profit of
joint ventures in the consolidated income statement is after income

taxes accrued in the appropriate income tax jurisdictions.
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12.

M maRE (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

ﬁlﬁ (nlﬁ)
REEHEX HEARRARBH XM
HZBHAGMNRIAEZ @ERNOT ¢

11.

201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

TAXATION (continued)

Reconciliation of the Group’s profit before taxation at the tax rate
of Hong Kong to the taxation charge is as follows:

(A B EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
BREAER CTREREEE A EF) Profit before taxation (before share

of profit of joint ventures) 567 556
BT EA16.5% (20154 : 16.5%) 51 & Calculated at a taxation rate of

16.5% (2015: 16.5%) 94 92
BEMERTRAHEE & Effect of different tax rates

in other countries 18 14
ARz S Expenses not deductible for tax

purposes 11 9
RERCBELERIBEE Deferred tax assets

not recognized 10 13
BAERB Z WA Income not subject to tax (38) (37)
FRERARERRZTE Utilization of previously

unrecognized tax losses (2) (3)
WREARBERZHIE Recognition of previously

unrecognized tax losses - 2
AT IE Withholding tax 31 30
BT AR E B T A Over provision in prior years 2) 2)
BMIEX H Taxation charge 122 118
BRER 12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

BREALBERR VIRAFEE QG RE
15/—\19‘%741 A4 34487 7T (2015 : 4.261E# 1)

EREARBINDIEAFERNE BTRND
Z INHE 9 I E1,570,561,4030% (2015 ¢
1,570,283,230/% ) 5+ & o

BREBERANDIEAFTFERNEBITRG
2 DAE S A% £01,570,561,403/% (2015 ¢
1,570,283,2300% ) il EREZARIE AN A B BB AR 4
FrEIRN A RITEBREEEITEMmEETT
Z W1 2 D E - ) ik #1527 ,848 % (20154 -
1,383,9130%) - #£1,571,089,251/% (2015 :
1,571,667,1430%) 51 & o

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on the consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company for the year of HK$434 million (2015: HK$426 million).

The basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average
of 1,5670,561,408 shares (2015: 1,570,283,230 shares) in issue
during the year.

The diluted earnings per share is based on 1,571,089,251 shares
(2015: 1,571,667,143 shares) which is the total of the weighted
average of 1,570,561,403 shares (2015: 1,570,283,230 shares) in
issue during the year and the weighted average of 527,848 shares
(2015: 1,383,913 shares) deemed to be issued if all outstanding
share options granted under the share option schemes of the
Company had been exercised.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF
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MEHmRMEE (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

13. R & 13. DIVIDENDS
(a) XFEREWMT : (a) Dividends attributable to the year:
(X BEEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
EEmMEEREZEZFHEE Interim dividend declared

FRE12.558 1l
(20154 : |Ax12.5/8 (L)

REHEBEEZ 2 KBRS
FA%15.0785 110
(20154 : FM14.581l)

and paid of 12.5 HK cents

(2015: 12.5 HK cents)

per share 196 196
Final dividend proposed after

the balance sheet date of

15.0 HK cents (2015:

14.5 HK cents) per share 236 228

432 424

MR2017F3AR BT EFTEH L
KRR ESEZRIRERAREAFR5.0
AL IEBMEBEAEZE BN ERR
BEEBE -BMEREZE2BENERERK
EBZEBITROHBEE -

b) BRE—FE IREFERNE
BEXNHRE :

(U B BET»E)

(b)

At the board meeting on March 9, 2017, the directors of the
Company recommended the payment of a final dividend of
15.0 HK cents per share. The proposed dividend has not
been recognized as a liability at the balance sheet date. The
amount of proposed dividend was based on the shares in
issue as at the proposed date.

Dividends attributable to the previous year,
approved and paid during the year:

(In HK$ million) 2016 2015

DA MR 2 2015F R HR B
FH14.55810
(20144 : TFM14.5581l)

2015 final dividend approved
and paid of 14.5 HK cents
(2014: 14.5 HK cents) per
share 228 228

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F #



BEHRRWE (E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

14. Y% - B RRE

2016F12A31H
December 31, 2016

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

W BEETAEZN) (In HK$ millon)

HAE Cost

R2016%1 718 At January 1, 2016

HEER Translation difference

RE Additions

ik Disposals

ZFA\_Q_OI@@_CIZ_E@_H_ R _AT_ [_)ecember 31,2016

2ENE Accumulated depreciation

H2016%1 718 A January 1, 2016

BEES Translation difference

BENE Impairment

TEENE Charge for the year

HE Disposals

R06F12A818  _ MDecembert 206

R2016F125318 Net book value at
ZEEFE December 31, 2016

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 % #
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B %R M EE ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
2016F12H31H

December 31, 2016

14. Y% - SR 1E (E)

15.

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

KB FAR
KAFE BAZH
pav: Leasehold
REF BEE  improvements,
Freehold Ba furniture B

land & g Plant & & office Motor A
({EEETAEN) (In HKS milion) buildings Buldings equipment equipment vehicles Total
HARE Cost
R2015%1 A18 At January 1, 2015 55 24 53 1,089 21 1,242
hEZR Translation difference (3 (1) 1) (54) (1) (60)
WENBLR W) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 31) - - - 23 1 2%
AE Additions - 4 - 92 2 9%
HE Disposals - (1) - (79 (3) )
R2015%E12A31H At December 31, 2015 52 26 52 1,077 20 1,221
RENE Accumulated depreciation
1201551 A1H At January 1, 2015 13 7 51 873 17 961
BEZE Tranglation difference (1) - - (45) (1) (47)
KEHBAR Hits1) Acquisttion of subsidiaries (Note 1) - - - 2 _ 0
BERE Impairment - - . i - i
RERNE Charge for the year - 1 1 121 3 126
e Disposals - (1) - (70) ?) (73
RoOtSFIOANE . AMDecemberdt 205 2 _ ] [ 2 _ 0 _ L %8
#2015512A31A Net book value at

ZEAFE December 31, 2015 40 19 - 177 3 239

ge 15. GOODWILL
(X B EE TAENT) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
Mm1A18 At January 1 546 535
WEEKT B AR (A3£31) Acquisition of

subsidiaries (Note 31) - 11
M12H31H At December 31 546 546

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

N W EBE R
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B HmRMEE (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

15. 5 & (&)

HEERBEGHEMHE REEIHBOERE
AEBEzERReELET(ReELE
TT)) c BBREESMANMT

201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

15. GOODWILL (continued)

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash generating units ("CGU")
identified according to the location of operation and business
segment. The goodwill analysed by operating segment is as
follows:

(X FEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
TERDH Retail and Distribution
— K E i & — The rest of Asia Pacific 5 5
—F =R — The Middle East 541 541
546 546
EEEYEREN S Impairment test for goodwill

TRitROEECOEERSELETAE
BrENEET AN EREREERNIER
RENRERX - AlREI S B IIRER A RE
BERHERAAE(F=E) - ZAFETE
NEEEME ZSFUHBEUAENRES
mE - BEEERBBETREBREH TS E
R BHIREEER - RPR - £RGHRE -
BEFFIHEERRA3% - SFHRENEZRE
ME - RIEFTHRHIE R E3%MEE - R H A
HERERE  AEAZHAIRIRES13.1%
Hiph R @A ERZRATRIRE R R14.2%E
16.2% R ERBAREE DB < FERR -

FEZAT20164 K2015F12 A31H (L7 £
EERE -

AEBERBTHBHEFTFEREIZNBERBRR
ETHBRESWT - AREERENHABERE
REEMWES KT g REMNBESELEEM
FRESEEAKRE S - 2016412731
B WP REEEGEFHEERETRE
2% - K BLATAL IR KB M 45 B 5B - A E
WEBEBEL  PRMEMNEESEGER
HA B 458 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F

The Middle East goodwill has been allocated to a group of CGUSs,
which represents the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored
internally. The recoverable amount is determined based on
fair value less costs of disposal calculation (Level 3 hierarchy).
These calculations use post-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period. Management determines the financial budgets of Middle
East based on past performance and its expectations of market
development. The annual sales growth in the forecast period is
estimated to be 3%. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated terminal growth rate of 3% per
annum. The pre-tax discount rate used for UAE is 13.1% while
other Middle East Regions use between 14.2% to 16.2% and they
reflect specific risks relating to the current market assessment of
risks specific to such assets.

The Directors are of the opinion that there was no impairment of
goodwill as at December 31, 2016 and 2015.

The Group has performed a sensitivity analysis on key
assumptions used for the annual impairment test for goodwill.
A reasonably possible change in key assumptions used in the
impairment test for goodwill would not cause any CGU’s carrying
amount to exceed its respective recoverable amount. As at
December 31, 2016, had Middle East’s forecasted annual sales
growth rate dropped to 2%, or the pre-tax discount rate increased
by 1.45 percentage point, with all changes taken in isolation, the
Middle East’s carrying amount will exceed its recoverable amount.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF
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B %R M EE ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

20165F12H31H

December 31, 2016
16. 5 N alfER

PANFY AN

16. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES

TXEIZELE AT ZIRAE AZEIKRD The joint ventures listed below have share capital consisting solely
ELTEERARZERWT - of ordinary shares, particulars of the unlisted joint ventures are as
follows:
ERTR2BHERE
RARSE L REMEX
BENREE Place of BERGEDSLE  Issued and fully
Name of incorporation Percentage of paid share capital TEEH
joint ventures and operation equity holding or registered capital Principal activities
2016 2015
Giordano Corporation ~ K#RE 48.5 48,5 5,150,000,0008 BETEREREHAM
Limited* Republic of Korea KRWS5,150,000,000 Retail of apparel and accessories
ERERBRAAN BE 49.0 49.0 200,000 7T BREREMHES
Cheong Yiu Hong Kong HK$200,000 Trading of packaging products
Enterprises Limited*

* HEREEZEENE] * joint ventures held indirectly
(X EEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
W1A1H At January 1 503 532
FEAG & T Share of profit 43 42
WA ZRNAIRE Dividends received from joint

ventures (33) (35)
HnEZE Translation difference (33) (36)
»W12A31AH At December 31 480 503

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

B B E B ER

n
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16.

MBRRWE (E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

gL RES (F)
N
B =

DAZHMBENRE
TXHINAERAZHBENEE -

201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

16. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)
Summarised financial information for joint ventures

Set out below is the summarised financial information for joint

ventures.
EEEERES% Summarised balance sheet
(XGEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
RE Current
RekBReSEER Cash and cash equivalents 434 404
Htns&E Other current assets 576 642
MENEE AT Total current assets 1,010 1,046
HithnBam Other current liabilities (95) (92)
mEBELRE Total current liabilities (95) (92)
FERE Non-current
BE Assets 82 93
=L Liabilities ©) (12)
BEFE Net assets 988 1,035
INGE K Summarised income statement
(XGEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
Wz Revenue 1,463 1,556
-8 Depreciation and amortisation (29) (29)
b= =) Expense (1,323) (1,419)
B 5% Al it A Profit before taxation 111 108
I8 Taxation (22) (21)

BR TR 1808 A &2

=) Sz
iR Wt

Profit after taxation and total
comprehensive income 89 87

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F
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MEHmRMEE (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

16. 5 & A A = (&)
MBEREEH T
ARARREBEZMEAREEZ BT -

16. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)
Reconciliation of summarised financial information

Reconciliation of the summarized financial information presented to
the carrying amount of the interest in the joint ventures.

(XGEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
1A1BEEFE Opening net assets at January 1 1,035 1,099
N 5 F Profit for the year 89 87
IS Dividends (68) (72)
MmEZE Translation difference (68) (78)
12H31BEEFE Closing net assets at December 31 988 1,035
ElEEE R AR Share of interest in joint ventures 480 503
BEME 2 RE Operating lease commitments 258 342

AEBRBAEZAZERBIZRBELRAY R
ERHABBEREREE MEZEFEERQF
AEMEERKRABREARALE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

There are no material contingent liabilities and capital
commitments relating to the Group’s interest in the joint ventures,
and the joint ventures have no contingent liabilities and capital
commitments themselves.
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B HmRMEE (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

17. A HHECEREE
AL E S REERN AR ERERS
BT ([REBIR]) 4.85%27 4 25(2015:
4.85%) ° ZBERIANBTHE - AEBHRA
ERREEETS SAEENTBHERY

— o

201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET

Available-for-sale financial asset represented 4.85% interest in
Speedy Global Holdings Limited (“Speedy”) (2015: 4.85%) and is
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Speedy is engaged in garment
manufacturing business and is one of the key suppliers of the
Group.

(KB & B THENMN) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
®1A1H At January 1 13 15
BRARBECESHEA Fair value change transfer to
At EZEMEERE available-for-sale financial
asset reserve 22 -
BAREZ Fair value change charged to
FHRFEERFTE income statement = ©2)
MW12A318 At December 31 35 13

MR2016F12A31H ' At HEZEMEEY
ARERREFEHAORIMABR AT ZR
BET 2BAFE—H-

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F

As at December 31, 2016, the fair value of the available-for-sale
financial asset are determined using its quoted price on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, which is categorised as Level 1.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B %R M EE ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

1. RERRRANEEEZETHEE

M2008F6H27H  AEBEI L EERHELE
Placita Holdings Limited ([ Placita]) 21.0%%#
o BIEZ W% 0 6,055,440 FRBR AR KA
EEBAHRTI0.0%E BT 2RABEN DL
£6,055,440%Placitaz 85L& ([ME SRR ])
BEAN  REE R TE LR 2 RIGERE -

ZEEREREHHRENEZRARIAE
e - ARABEEREFRMEE  MHRER
ZEBFFRABLEXRBERREMNNMA -

MR2016F12A31AZELER R BEH@BAE LR
7t B 18 52,8008 /& 7T (20154 : 2,8008 &
L) c RIEBEEBFEARERE SREESZA
hEZHETREHFBRIZSAEEMEA -

ZANBEEREATFEREZEMEELR
EEREBEMHFARSR  RERHZKRENSE
HERAABEDS ERENEN (T #RE
A REBEEBB B RELERNTH QA EHE
MO BERE=AL

18. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

On June 27, 2008, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of its 21.0% interest in Placita Holdings
Limited (“Placita”). As part of the agreement, 6,055,440
ordinary shares representing the Group’s remaining 30.0%
of the total issued share capital of Placita were redesignated
into 6,055,440 preference shares of Placita (the “Preference
Shares”). Furthermore, the Group was granted a put option on the
Preference Shares.

The Preference Shares and the related options are measured at
fair value through profit or loss. The fair value has been and will be
re-assessed by an independent professional valuation firm at year
end and the end of each subsequent period.

The fair value of the Preference Shares and the related options is
HK$28 million as at December 31, 2016 (2015: HK$28 million).
Changes in the fair values of financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in other income in the consolidated
income statement.

The fair value of the financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss is determined based on discounted cash flow, using inputs
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs), which is categorised as level 3 under the fair value
hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 7.

(XGEETAEEN) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
M1HA1R &R12H31H At January 1 and December 31 28 28

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS
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B HmRMEE (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

19. LEASEHOLD LAND AND RENTAL PREPAYMENTS

HELH e
BANE BANE
Leasehold land Rental &
prepayments  prepayments Total
(UNBEEFTAEN) (In HK$ million) 2016 2016 2016 2015
MAIBZ REFE Net book value at January 1 163 89 252 273
HhEZE® Translation difference (1) - (1) 9)
NE Additions - 59 59 47
AEZEH Amortization for the year (8) (59) (67) (58)
HE Disposals = = = ()
MW12A318 2 REFE Net book value at December 31 154 89 243 252
HEE Current portion (6) (45) (51) (47)
FEEH Non-current portion 148 44 192 205
20.7E 20. INVENTORIES

(U BFEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
BURK o Finished goods 447 491

FEECHERALABAYCEEHEN AT A
20.831E# 7T (20154F : 22.8(8/6 1) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 %
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HK$2,280 million).

The cost of inventories recognized as expense and included
in cost of goods sold amounted to HK$2,083 million (2015:

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF
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MEHmRMEE (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

21, FE W AR R B2 EL 1t BB WK

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(X B EE TAENT) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
FEUBR K Trade receivables 274 275
R E R Less: Provision for impairment (8) (11)
U ER FOFE Trade receivables, net 266 264

H At JE IR Other receivables, including
BRI & MIBAFRIAE deposits and prepayments 278 278
544 542

BRESRERARHEEIN  AEEELERBR
THRTHEESEPIE0REE -

JE YRR R e Ho At FE WK A E M R B2 B &
SERERE -

(a) fRiR T #T

REEERKER NBERER) 25
BREFEASNOT :

Other than cash and credit card sales, the Group normally allows a
credit period of 30 to 60 days to its trade customers.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not
contain impaired assets.

(a) Ageing analysis

As at the balance sheet date, the ageing analysis from the
invoice date of trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtful
debts) is as follows:

(UEGEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
0&30H 0 - 30 days 180 187
31£E60H 31 - 60 days 50 42
61290H 61 - 90 days 17 13
#90H Over 90 days 19 22

266 264

FEY SRR Z BREE A AR A BT -
AEBZEESHRERZ WA
EUWERL EEPEZEERR -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

The carrying amount of trade receivables is stated
approximately at fair value. There is no concentration of credit
risk with respect to trade receivables as the Group has a large
number of internationally dispersed customers.
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B HmRMEE (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

21, FE W AR R B2 Lt B WOk (48

(a)

(b)

iR 2 4 (&)

R2016F12A31H « @ HE I EEE 2
JE UL BR 5K A4,1008 7 7T (20154 : 5,800
BB MmMETEBEREPESIWEE
Ractr - RIBFIE B 8D 2RI DT 1A
T

201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

Ageing analysis (continued)

As at December 31, 2016, trade receivables of HK$41 million
(2015: HK$58 million) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of customers for whom there has been no
recent history of default. Their ageing analysis from the due
date is as follows:

(X B EETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
0&30H 0 - 30 days 21 28
#30H Over 30 days 20 30

41 58
FE U BE 2k 19 BB (b) Impairment of trade receivables

JEU IR SR R BB 1R - Th AR P A
B BREASERRWERRKNE IR
o FEUERT  REBERERERK

FRERBH 2 ZY (BRETREEE
BH)WT

Impairment loss in respect of trade receivables is recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied
that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables
directly.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year, including both specific and collective loss components,
is as follows:

(XGEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
M1A1H At January 1 11 15
ZARPH Reversal of provision for
doubtful debts (2) -
REFAYE Receivables written off during
JFE U BR SR ER 1 2 W 3B the year as uncollectible (1) (4)
MW12A31H8 At December 31 8 11

18 71) 24 080 (B2 Ui B 50 B2 o 3R B IR IR
MEP KEREEFGEHR AT EEE
MR - UL R AR E AR -
AREEI ERBARKFEETMERR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F

The individually impaired receivables relate to customers that
are in financial difficulties and management assesses that
only a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts were
recognized. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B %R M EE ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

22. g A 22. SHARE CAPITAL
(X B EETHENN) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
EE Authorized:
2,000,000,000% 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
FREESEI TBR HK$0.05 each 100 100
ERITRE2HAR : Issued and fully paid:
1,570,952,518f% 1,570,952,518 ordinary shares
(20154 : 1,570,394,5180%) (2015: 1,570,394,518 ordinary
FREBESSIL . EBEK shares) of HK$0.05 each 79 79

RAFER  BRTRAZEHBERET

Details of the movement in the issued share capital during the year
are set out below:

BHEE
Number of shares

2016 2015

FREBESSIL
2 EBR

W1A18

BT

Ordinary shares of
HK$0.05 each

At January 1
Issue of shares

1,5669,912,518
482,000

1,570,394,518
558,000

W12H31H At December 31 1,570,952,518 1,570,394,518
(a) BITR®H (a) Issue of shares

(b)

(c)

(d)

BANR 2 BRERE - KRBRARFE
EREERESE ATEBRENR T2
A mETEREAESBIL L BRE
7 #£558,000% °

AKARBETZABHLBRELRRAE
BzRERMES TAYZERS#ZR -

BREER
BEREAZZBERARABRENA
FERNZEEFHEIHNEI0BEFE165
E °

[E] B8 B% 15

ZAN/NET N R 3 A E R R R i gl

—EERAMEBEENRG
MR2016FE12A31H —AERAREAR
KA 71,800,000 38 % i% {5 (20154 :
1,800,000 @A IR 1) ©

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

(b)

(c)

(d)

Pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company, the
Company issued 558,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each in
the capital of the Company to option-holders who exercised
their rights attached to share options during the year.

All the new ordinary shares issued by the Company ranked
pari passu with the then existing shares of the Company in all
respects.

Share option information

A summary of the share option scheme and details of the
movement in share options of the Company during the year
are set out on pages 160 to 165.

Repurchase of shares

During the year, the Company did not repurchase any of its
shares.

Shares held by a joint venture

As at December 31, 2016, 1,800,000 ordinary shares (2015:
1,800,000 ordinary shares) were held by a joint venture.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F #
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

23. EARFFEFIMER

ABEZIEEBRETREAB1.82BF T
(20154 : 1,768 L) * EAFPT. Giordano
Indonesia ([ Giordano Indonesial) 151.318
7 70 (20154 1,238 7t) * Giordano
Fashions (L.L.C.)([Giordano UAE]) {1,600
&% T (20154 11,9008 & JT) * MTextile
and Ready Garments Co. Ltd. ([ Giordano
KSA J) 12,0008 % 7T (20154 : 2,1008 /&
JC) o AR ZIEIERERTERX ©

BEEAREERESZZHWEBRT M
TXE A RS (HAKEN S B
ERUHE) ZMBRBAIZHMBERHE -

201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

23. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

The total non-controlling interest as at December 31, 2016 is
HK$182 million (2015: HK$176 million), of which HK$130 million
(2015: HK$123 million) is for PT. Giordano Indonesia (“Giordano
Indonesia”), HK$16 million (2015: HK$19 million) is for Giordano
Fashions (L.L.C.) (“Giordano UAE") and HK$20 million (2015:
HKS$21 million) is for Textile and Ready Garments Co. Ltd.
(“Giordano KSA”). The non-controlling interest in respect of the
rest of the companies is not material.

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries
with material non-controlling interests

Set out below is the summarised financial information for each
subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material to the
Group.

EEEERFE® Summarised balance sheet
Giordano Giordano Giordano
Indonesia UAE KSA
(U BEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
k) Current
EE Assets 182 188 62 57 110 107
af Liabilities (35) (37) (34) (19) (35) (41)
MENFEERS Total current net assets 147 151 28 38 75 66
FERE Non-current
EE Assets 68 56 24 29 26 33
FRBFEERTE Total non-current net assets 68 56 24 29 26 33
FEE Net assets 215 207 52 67 101 99

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F
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201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

23. ERFFEFIEER (F)

(continued)

23. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

F 8 3R 5 8% Summarised income statement
Giordano Giordano Giordano
Indonesia UAE KSA
(UBEFTAET) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
YA Revenue 491 444 224 235 311 325
B 254 Al s A Profit before taxation 79 79 31 30 47 48
BiTE Taxation (20) (20) = - (9) 9)
M i 14 v A Profit after taxation 59 59 31 30 38 39
HAindr e Was Other comprehensive income 5 (29) = - = -
iR a W Total comprehensive income 64 30 31 30 38 39
R RS Total comprehensive income
el allocated to non-controlling
interests 38 18 6 6 10 10
JEIE B M 2 Dividends paid to
BERKRE non-controlling interests 28 14 9 11 11 18

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

B B E B ER

n

Gl
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

23. ERIEEHIMES () 23. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
(continued)
ReERERFE Summarised cash flows
Giordano Giordano Giordano
Indonesia UAE KSA

(UBEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
REEBZ Net cash inflow from

BeRAFE operating activities 42 45 57 26 51 70
REEHBZ Net cash outflow from

RemtEE investing activities (20) (16) (4) (5) (10) 9
BMEXEBZ Net cash outflow from

Bemb#8 financing activities (55) (28) (46) (42) (36) (60)
RAekBe%E (Decrease)/increase in cash

Z(R) /i and cash equivalents (33) 1 7 (21) 5 1
R1A1EZE & Cash and cash equivalents

kA& SEER at January 1 50 54 28 48 55 55
INEERETZE Effect of foreign exchange

rate changes 1 (5) - 1 - ©

M2R31A2E4S Cash and cash equivalents

LESEELER at December 31 18 50 35 28 60 55
BRI ARAEB AR ZBYEEIN S The information above is the amount before inter-company
LEID eliminations.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

24. NFIEEEERNREZSBX

THE COMPANY

24. BALANCE SHEET AND EQUITY MOVEMENTS OF

NTEEABER Balance sheet of the Company
HZE12831H
As at 31 December
(UG EETHBENT) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
EE ASSETS
kRBEE Non-current assets
ME - MR RRE Property, plant and equipment 7 7
WE AR Interest in subsidiaries 817 817
RERERAAEEREEZSREE Financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss 28 28
FE U B8~ R 3B Amounts due from subsidiaries 181 226
HELwMHEeENFRE Leasehold land and rental
prepayments 109 114
HEZS Rental deposits = 1
1,142 1,193
REBEE Current assets
HMELMHESENTE Leasehold land and rental
prepayments 5 5
JiE U BR 3k & H i 8 U 3R Trade and other receivables 6 3
FE W BT B A B 5k I8 Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,312 1,374
Be RIFRTET Cash and bank balances 524 43
1,847 1,425
EEHE Total assets 2,989 2,618
EzkBE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BARFiE Capital and reserves
[ Share capital 79 79
1 Reserves 1,466 1,535
#ER A% B Proposed dividends 236 228
FEFEE Total equity 1,781 1,842
REEE Current liabilities
FE A~ BR 5% N HL b B 1 3K Trade and other payables 4 4
AR NGRS Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,203 771
el Taxation 1 1
BEHAE Total liabilities 1,208 776
EnkBEESE Total equity and liabilities 2,989 2,618
BRBEE Net current assets 639 649
EEHAERABEE Total assets less current
liabilities 1,781 1,842
2B #E BREeiE
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter CHAN Ka Wai
EZ EZ
Director Director

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

B WE B ER LSS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2016F12A31H
December 31, 2016

24, NTIEEEERNESEEH X (&) 24. BALANCE SHEET AND EQUITY MOVEMENTS OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

ARIERBEX Equity movements of the Company

(HEEETAEN) (In HK$ millon)
R201651A18 At January 1, 2016
TEFET Profit for the year
fhohs Total comprehensive income
FEMaE Transfer among reserves
BiRETE Share option scheme
-RiTRERE - Shares Issued upon
[EGP U exercise of share options
-BREER - Share option expense
155K HRE 2015 final dividend
(Wit 13p) (Note 13(b))
016F P HE S 2016 interim dividend
(Wi13m) (Note 13(a)
R2016512A31R At December 31, 2016

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F 3 &£ o EBERQE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

24. NRIEEEBRBREELS®E R (F) 24. BALANCE SHEET AND EQUITY MOVEMENTS OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

NEERBE R (H) Equity movements of the Company (continued)
LB T ¢ The comparative figures are set out as follows:
ER e
EREE b
[N Capital ~ FREE Share FRET  EREg
Share  Contributed redemption Share options Retained Total
(HEEETAEN) (In HK$ milion) capitel surplus reseve  premium reserve profits equity
}3@2015@1)%15 At January 1, 2015 78 540 3 916 22 376 1,935
KEEGH Profit for the year - - - - - 325 325
ERAlE Total comprehensive income - - - - - 325 325
HEREE Transfer among reserves - . - - 0 3 _
BREE Share option scheme
-RiFERENETZRA - Shares issued upon exercise
of share options 1 - - 2 - - 3
-BREER - Share option expense - - . - 3 - 3
NIUERERE 2014 final dividend
(Hii3p) (Note 13(b)) - - - - - (228) (228)
015 HRE 2015 interim dividend
(Wiz13) (Note 13(a) - - - - - (196) (196)
______________________________________________________________ L . O . AU 5. O
H2015%12 4318 At December 31, 2015 79 540 3 918 22 280 1,842
146 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

25. ##&
R2016F12H318 » AEB 2 FEES LT

201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

25. RESERVES

The reserves of the Group as at December 31, 2016 are analyzed

as follows:

(KB EETRENL) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
wA B Contributed surplus 383 383
&N B O Capital redemption reserve 3 3
B% 13 0% 8 Share premium 920 918
BRERE Share options reserve 14 22
M 5 % Exchange reserve (80) (40)
H B Other reserves 74 74
AHEE Available-for-sale financial asset

TREERE reserve 22 -
B 17 55 F Retained profits 1,370 1,351

2,706 2,711

R R HARR B Proposed final dividend

(K12£13(a)) (Note 13(a)) (236) (228)
GRGEEE Total reserves 2,470 2,483

REB v HARBDIERSEBEEEMELE Y
EERTE - MEBEEATBEN1995F5H29H
T HEEIMEST - RIE B FFE1981F
NRE (EERT) » BARBA DR FRE -

HihFEH 2 T EHBFBOT

(@ WREFBEAEBBEEIEZRMBESR
BAEZMBAREAERBEES A
RBmETEEE (NE) RABAEMZSE
MBARZEAREE-

(b) RIFFEE R EERSAD R EEREE
R RBERBZAERARATEMHEE
TR EAMEER AT AR ERERKER
FEEER  MAAAEREREIKE -

) REMIuABAEEREBEARIEN
FIf Rk A B RE 2B A QR ZATE M
BES  BRBHBEREN  TAESRZ
}Eﬁ o

() BRERHFEZ2ERMEEE1.21E87T
(20155 12188 70) ° (MizE26%31)

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F

The contributed surplus of the Group represents a credit arising
from a group reorganisation pursuant to a scheme of arrangement
which was completed on May 29, 1995. Under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) the contributed surplus is
distributable to the shareholders.

Details of the main items in other reserves are as follows:

(@) According to the relevant laws and financial regulations,
the statutory reserve funds of the subsidiaries in Mainland
China are used to make up prior years’ losses, if any, and to
increase the capital of the subsidiaries.

(b) In accordance with the Korean Tax Incentive Limitation Law
and Korean Commercial Code, the statutory reserve fund and
other reserves of the joint venture in the Republic of Korea
may only be used to offset a future deficit or be transferred to
capital stock, but not for cash dividends.

(c) According to the United Arab Emirates Commercial
Companies Law, the statutory reserve fund of the associate
in the United Arab Emirates is not available for distribution
except as provided in the Federal Law.

(d) Put option financial liability recognised of HK$121 million
(2015: HK$121 million). (Notes 26 and 31)

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

26. RHRAGHERRE

M20124 « KN & B 3t mGiordano UAER
Giordano KSAZ FE5 i% % B 5 ) 38 0h A 4 -
DHEEHERRERAZHRTERETAER
FIEENPTKaEMERBEN1.02EE T -
2 R0h BRRE P AN & B ST A Y BB Giordano  UAE
K Giordano KSAZ I 1D 3F & BERFAI 1 TfF -
BEINBAH ZEVBEEEVIEEAR
BER  EFTEDNSENRS - RERHE
BEEUELTERI AR AEE -

20154 + AN & B #t MGiordano KW &
Giordano QA7 3F ¥ i f% 37 A% 38 4% 1 52 0 BF
EUEEEAREENE T AEBFES
M BEaBEMmEREEL1,908 BT - %
TR HA B A AN 2 B 52 AR IR B Giiordano KW &
Giordano QAZ B = F & BRI 1T - M A
EIBHAR ZEVHABEVLSEEQATE
R BMAFTEE @RS o HHRh %
BEUNETTERIAERBAE -

ZEHRARERABRBBERBRRSIR IR
ERVZRENEERTABREM S LG
MER (TABRGA)  REFEMBERS
EU7TH AR BENREEEIBRE=F

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

26. PUT OPTION LIABILITIES

In 2012, the Group recognized financial liabilities of approximately
HK$102 million in relation to the financial liabilities arising from
the put option granted to the non-controlling shareholders of
Giordano UAE and Giordano KSA to sell their remaining interests
in these companies to the Group. Such put option is exercisable
any time after 3 years from completion of the Group’s acquisition
of the shares in Giordano UAE and Giordano KSA and has no
expiry date. Such financial liabilities are initially recognized at their
fair value, which is the present value of the estimated redemption
amount. The put option liabilities are denominated in U.S. dollars
and are classified under current liabilities.

In 2015, the Group recognized financial liabilities of approximately
HK$19 million in relation to the financial liabilities arising from the
put option granted to the non-controlling shareholders of Giordano
KW and Giordano QA to sell their remaining interests in these
companies to the Group. Such put option is exercisable any time
after 3 years from completion of the Group’s acquisition of the
shares in Giordano KW and Giordano QA and has no expiry date.
Such financial liabilities are initially recognized at their fair value,
which is the present value of the estimated redemption amount.
The put option liabilities are denominated in U.S. dollars and are
classified under non-current liabilities.

The fair value of the put option liabilities is determined based
on discounted cash flows, using inputs that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs), which is
categorised as level 3 under the fair value hierarchy pursuant to
HKFRS 7.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

27. E 18

BRERBERBABENEEEZRERAN
BRDEER 2R ERME2BUHEE -

AEERFAZECHEEERBBEZED
(ER—#BE 2 AR IR HATD 0T -

EEB R (EE) AfF

201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

27. DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences
under the liability method at the rates applicable in the respective
jurisdictions.

The movement in the Group's deferred tax assets and liabilities
(prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction)
during the year is as follows:

Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities

MEEHE  KDRZ
Accelerated  FHEA

accounting Unremitted Hi &t
(U BEBTAEN) (In HK$ million) depreciation  profits Others Total
R201651 18 At January 1, 2016 (6) 104 (35) 63
BEEE Translation difference - (5) (10) (15)
RAERREA Charged to income
(Hrz11) statement (Note 11) = 4 1 5
30016412831 At Decernber 31, 2016 (6) 103 (44) 53
5001541518 At January 1, 2015 U 118 (35) 76
BEER Translation difference 1 @ 1 (6)
RABRAEA Credited to income
(Hri11) statement (Note 11) - (6) (1) (7)
201512318 At December 31, 2015 6) 104 (35) 63

AEBBARERELEHEEE7,900&8 BT
(20154 : 7,6008 8 0) TERNTIE - bE
AERBLEHIBEEE $4,1008 7% 7T (2015
F 14,1008 % 70) 151201612 431 H LS54
NEM BRTIBHEZEBEMNEEBENE R
Rz EREBTRIB S5 -

HERERMFAT  BREMBEHRYP RE—
MR EERAEERRECHEAERE
EREHE - MIIeBESFAEEEHER  Ra
HEEBBERAIE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F

The Group has unrecognized deferred tax assets of HK$79
million (2015: HK$76 million) arising mainly from tax losses. These
unrecognized deferred tax assets to the extent of HK$41 million
(2015: HKS$41 million) will expire within 5 years from December
31, 2016. The remaining portion is mainly related to the losses of
subsidiaries in Australia and Germany which have no expiry date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the
same fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined after
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance
sheet.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

27. EERIE () 27. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)
(X BEEE THAENT) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
RIERIAE E Deferred tax assets (50) (48)
EERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 103 111
53 63
28. FE(HBRF R EMENF 28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(A B EETAENT) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
FETBR 3R Trade payables 205 232
EtEARREMNER Other payables and accrued
expenses 333 327
538 559
UTABEMNEZRZE®RST : The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:
(X B EETAENT) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
0E30H 0 - 30 days 185 186
31260H 31 - 60 days 9 32
61290H 61 - 90 days 4 8
#90H Over 90 days 7 6
205 232
ERNERRZEREBEHOAAAETIEE - The carrying amount of trade payables is stated approximately at
its fair value.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

BLRBTREE 29. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(X B EE TAENT) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
RekBeEE Cash and cash equivalents 1,156 939
FRBEE=MEA MU L Bank deposits with maturity
B 2 RITE HRTE X over three months from
date of deposits 237 137
Be MIR1TTRER Total cash and bank balances 1,393 1,076

AEEIA L 2R RRTEFRIESES21E
AT (20165 - 4.7RBTT) Z ARBHR S MR
1877 °

AEBTETHREFRNERFNEAETF1.7% (2015
F:21%)  ERZEGERZFHEHR A
ZH={EA -

Included in the cash and bank balances of the Group were cash
and bank balances totaling HK$321 million (2015: HK$470 million)
denominated in Renminbi.

The effective interest rate on bank deposits of the Group was
1.7% (2015: 2.1%) per annum; these deposits have an average
maturity of less than 3 months as at year-end.

RITER 30. BANK LOANS
(UG EETHBEN) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
RMHEERITE R Short-term bank loans,
M - BILETAE unsecured, HK dollars
denominated 298 -

MR2016F12A31H » AEB ZRITEFRK
BRFIRAE1A% - ZERITEZTRN —F R H

E==]
1=
o

RHRTERNEREERE QXA BEELT -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F

The effective interest rate of the Group's short-term bank loans as
at December 31, 2016 was 1.1%; these bank loans are repayable
within one year.

The carrying amounts of short-term bank loans approximate their
fair values.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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31. X565

M2015% - A& [H 1 hN33% Giordano Kuwait
(I Giordano KW |)#z= Z£49% & 29% Giordano
Qatar ([ Giordano QA J)HI49%FE %5 »

T &4 2 5t X [ Giordano KW & Giordano QA
MEENMEBERHEANEEMRENE
BHBEULEES BHFEHEESNAR
BE -

31. BUSINESS COMBINATION

In 2015, the Group increased its economic interests in Giordano
Kuwait ("Giorando KW") by 33% to 49% and in Giordano Qatar

("Giordano QA") by 29% to 49%.

The following table summarises the consideration paid for
Giordano KW and Giordano QA, the fair value of net assets
acquired, liabilities assumed and the non-controlling interest at the

acquisition date.

(KB EETHBENN) (In HK$ million) 2015
ReRE Purchase consideration in cash 16
P TE AR AR B, Completion dividend payable 20
AU g £ 2 A Forfeiture of consideration payable due to

KB EMAKE unsuccessful acquisition of entity in Oman @)
BREED Total consideration transferred 34
S B 4& OF 15 B Giordano KW Fair value of equity interest in Giordano KW

N Giordano QA &= and Giordano QA held before the business

B E combination 7
REEE Total consideration 41
BABBECEEFE: Net assets acquired:
WE - MR RRE Property, plant and equipment 4
rE Inventories 4
JE L BR SR % EL A B R Trade and other receivables 4
Re RIBITER Cash and bank balances 32
JE 11 BR 3R B EL th F& A< 3R Trade and other payables 6)

38
FEVE IR Non-controlling interests ®)
WHEFEAZEHE Goodwill on acquisition 11
41

Uk BB B A R AT Bl Bz Analysis of the net cash inflow in respect of

HWERAFEDN the acquisition of subsidiaries:
ENRERE Cash consideration paid (16)
Frits 2 R4 7 KR & Bank balances and cash acquired 32
WIEW B ARSI 82 Analysis of the net cash inflow from acquisition of

ReRANFEZDN subsidiaries 16

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31. XB & 0 (&)

o B8 Fr 2 - B0 B AR H£200 & 78 TTEF A E 20154
12A31BEAHFMBRFHITHER -

AEBRERRBANELHEEFARR
FmEEES EHEERABAEEES
Giordano KW K Giordano QA& B KI49%1& =
o EHHEEBETEEMTSE - AEERA
2 HiGiordano KW X Giordano QAT # ¥ o] &
O FREy Rk F A A L RAES - WA
713 B R Giordano KW K Giordano QA& A K
EEE(hBA RNLEE L, M EGordano KWK
Giordano QAR 7 52 2 It & [B1 4.

EEELAHEE11008E T KAAREHR
Giordano KW K Giordano QAR & 4% & 1% 78 Hf
EEMGERZ - BROEETERT A 0k
Frig®i -

REBREREHES H 1B Giordano KWH)
16%4E %5 K Giordano QAHI20% 25 2 A 2 B
MmER1S2008 8 L 2 Wi - i EFT AE2015
FI2A31HAHABERFOEMUE -

MUE B £2015912 831 H #ifE » Giordano
KWK Giordano QAE Ef2,700& B L & &
3008 /8 T F ©

R & Giordano KW Kk Giordano QAfE2015%1
B1EEZAMAR  £2015F12A831BHA
GERIE R B0 85 & BE A5 12 01,2008 7 7T o
#II100E B T °
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201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

31. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

Acquisition-related costs of HK$2 million have been charged to
administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement for
the year ended December 31, 2015.

The Group has chosen to recognize the non-controlling interest at
its proportionate share of net assets for this acquisition. The Group
does not own the majority of Giordano KW’s and Giordano QA’s
voting rights. However, the Group determined that it has control
over Giordano KW and Giordano QA and included them into the
scope of consolidation, considering the fact that the Group holds
49.0% of the voting rights of each of Giordano KW and Giordano
QA, is exposed to variable returns from its involvement with these
entities, and that the Group’s directors constitute the majority
of the members of the board of directors of Giordano KW and
Giordano QA.

The goodwill of HK$11 million arising from the acquisition is
attributable to the economies of scale expected from combining
the operations of the Group and Giordano KW and Giordano QA.
None of the goodwill recognized is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.

The Group recognized a gain of HK$2 million as a result of
measuring at fair value its 16% equity interest in Giordano KW
and 20% equity interest in Giordano QA held before the business
combination. The gain is included in other gain in the consolidated
income statement for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Giordano KW and Giordano QA contributed HK$27 million sales
and HK$3 million profit for the period from acquisition date to
December 31, 2015.

Had Giordano KW and Giordano QA been consolidated from
January 1, 2015, the consolidated income statement for the year
ended December 31, 2015 would show an increase in sales of
HK$12 million and profit of HK$1 million.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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31. X550 (&)

20154 - AN % B 3t MGiordano KW Xk
Giordano QAZ;H % A% B8 A% R 3% 3R 0h BR
BNHERARIEENE TASEMEL
M B EMEREEN1,908E T %
Rom HAE R AR £ B K U B Giordano KW &
Giordano QAZ IR fn = F & BER A 1T - M A
EIHBAE ZEYBEEVIERAANFEAE
Tﬁuu BMfastER ¢ EMmBE e R ASRE

DR EHERAAEEENETHERE
5”7[5'53'5/”1,@]/@\1 °

% 1% F Giordano KWK Giordano QAZ JE#% %
B 2 ROH BRI SN  AEE T EIE IR R
BPREHE - S ERGiordano KWK
Giordano QAZ 1 - ;2R i AN A & E 5T
A U B8 Giordano KW K Giordano QAZ %5 R
FRBERATE  MBSZEEE - RARR
BHEZTEEAUTRERZESE ()
B EE R T8 Y B IR EE S FE M(o)7T 5 2 8 B
/Ny R I=I

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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31. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

In 2015, the Group recognized financial liabilities of approximately
HK$19 million in relation to the financial liabilities arising from the
put option granted to the non-controlling shareholders of Giordano
KW and Giordano QA to sell their remaining interests in these
companies to the Group. Such put option is exercisable any time
after 3 years from completion of the Group’s acquisition of the
shares in Giordano KW and Giordano QA and has no expiry date.
Such financial liabilities are initially recognized at their fair value,
which is the present value of the estimated redemption amount
and were reclassified from equity. The put option liabilities are
denominated in U.S. dollars and are classified under non-current
liabilities.

In addition to the put option granted to non-controlling
shareholders of Giordano KW and Giordano QA, the Group was
also granted a call option from the non-controlling shareholders
with the rights to purchase their interests in Giordano KW and
Giordano QA. Such call option is exercisable any time after 2
years from completion of the Group’s acquisition of the shares
in Giordano KW and Giordano QA and has no expiry date. The
exercise price of both the put and call options shall be the higher
of (a) the same per share valuation as the acquisition and (b) the
fair market value at the time of exercise of the option.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

32, & IE

REHEZAE

(a) M2016F 128318 AEERTEE
HORRAERERZAIRKREBEZ
KERENTEENHEEBRNOT

201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

32. COMMITMENTS

Commitments under operating leases

(a)

As at December 31, 2016, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease charges payable under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of retail shops, office premises
and warehouses as set out below:

(K EEE TAEN) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
1F R Within one year 724 711

1 1% After one year but within
B5F K five years 794 723
5F LA E Over five years 26 7
1,544 1,441

KREMEANBETRERGN  H2
EAmE EEE - ETAMZRER
EHEIREREREES I NHESE
FEZEE (ABRSER/E) o LaliRE
REEREEEE -

(o) F20165F12A31H » REB R T E L4
MBRAEZAAIRAREBEZE&EHE
MREEKRHEEW AT

The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and
renewal rights. The operating lease rentals of certain outlets
are based on the higher of a minimum guaranteed rental or a
sales level based rental. The minimum guaranteed rental has
been used to arrive at the above commitments.

As at December 31, 2016, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease income receivable under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of retail shops and office premises
as set out below:

(XBBETRENL) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
1F R Within one year 21 23
1418 After one year but
B5F R within five years 9 8
30 31
33. E AR AEIE 33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

R20164F 20154 12A31H » AEBEWES
AEARTAEMERE BEAERHLAEREZ
B ARRIE -
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As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Group had no material
capital commitments in respect of leasehold improvements,
furniture and fixtures.
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M. EXRBABALRS
ERBA LA ERAREEEN ST 3=
EERHBREERRFES - HITEERXR
FENZALT HRAXMAZHHZMAE
FENZANITRREEBAL -

(a) RAFEERN > ALEE THERAE—
BEEEXFBRESTAE QR R
BRAETERRD - BHZER S

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related
if they are subject to common control or common significant
influence.

(a) During the year, certain subsidiaries traded with joint ventures

and associates in the ordinary and usual course of business.
Details relating to these transactions are as follows:

R
(KX B E#TRENN) (In HK$ million) 2016 2015
HELS Sales to:
—&ERA a joint venture 124 196
B & X A) associates - 6
124 202
KER Purchase from:
RN joint ventures 2 5
T REIRA ¢ Royalty income from:

A\ =
—HENF

a joint venture 29 28

A12 4318 FER R A 508 ¢

(U B BET»E)

Amounts due from these related parties at December 31 are:

(In HK$ million) 2016 2015

JFE Ui R Bk A £ RROR

BERA

Amounts due from:
joint ventures 5 3

MR20164F12A831H » Ll e W BE B A £+
FRIAE 70 Bl [ BLTE e U B H At fE MR BR 5K -
EWFIEHAEEE  EERARAREX
FREE -

(b) EEEE B H

EERREEEEERERSFHURBE
HM N &I HRRMEI10HKE

156 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(b)

As at December 31, 2016, the above amounts due from
related parties are reflected in trade and other receivables.
The receivables are unsecured in nature, bear no interest and
are repayable on demand.

Key management compensation

The directors regard the five highest paid individuals as
the key management of the Group whose remuneration is
disclosed in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F #



B HmRMEE (&)
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35. Igﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁj 35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
KAFNR2016FE12A31B 2 T BB A BN The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
o as at December 31, 2016:
BRETRZHMR
R/ ZRER/
BER®Z HEER
ERES% Issued and fully paid
Bt Effective share capital/
WEARERE Place of percentage of registered capital/ TBER/KEBE
Name of subsidiary incorporation equity holding quota capital Principal activities/place of operation
2016 2015
ENBERAA % 100 100 3,000,000 BETERDBRERERAR/ER
Bluestar Exchange Limited* Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 Retail and distribution of
apparel and accessories/Hong Kong
East Jean Limited* B0 100 100 1,000,000/ 7 BeTERERERAL/AE
Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 Retall of apparel and accessories/Taiwan
Giordano (Australia) Pty. Limited* 3 92.8 92.8  700,000&7T BETERERERRR,/ AN
Australia AUD700,000 Retail of apparel and accessories/Australia
Giordano Fashions HfE 50.9 509 10000000060 &N  HETERSBRERERAR/DE
(Indlia) Private Limited* India INR100,000,000 Retail and distribution of
apparel and accessories/India
Giordano Fashions (L.L.C.) W Rk & B R B 49 49 3000000MEi AR HETEREREBRR/
United Arab Emirates AED 3,000,000 P RE A RE
Retail of apparel and accessories/
United Arab Emirates
ERRERAA B 100 100 5,000,000/ BETERDBRERERRAG/BH
Giordano Limited* Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 Retail and distribution of
apparel and accessories/Hong Kong
Giordano (M) Scn. Bhd. ERAD 100 100 500,000 7 7 35 METERERERAR/BRED
Malaysia RM500,000 Retail of apparel and accessories/Malaysia
ERARRMERA A &M 100 100 50,0007 BETEREREBRR/ AN
Giordano (Macau) Limited* Macau MOP50,000 Retail of apparel and accessories/Macau
Giordano Middle East FZE* M Rke A RE-BE 100 100 1,000000M B EMAR LEHHREREBAR/

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 %
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Dubai - United Arab
Emirates

AED1,000,0000 WA AEE ERE - BF
Distribution of apparel and accessories/

Dubai - United Arab Emirates
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35. T EH BT (E) 35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

158

BRITR2EAR
RE/EmER/
BERSZ HEEF
EREAXR Issued and fully paid
Bt Effective share capital/
WEBATAE Place of percentage of registered capital/ TEEK/FEHE
Name of subsidiary incorporation equity holding quota capital Principal activities/place of operation
2016 2015
Giordano Originals DI 100 100 1,900,0028 M3 7T BETERBSRERRBAR/ MK
(Singapore) Private Limited Singapore SGD1,900,002 Retailing and trading of apparel
and accessories/Singapore
Giordano Vietnam Limited* % 60 60 10,000%7% BERECERRTRERE /BA
Hong Kong USD10,000 Joint Ventures investment & franchising/
Vietnam
Giordano (Cambodia) REE 80 80 REEEML000000 HETEREREMAG/XRE
Enterprise Limited* Cambodia KHR$4,000,000 Retail of apparel and accessories/Cambodia
PT. Giordano Indonesia* ) 40 40 2,500,00000080E  EETERE EEAS
Indonesia IDR2,500,000,000 REEBER/DR
Retail of apparel, accessories and related
products/Indonesia
RIIFBEK hEARENE 100 100 AR¥210,100000m  RAER - ZER
BERAT People’s Republic of RMB210,100,000 HERERRERAR/THAAE
Shenzhen Tiger China Investment holding, manufacturing and
Garment Ltd.* # retalling of apparel and accessories/
Mainland China
RECEERAF B 100 100 60,001,000 7 REER KKEHR
Tiger Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$60,001,000 RUEEERE/PEAE

n

Gl

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& m BB R

Investment holding, trading of
garment products
and provision of management services/
Mainland China
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201612 A31H
December 31, 2016

35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BETRZEAR
RE/EmER/
BERSZ HEEF
EREAE Issued and fully paid
R Effective share capital/
WEARER Place of percentage of registered capital/ TEEK/BEHE
Name of subsidiary incorporation equity holding quota capital Principal activities/place of operation
2016 2015
Textile and Ready PRALRE 75 75 270000000 KEZE BETERERERAL/
Garments Co. Ltd.* Kingdom of Saudi Arabia SAR27,000,000 DEMRRT
Retail of apparel and accessories/
Saudi Arabia
Walton International Ltd.* HEHRE 100 100 102%7T BEAHESHE
Cayman Islands usD102 Licensing of trademarks
Giordano Fashions W.L.L.* BEE 40 40 300000MEBEME LETERELEERSR/BEE
State of Kuwait KWD300,000 Retail of apparel and accessories/State
of Kuwait
GIO Fashions W.L.L." RER 40 40 200000FEBRELE KETERERERSR/FER
State of Qatar QAR200,000 Retail of apparel and accessories/State
of Qatar
iz Notes:
# AR BIINEBELE # This is wholly foreign owned enterprise
HEFEZHBRF Subsidiaries held indirectly
36. I BHmMREB 36. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KEEARFHIEHRRER2017F3A0HEE

=ERB -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 %

R

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board
of Directors on March 9, 2017.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

i8R RS &

20116 HOR + AR AL IEER200251 H24H
a2 AL ET B ([2002F BT &1 1) » TR
A B SR AR AR LT 8] (R20129F5 H22 B &£14&E])
(20115 s IR EETEI)) - EREREREAH R
TER/ B AFHR L 2 8% B B EER2002
FHBREASZEXR EMBRBZHETE -

AR AR B (2011 F IR 81 ) 2 B E
mF :

(1) BR

Zat B E A B R BB E AKEFEL TR
BAEHERMZBERERSEE -

FERBHRE

()

(i)

(i)

(@)

EMEZHBREEES (TwIAT
HIEBIT BEERBILIERTE
F) EESAHEFZEE (TWE
PREGRE) - X

HEFEHZE[MA
BN A R BRI K 8 s E 2K

PR B R R A R B 2 B A )
sk

FrA AN BE MK E SRR AR
EERBCRIE S R R P ET 2 EME
FZEHBA

7K 82 [ 4 A1 %, 8 o5 £ ] 12 A R 38 o gl 428
BB SR ) 2 (E A A #Y -

(@)

EREBHRAIERE  FRFEER
XEAEER REHRE

ER AL EBRETE  BRK
H Aty i ST R AR 70 - B
B HEMRT
EMEmARBGHEER

EAEE - %

EMEIMER(BERIERE)

Y2011 EBREAEIM S S eEd—f
SEMURBALEMNEERSEEREHZ
ESCIFNEIE

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On June 9, 2011, the Company terminated its then share option
scheme adopted on January 24, 2002 (the “2002 Scheme”) and
adopted a new share option scheme (as amended on May 22, 2012)
(the “2011 Scheme”) on the same date, but the options which have
been granted and remained outstanding and/or committed as of that
date shall continue to follow the provisions of the 2002 Scheme and the
Listing Rules.

Summary of the 2011 Scheme of the Company is as follows:

(1) Purpose

As incentives or rewards for the contribution or potential
contribution to the Group from the selected eligible participants.

(2) Eligible participants
(i) (a)

any director or proposed director (whether executive or
non-executive, including any independent non-executive
director), employee or proposed employee (whether full

time or part time) of, or
(b) any individual for the time being seconded to work for;
any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder
or any company controlled by a controlling shareholder;
or
(i) any holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any controlling shareholder or any company

controlled by a controlling shareholder; or

(i) any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder or a
company controlled by a controlling shareholder;

(@) any business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
contractor, agent or representative of,

(b) any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services to,

(c) any supplier of goods or services to,

(d) any customer of, or

(e) any landlord or tenant (including any sub-tenant) of;

and, for the purposes of the 2011 Scheme, shall include any

company controlled by one or more persons belonging to any of
the above classes of eligible participants.
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

Total number of shares available for issue

As at March 9, 2017, the total number of shares available for issue
under the 2011 Share Option Scheme (save for those granted
but not yet vested and exercised) is 56,014,000, representing
approximately 3.57% of the Company’s issued share capital as at
the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participants

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted under the 2011 Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company to any eligible participants
(including canceled, exercised and outstanding options), in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of
the shares in issue.

Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
2011 Scheme at any time during a period commencing on such
date on or after the date on which the option is granted as the
directors may determine in granting the option and expiring at the
close of business on such date as the directors may determine
in granting the option but in any event shall not exceed ten years
from the date of grant (which is the date of offer of grant if the offer
for the grant of the option is accepted).

Acceptance of offers

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount
payable on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is
HK$1.00.

Basis of determining the option exercise price

The option price per share payable on the exercise of an option is
to be determined by the directors provided always that it shall be
at least the higher of:

()  the closing price of the shares on the date of grant;

(i) the average closing price of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii)  the nominal amount of a share.

The remaining life of the 2011 Scheme

The 2011 Scheme remains in force until June 8, 2021.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

EﬁﬁEZ%E MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS
2002F BE iR fE 5T &I 2002 Scheme
BREHE
Number of share options
RER
20165 REARH REAR K HEI%N 20165 EROTEE
1R1R Granted Exercised Canceled/ 128310 Exercise REAH
RERSEE As at during during  lapsed during As at price Date TSR
Eligible participants 01/01/2016 the year the year the year 12/31/2016 per share of grant Exercisable period
AT (5/8/%) (F/8/%)
HK$  (MM/DDIYYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)
WE 800,000 - - 800,000 - 4,502 10/08/2010  03/25/2011 - 06/30/2020
Dominic Leo Richard IRWIN* 1,700,000 - - 1,700,000 - 4,502 10/08/2010  03/22/2012 - 06/30/2020
GEED, 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 - 4.502 10/08/2010  03/01/2013 - 06/30/2020
(Ex-Director)
5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 -
EEAUER 98,000 - - - 98,000 3896 11/27/2007  11/27/2008 - 11/26/2017
Continuous 120,000 - - - 120,000 3.8%6 1/27/2007  11/27/2009 - 11/26/2017
Contract 158,000 - - - 158,000 3.8%6 1/27/2007  11/27/2010 - 11/26/2017
Employees 1,106,000 - - 110,000 996,000 3.520 07/30/2008  10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
676,000 - - - 676,000 3.840 07/30/2008  10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
676,000 - - - 676,000 4160 07/30/2008  10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
700,000 - - - 700,000 3.340 07/07/2010  03/22/2012 - 06/30/2020
3,700,000 - - - 3,700,000 3.340 07/07/2010  03/01/2013 - 06/30/2020
200,000 - - 200,000 - 6.160 05/24/2011  03/22/2012 - 06/30/2020
300,000 - - 300,000 - 6.160 05/24/2011  03/01/2013 - 06/30/2020
500,000 - - 500,000 - 6.160 05/24/2011  28/02/2014 - 06/30/2020
8,234,000 - - 1,110,000 7,124,000
4t
Total 13,234,000 - - 6,110,000 7,124,000

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

BEBR 1‘& 2 % EJ ( &) MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
2011 BB IR fE T &8l 2011 Scheme
ERELE
Number of share options
RER
R2016% REARH REAR K HEI%N 20165 EROTEE
1R1R Granted Exercised Canceled/ 128310 Exercise REAH
RERSEE As at during during  lapsed during As at price Date TSR
Eligible participants 01/01/2016 the year the year the year 12/31/2016 per share of grant Exercisable period
BT (5/8/%) (F/8/%)
HK$  (MM/DDIYYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)
EZ
Director
Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 7.650 04/10/2013  02/28/2014 - 03/31/2022
3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 - 7.650 04/10/2013  03/04/2016 - 03/31/2022
- 282,000 - - 282,000 4.340 09/19/2016 it Note 1 - 06/30/2026
- 284,000 - - 284,000 4340 09/19/2016  Bi& Note 2 - 06/30/2026
4,200,000 566,000 - 3,000,000 1,766,000
[ 400,000 - - - 400,000 5200 100072011 03/22/2012 - 00/30/2021
CHAN Ka Wai 600,000 - - - 600,000 5.200 10/07/2011 03/01/2013 - 09/30/2021
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 5.200 10072011 02/28/2014 - 09/30/2021
100,000 - - - 100,000 5.000 08/24/2014  03/04/2015 - 03/23/2024
150,000 - - - 150,000 5,000 08/24/2014  03/04/2016 - 03/23/2024
200,000 - - - 200,000 5,000 03/24/2014  BiE Note 1 - 03/23/2024
250000 - - - 250000 5.000 03/24/2014  BiE Note 2 - 03/23/2024
300,000 - - - 300,000 5,000 03/24/2014 i3 Note 3 - 03/23/2024
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
ER 100,000 - - 100,000 - 5,000 08/24/2014  03/04/2015 - 03/23/2024
Dominic Leo Richard IRWIN* 150,000 - - 150,000 - 5,000 08/24/2014  03/04/2016 - 03/23/2024
CEED, 200,000 - - 200,000 - 5,000 03/24/2014  BiE Note 1 - 03/23/2024
(Ex-Director) 250,000 - - 250,000 - 5,000 03/24/2014 B3 Note 2 - 03/23/2024
300,000 - - 300,000 - 5,000 03/24/2014 i3k Note 3 - 03/23/2024
1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 163
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

BBRE2ST (B) MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
2011 B AR R ot 28I (4E) 2011 Scheme (continued)
EhEsE
Number of share options
RER
R2016% RERRE RERRE BE b3 20165 SR1TEE
1818 Granted Exercised Canceled/ 12A318 Exercise ReAH
LERSHE As at during during  lapsed during As at price Date TEER
Eligible participants 01/01/2016 the year the year the year 12/31/2016 per share of grant Exercisable period
BT (H/6/E) (F/8/%)
HKS  (MM/DDIYYYY) (MWDD/YYYY)
BEANEE 2,734,000 - - 134,000 2,600,000 5.200 10/07/2011 08/22/2012 - 09/30/2021
Continuous 5,568,000 - - 628,000 4,930,000 5.200 10/07/2011 08/01/2013 - 09/30/2021
Contract Employees 14,700,000 - - 2,200,000 12,500,000 5.200 10/07/2011 02/28/2014 - 09/30/2021
636,000 - - 204,000 432,000 5,380 06/12/2012  03/01/2013 - 12/31/2021
300,000 - - 300,000 - 5.380 06/12/2012  02/28/2014 - 12/31/2021
500,000 - - 500,000 - 5.380 06/12/2012  03/04/2015 - 12/31/2021
1,760,000 - - 240,000 1,520,000 7.650 0471012013 02/28/2014 - 03/31/2022
4,400,000 - - 4,400,000 - 7.650 04/10/2013  03/04/2016 - 03/31/2022
5,538,000 - - 794,000 4,744,000 5,000 08/24/2014  03/04/2015 - 03/23/2024
8,266,000 - - 1,182,000 7,084,000 5,000 08/24/2014  03/04/2016 - 03/23/2024
11,106,000 - - 1,590,000 9,516,000 5,000 03/24/2014  Bi5 Note 1 - 03/23/2024
13,946,000 - - 1,998,000 11,948,000 5,000 03/24/2014  HiE Note 2 - 03/23/2024
16,674,000 - - 2,386,000 14,288,000 5.000 03/24/2014 iz Note 3 - 03/23/2024
7,474,000 - 568,000 570,000 6,346,000 3.792 04/09/2015  03/04/2016 - 03/31/2025
7,660,000 - - 780,000 6,880,000 3.792 04/09/2015  Bi& Note 1 - 03/31/2025
500,000 - - - 500,000 4,090 071012015 03/04/2016 - 06/30/2025
500,000 - - - 500,000 4,090 01/10/2015 B3 Note 1 - 06/30/2025
- 882,000 - - 882,000 4,340 09/19/2016  Hi& Note 1 - 06/30/2026
- 884,000 - - 884,000 4,340 09/19/2016  HiE Note 2 - 06/30/2026
102,252,000 1,766,000 568,000 17,906,000 85,554,000
i 340,000 - - - 340,000 5.200 10/07/2011 08/22/2012 - 09/30/2021
Others 720,000 - - - 720,000 5.200 10/07/2011 08/01/2013 - 09/30/2021
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 5.200 10/07/2011 02/28/2014 - 09/30/2021
510,000 - - - 510,000 5,000 08/24/2014  03/04/2015 - 03/23/2024
758,000 - - - 758,000 5,000 08/24/2014  03/04/2016 - 03/23/2024
1,020,000 - - - 1,020,000 5.000 03/24/2014  B¥E Note 1 - 03/23/2024
1,282,000 - - - 1,282,000 5.000 03/24/2014  Bi5 Note 2 - 03/23/2024
1,630,000 - - - 1,630,000 5,000 03/24/2014  BiE Note 3 - 03/23/2024
9,160,000 - - - 9,160,000
fit
Total 119,612,000 2,332,000 558,000 21,906,000 99,480,000
Kiaz: Notes:
R20164F3H3H B fF * Resigned on March 3, 2016
1 2016F P FXBERNMEH 1 the day after 2016 final results announcement
2 2017 F 2 FHENHTEH 2 the day after 2017 final results announcement
2018F 2 F EENHEH 3 the day after 2018 final results announcement
164 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Date of grant

SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

VALUATION OF SHARE OPTIONS

The fair value per each option granted during the year was estimated
on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model
with the following assumptions:

2016F9H19H
September 19, 2016

1T1EE

Exercise price

BlRESE
Number of options

BREzSRAREE
Fair value per option

BRI X (iFa)

Risk free interest rate (Note a)

TEH TR AR B
Expected dividend per share

Ta BRI U8 (47 5tb)
Expected volatility (Note b)

TE HR B A 4 F HR
Expected life of options

a  EERFEEEREL AR I FHINEE S EFAHAL
EE o

b FERRIEEERAL AREREFARIE

c Mk e TR HREERABEFETEELIBRRY
B o (B RREF NGB Z B8 EHEREZ R
N EEERNEAZE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 F

43478 7T
HK$4.34

2,332,000

0.1518 T

HK$0.151

0.632%

45.07%811

45.0 HK cents

35.4%

T

7 years

Notes:

C

The risk free rate is based on the approximate yield of five-year Exchange Fund Note
on the date of grant.

The expected volatility is based on volatility of the stock price of the Company over
the past year.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model requires input of highly subjective
assumptions. Any changes in the subjective input assumptions may materially affect
the estimation of the fair value of an option.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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IMPORTANT DATES

Closure of Register of Members

Annual General Meeting

Proposed Final Dividend

Annual General Meeting
May 26, 2017

Dividends

Interim Dividend

Paid on

Proposed Final Dividend
Payable on

STOCK CODE

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Bloomberg
Reuters

May 283, 2017 to May 26, 2017
(both days inclusive)

June 5, 2017 to June 7, 2017
(both days inclusive)

12.5 HK cents per share
September 23, 2016
15.0 HK cents per share
June 23, 2017

709
709 HK
0709.HK

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

Giordano International Limited

5th Floor, Tin On Industrial Building

777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road

Kowloon, Hong Kong

investorrelations@giordano.com

Telephone (852) 2746 4771
Facsimile (852) 2370 8864
e-mail

WEBSITE

WwWw.giordano.com
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Welcome to the 2016 Environmental, Social and Governance (the
“ESG”) Report of Giordano International Limited (“Giordano”).
‘World Without Strangers’ has been Giordano’s credo since
inception and reflects our vision to create a sense of familiarity,
regardless of ethnicity, nationality or culture.

Our philosophy is now articulated in this, our first ESG Report,
which highlights our approach and performance against ESG
metrics, including the way we run our organization, the inclusive
and supportive workplace we strive to create for our employees,
the responsible products and services we offer to customers,
and the impact that we are making around the world.

Giordano has long been committed to being a responsible
corporate citizen, and formally adopted its Corporate Social
Responsibility policy statement in 2005. Since then we continue
to focus on “doing well by doing good” in order to have a
positive impact in the communities where we do business,
paying particular attention to stakeholder relations, community
involvement and environmental protection.

With the onset of enhanced compliance requirements set by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKEx”) on ESG
Reports and growing demand for corporate disclosure from
stakeholders in general, this Report primarily addresses the
environmental, social and governance aspects of our strategies
and operations, including how we deliver exceptional service
to our customers in a fair and transparent manner, investing
in our employees’ development and fostering an inclusive
work environment, as well as our framework to develop strong
governance, effective risk management systems and robust
controls.

Reporting Standard and Scope

Prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide of the
HKEX, this Report aims to provide a systemic and balanced
representation of Giordano’s ESG performance for the year
of 2016, which covers our operations in Mainland China,
Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and Singapore (collectively, the
“Reporting Markets”), and contributes towards over 70% of
Giordano’s sales in 2015 (excluding shops operated by our
franchisees and licensees). A detailed References to “HKEXx
ESG Reporting Guide” has been included at the back of this
Report to aid readers and facilitate greater transparency.

Stakeholders’ engagement is an integral part of Giordano’s
business development and commitment to global sustainable
development. In the preparation of this Report, we have
proactively engaged our key stakeholders, including our staff
representatives, our core suppliers as well as our customers,
who play a critical role in our business development.
Stakeholders’ input, obtained via questionnaires, provided us
with a comprehensive assessment of priority key performance
indicators (the “KPIs”) and helped us identify the relevant long-
term sustainability goals, enabling us to strengthen the coverage
of the KPlIs in this Report.

2016 ESG Report 3755 - @ R EARE S
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GIORDANO: CARING FOR OUR ENVIRONMENT

Environmental Aspect A1: Minimized Emissions by
Green-minded Operations

(1)

(2)

At Giordano, we seek to ensure that our business
operations are environmentally friendly, making every
effort to reduce waste and emissions from every aspect
of our business activities, from production at our suppliers
through to our own business operations.

We believe that our business activities and the facilities of
our overall operations comply with the relevant laws and
regulations on environmental protection.

Environmental Aspect A2: Conserving Resources

(1)

(2)

(3)

ESG.2

Inactive alignmentwith the Hong Kong governmental policy
of reducing our “carbon footprint”, we are committed
to reducing carbon emissions as well as protecting and
sustaining the environment through reduced consumption
of electrical power, water and paper. In 2016, our
greenhouse gas (the “GHG”) emissions intensity resulted
from our daily operations in the Reporting Markets was
4.064 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent per 1 million
sales in Hong Kong dollars.

Efficient use of resources and reducing waste relating
to energy, water and raw materials are essential to our
business. We are committed to:

using resources wisely and efficiently, such as cutting
the volume of materials and packaging;

reducing waste generation within our operations;
promoting environmental protection, via supply chain
management and smart shop operations;
incorporating sustainable environmental practices into
our business principles; and

promoting environmental awareness among our
customers and business associates.

Since 2008, Giordano has actively pursued a group-wide
initiative to convert lighting in all shops to energy-saving
lighting.
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e Saving Energy

As electricity consumption is the biggest contributor to our GHG
emissions, various energy saving and efficiency measures have
been undertaken in most of our office premises and shops:

Replace chilled water air-conditioning with more efficient split-type air-conditioners

Maintain and repair air-conditioners regularly for better performance

~

ERRR LEH BN HROA AR
Air-conditioning
SRERZE R R RE R
’@ﬁ“e'gy'sa‘,/ Reschedule the operating time of air-conditioning
Ig %, R BN TIREE25-26°C
F %. Maintain an average indoor temperature of 25-26°C
s
% § TSN, SRMRRERRES
% &

REAR® PHAERESHERFLEDIE S ERRESE
Lighting

Equip offices and shops with LEDs or energy efficient lights

)

(4) HEEERREENRES - RACHIAEERNRE R
HEBIRIR - BER 5Rs RAI — WK HAER - BERR
A REBRRNERER - EHREBE N R R
B - DREKRR RS EROSRE BRI RR
D REYIEELE
o IR(8 [MELEE] - ERETXE
o SSEDRMTERARWEST DR
o BRI
o (BB REAA

s BERBAEHNERE &
o BIEHBERBREMREIRE -

s RERHE

BMUASBEIRREL —20  YETEEERRRA
B 2010F HETBRANIY [RElk] ELEP—@E
R flF o [REEEK] SETRFPINKREEHIETEIR
B XRBOREEGKLES - BE - [REEK] 8B TEER
B EETEE MBRERESE - AR EEE2010F 21
[RIREFRAMLLE] -

o *TEENA I

(4) While we strive to create shareholders’ value, we are also
concerned with the conservation of ecological resources
and driving environmental protection. Based on the 5Rs
principle — to Replace, Reduce, Reuse, Recover and
Recycle — Giordano makes every effort to save energy,
cut down on the use of resources, recycle materials, as
well as to reduce the generation of waste by implementing
different practices internally:

+ promoting the concept of “paperless meetings” with
the use of electronic copies of documents;

pre-setting printers for double-sided printing;
recycling used paper;

reusing and recycling carton boxes;

reusing shop furniture; and

reusing plastic packaging bags as bin bags.

e Advocacy and Education

We also encourage our staff to adopt environmentally
responsible behavior and promote environmental protection in
the workplace. One good example is the “Green Team” set up
in our Hong Kong Headquarters in 2010, which brings together
representatives from different departments and initiates
programmes to promote low carbon living. In the past, the
“Green Team” has organized various activities for staff to learn
about and experience low carbon living, including the “Green
Christmas Tree Decorating Competition” held in 2010.

== SR L r A
, 2% oy bz 2 ) ¢

©GIORDANO " GREEN TEAM

ESG.3
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mEIL e In 2016, Giordano also participated in a number of events
to advocate for environmental protection and raise the
environmental awareness of our staff and community,

including:
i. [Lai See Packet Collection Programme]

In 2016, with the enthusiastic support of our staff, Giordano
collected over 1,000 Lai See packets from our offices and shops
in Hong Kong. The Lai See packets collected were then passed
to Greeners Action for further processing, after which renewed
packets were distributed to the public for free.

DB &

i. [EAEEERRATHI]

BHTBETHARNZFR - 2016F HFIHE
EREIEASIEERERNE
o BRERMHE

TR
ISH) IR

—ZIVERAERREETEORE
MAEMBEHELE

RERENE

&1 Graphic 1 %

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

38 Intensity

4.064

DE (R
S—EAETHRER
tCO,e/HKS1m sales

wEE

Electricity Consumption

38 Intensity

6,190

?ﬁﬁ/ﬁ—ﬁﬁ%m%ﬁﬁ
KWHh/HK$1m sales

38 Intensity

3t Total

19,423

FHETRE
KkWh in ‘000s

(]
G L ey )
- O
1COze/HKS$1m sales
HEhiEE

Vehicle Fuel Consumption

25.563 [ 40 |

AF/E-ERETHER
Litre/HK$1m sales

38EE Intensity

v
tCOze/HK$1m sales
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@t Total

80,215

i. [Book Collection Campaign for World Vision]

With the support of our staff in Hong Kong, Giordano collected more
than 70 books in 2016, which have been donated to World Vision
for various charity activities.

e Green Performance Overview

WZE THEFR™  Below is a summary of our environmental performance with

respect to our operations in shops, offices and warehouses in
the Reporting Markets:

@E (E1+2)
Total (Scope 1+2)

12,754

AL §\,1 4733 3
tCOze

§882 Scope 2

12,555

AR E
tCOze

12,555
(98.4%)

kE
Water Use

199
: (1.6%)

UK/ -EBEETHER

m¥HK$1m sales

@5t Total

119,251

oy 3
m3

WBuNEER
Shopping Bag Consumption

reerte 0.127

25t Total
17 /TR TRER
24 Intensity Tonne/HK$1m sales
L e
Tonne

WIS Price Tag

0%
fonne.

 Tonne/HKS 1
BEMEERS

Packaging Material Consumption

1,196

Tonne

0.00004

ALt A
Tonne/Piece of Finished Product
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Notes:

1.

GHG Emissions

Due to our business nature, the significant air emissions of the Reporting
Markets are the GHG emissions, arising mainly from the use of electricity
and fuels derived from fossil fuels.

GHG emissions data is presented in carbon dioxide equivalent (in tonnes)
and is computed with reference to:

i. the “2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories”
issued by the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (“IPCC”);

ii. the international reporting framework published by the World
Resources Institute and the World Business Council for
Sustainable Development, as reported in “The Greenhouse Gas
Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard”;

iii. the “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas
Emissions and Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential

or Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong (2010 Edition)” issued
by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department and
the Environmental Protection Department in Hong Kong;

iv. the sustainability reports of the Hong Kong Electric Company Ltd,
the China Light and Power Company Ltd and the Companhia de
Electricidade de Macau; and

v. the data published by the International Energy Agency.

In order to provide a more comprehensive view of our GHG impact, we have
further classified the GHG emissions of Giordano into 2 scopes (as below),
which are defined in accordance with the international reporting framework
published by the World Resources Institute and the World Business Council
for Sustainable Development, as reported in “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol:
A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard”:

i. “Scope 1” covers direct emissions from operations that are owned or
controlled by the Reporting Markets, arising mainly from fuel used by our
own corporate vehicles (excluding the vehicle fleets of our contractors);

i. “Scope2”covers “energy indirect” emissions resulting from the generation
of purchased electricity consumed within the Reporting Markets (excluding
electricity consumed in some retail outlets in departmental stores and/or
shopping malls where electricity is not separately charged).

In view of our business nature, Giordano is not aware of any significant
generation of hazardous waste.

Some retail stores operate in shopping malls and/or departmental stores where
water supply and discharge are controlled by the building management so the
retrieval of the relevant data is not feasible.

The amount of paper use is the amount of paper purchased to support the
daily operation of the Reporting Markets (excluding those of paper shopping
bags and packaging material).

The amount of shopping bags consumed is the amount of paper and plastic
shopping bags purchased for store use in the Reporting Markets.

2016 ESG Report 3755 - @ R EARE S
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Environmental Aspect A3: Minimizing Impact on the
Environment and Natural Resources for Sustainable
Development

(1) Giordano places great emphasis on protecting the
environment and natural resources. We strive to improve
our technical know-how to minimize negative impact on
the environment during production and operations. We:

+ take into account the environmental impact of our
activities and decisions;
continuously improve the environmental protection
initiatives and strengthen target and responsibility
assessments, environmental protection supervision
and management; and

+ strictly control environmental risks.

(2) Giordano follows strict sustainable development practices
throughout its operations, and places environmental
protection as one of its top priorities in the process of
supply chain management. We are concerned with
the environmental risk factors in production, such as
emissions and waste discharge. Thus, in selection of our
suppliers, their measure of protecting the surrounding
environment is one of our selection criteria.

(3) Moreover, we introduce green elements into our products.
One recent example is the use of polypropylene, which is
one of the major components of our G-Warmer thermal
base layer collection. Polypropylene is degradable
when exposed to heat and UV radiation, and is also
fully recyclable. For our premium crossover collection
with the outdoor wear brand, Lowe Alpine, we also use
performance fabrics with G-Tex membrane, which is
awarded the Oeko-Tex Standard 100 and the Bluesign
certification for its eco-conscious production processes.

9

00

(4) Furthermore, in support of environmental protection, we
opted to charge more per plastic shopping bag than that
requested by the Government of the HKSAR; that is,
from HK$0.5 to HK$1, effective from 1 January 2016, to
discourage the use of plastic bags and to encourage our
customers to bring their own bags.

ESG.6
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ERR  EEZERMANET GIORDANO: CARING FOR OUR EMPLOYEES
H#EEE B1: & Social Aspect B1: Employment
(1) EABBEMRESTER AN TENRBEMRERE (1) As an international apparel retailer, Giordano’s retail
KM o BZE2016F128318 © RIFIEE2,397RIESHE © = network spreads across five continents of the world,
\ /8 & —im A running a total of 2,397 shops as at 31 December 2016,
%{F%%@Eﬁﬁ%mﬁ% \F;ﬁﬁ/{é”;"ﬁﬂfﬂ'ﬁi I enabling us to deliver our ‘World Without Strangers’
B ZE2016F12A318 » HMEERTISANETAHE credo globally. For the Reporting Markets, our headcount
EF|5,285A ¢ reaches 5,285 talents as at 31 December 2016:

[El2 Graphic 2

[ER RIS RS T 537 Talent Distribution by the Reporting Markets

g Singapore

294

*  a@Taiwan

1,203 %

}

&i# R %P Hong Kong & Macau

1,001

"l . *"*M

(2) EFPUEE - ERERERY) - 2REIEBEANE KSR  (2) Giordano believes that its long-term success depends

SE o AL NS HEERSEES T o on the contribution of each and every individual in the
Rt B - EFARARFREBMEEAEFRT - K organization. As such, Giordano is committed towards
HE - BAOEE LT —OMEREBEESIRER treating its staff with fairness and respect. We believe
o T (PISTIEE FIE A 2k 2 R HE AE R = in co-operation, teamwork and trust as the foundation of
o AMFFERAER T SEARNARE - TRRAT Giordano. We hire on the basis of ability and merit, and
RO(E A RIFRTE MR B - reward and promote on the basis of performance.
e BEEMEEZ Lt ¢ Respecting and Reflecting Diversity

BRPBRT BN EE—EZ TN TESRIE - JLRUT We believe in diversity and endeavor to safeguard a diverse
o A working environment, which is reflected in the composition of
RMETMESE: our staff as demonstrated below:

[E3 Graphic 3 BT (AL
Percentage of Female Composition

(BRI 2% FEBH
Employment Type Distribution Age Distribution

30-508%
30-50 years old

38.6%

¥ 89
Part-time | Contract

28.1%

KEE5088
> 50 years

3.4%

G305
< 30 years old

58%

8T Staff
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(3) Employment Policy

A series of polices, handbooks and protocols are in place
in Giordano to help build a workplace where our staff are
treated fairly and equally, with their rights and interests
being protected. These include:

i. Staff Handbook

Giordano strictly complies with relevant labour laws
and regulations. All staff are treated equally, and their
employment, remuneration and promotion will not be
affected by their social identities such as ethnicity, race,
nationality, gender, religion, age, sexual orientation,
political faction or marital status.

ii. Code of Conduct

Giordano believes that honesty, integrity and fairness
are important values, and are crucial to our long-term
development and success. Thus, the Code of Conduct
has been established to convey our expected standards
of conduct and practices to all staff, who are required
to adhere to the highest standards of business and
professional ethics so that we can earn the trust of our
business partners and customers and grow our business.

iii. Whistle Blowing Policy

To create an open, transparent and safe working
environment where staff are able to speak up, we
have a longstanding whistleblowing policy in place
that allows them to raise concerns and for Giordano to
follow up cases in a systematic yet protective setting.

(4) People Management

i. Giordano offers competitive remuneration packages,
share options and generous goal-oriented or
performance-based bonuses tailored to the
different levels of staff, as well as to reward and
retain a high-caliber leadership team.

ii. Family-friendly Employment Practices

a. Flexi-time Arrangement at Work

We want our staff to both enjoy and succeed at
work and at home. This is one of the keys to both
retaining high quality staff and allowing them to
thrive. That is why we strive to create a working
environment which caters for the needs of our staff
and their families, starting with the introduction of
flexi-time work arrangements (initially in Hong Kong
and Taiwan for office staff) this year.

b. Support for Breastfeeding

In support of our working mothers’ needs of
pumping milk in the workplace, we have specially
designated a private space in the office of our Hong
Kong Headquarters for expressing milk.
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Acknowledging our Staff

Staff Commendation Award Scheme
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Not only do we publish and circulate real-life customer
commendations to acknowledge our staff's good
performance, our Hong Kong Headquarters has also
additionally implemented a “Staff Commendation Award
Scheme” in September 2016 to encourage and award
our staff exceeding expected performance standards
or having made significant contributions. Each quarter,
outstanding staff will be nominated and awarded with a
Staff Commendation Certificate and a cash coupon as a
token of our appreciation.

. Long Service Award

Our Hong Kong Headquarters provides Long Service
Awards to staff that have served the company for 5
years, 10 years, 20 years and 30 years respectively.

. Staff Activities

To reinforce our staff’s sense of belonging to Giordano,
we arrange a wide range of activities every year.
This year, we organized various interest group
activities, some of which are detailed below, to help
our staff maintain a healthy work-life balance and with
participation at minimal cost.

e [ Course on Making Mini Cartoon Creamy Mooncakes ]

Staff and their relatives chose their favorite cartoon characters
according to their preferences, and hand-made cartoon
creamy mooncakes.
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[ Course on D.L.Y. Headwear Making ]

Staff joined together to learn how to make their own favorite
headwear for themselves and for their loved ones.

vi. Staff Satisfaction Surveys

a. Each year, Giordano conducts staff satisfaction
surveys to obtain useful feedback as reference for
improving our policies.

b. Thisyear, for talent development, we also conducted
a seminar on “Manager’s Roles” and a survey on
“Staff’s Engagement and Career Planning” in Hong
Kong Headquarters.

Social Aspect B2: Occupational Health and Safety (OHS)

(1) OHS is a crucial component of Giordano’s overall safety

framework. Reducing health and safety risks in the
workplace is an important and constant objective. In
2016, we continued to reinforce our strong leadership,
management system and training programme, to
strengthen our safety culture and enhance our overall
OHS performance.

(2) To ensure a safe working environment, we:

i. provide intensive training programme for our staff to
improve their safety awareness;

ii. regularly monitor workplace safety and particularly
allocate District Supervisors to supervise and monitor
shop operations to ensure each phase of which
operates safely; and

iii. carry out workplace tidiness at our offices, warehouses
and shops.

Including, but not limited to

a. Action 1: Issue of Notice & Guidance

Reminding shop staff of the importance of OSH
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b. 178 2 : ZHRETEERE b. Action 2: Arranging OSH Seminars

c. T8 3: RIFTIFHMERE c. Action 3: Good Housekeeping at Workplace

d. T84 ERARATAABRALERRBEZERER/) d. Action 4: Hosting the webpage “Tips on
BRMER Occupational Health & Safety” on

Giordano’s Intranet

Mz s B/ \B# Tips on Occupational Health & Safety
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HEEE B3: A7 R EHE Social Aspect B3: Talent Development Strategy
(1) ERREEEE T2 —n T EHN  BRMRAEEE - (1) Giordano encourages learning and recognizes that

values and fairness as well as opportunities for continuing

NF - FHERE? X @2k R RaSE o -
AF - FENERREARRAFRAIE B professional and personal development are equally

At - BRI NMEZSIHEES T important drivers for high achievers. As such, we invest
o N heavily not only in comprehensive
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\ - a - also in management, planning and

R A B T REFREEME leadership programme, to address

- o our staff’s professional and personal
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ABRFRE - WHREEH L TBH development needs and to retain a

TEEFX o skilled and motivated workforce.

ESG.11 2016 ESG Report 3755 - @ R EARE S



GIORDANO

(2)

(3)

(4)

2016 ESG Report I23% « g RERHRES

JBRESE (BN - BRIERFRY) BR - EARSFRAT
HEFAEEETNERES - USRI AT FEE -

EREEEEEE

EFRIEEEREFTAS  FHEAERRRE  ARERE
EBHMENHE N - BENTEFERE  EFNEBEEES
A(CMT” )FHEl - BREBEETEAS  KESAWRE - &£
2014 &8 BPVEBBAIREMTETE - WAIBEIEHR K
RAREAD  UWERIEEEH —EE2OEIER -
LESFEER  RINEELCDEERZIEHEER
AR - ERNERIERSESM KT ER & AREIK
4 ORI A RIS S A GE BB - ALEB L
W ARKE ("FT's” )
FEEHRMIUNEFEE 700 ZDEHFE - BB AKID R
BARMN FEFENEEL  bLAFZEHEBELIEM - hF
PUSHMRESHIRAS - AR THBANDGEMTE - HERY
BI0AEEEA - MAN2016FRIN2ENBI5A -
EEMEFEERFAEMTAEERRNEHESZI@A
ARRARZE TS 08 - HE21EAMRBRLTHE - BEEZEEIR
ARABATNEISPMNTNEEMN — EBEERERNBERE
B ESATIRE M EIIRIE - EHAIR20162£NES
£ BREREALEENAG  PRERMAE  EEUK
MIREIE - BELBHEEIEIN -

BB R 201 7EETE AN ETESERNNEKE
RIE o BEFR2016F 10 AHERE T 14112k B 6T AL K E /)
MT » b FI#8 201747 AE2019F6 Al =« HE - &
BRI LT o

A IR AR
EFRN—EHNIEERETERNER UGS ESETE
B WEE [BEEHEEAE  TEHYZFHA] F8e
BRI o HPURM T RZEREE THFIIMEE L -
AT —(Eies  EENEENITEBRR - LUBARN
B o 5F  BFARLGEE THIERILRE T o Rltedt 7
829,000/ N85 K2 4,300/ EFH) I ZREEFI| o

%

B4 Graphic 4

(2)

(3)

(4)

ESG.12

Pursuant to our 3E (i.e. Economy, Efficiency and
Effectiveness) policy, Giordano conducted a review of
the team structure by department heads in an attempt to
identify talents for development this year.

Fast-Track Management Trainee Scheme

Giordano has always placed a strong focus on cultivating
talents with international perspective, insight into
international 8ractlces and strong competitiveness. Ever
since the 1990’s, Giordano has operated Management
Trainee (the “MT”) programme to nurture retailing talents,
with satisfactory results. In2014, we modified and upgraded
our MT Scheme in Hong Kong Headquarters to ensure
that participants received a holistic and comprehensive
training experience, such that upon graduation,
successful graduates could be placed directly into middle-
management roles. This reform included a tightening in
our admission requirements in terms of academic result
requirements and a restructuring of the syllabus to include
real business tasks in various departments and functions
within Giordano, hence renaming the trainees to the Fast-
Trackers (the “FT’s”).

The first intake received over 700 applications — the
majority of applicants were university graduates with
Bachelor degrees, and many are Master degree holders.
Giordano has not set intake amount and will adjust
the number of offers made based on the quality of the
agpllcants. Finally, approximately 30 were taken on and
15 successfully graduated in 2016.

This 2-year Scheme is designed such that all FT’s would
be required to first spend 3 months working in Giordano’s
stores to understand the essence of our business,
followed by a 21-month rotation where they would
be placed in different ‘seats’ in different departments
within our headquarters — a model mirrored on training
;])_rogramme offered by leading international law firms.

hose successfully graduated in 2016 _have now taken
on some important roles with some stationed in overseas
regions, including product development and management
as well as brand management.

We also aim at launching a Hong Kong style Fast Tracker
programme in Mainland China in 2017. 14 MT’s from 6
local universities have been hired In October 2016, who
would be trained with rotated roles in Beijing, Shanghai,
Wuhan and Shenzhen from July 2017 to June 2019.

In-House Training Programme

Giordano invests heavily in learning and development to
maintain its competitive edge. We believe, that continual
updating of professional skills and the sharing of
knowledge will allow the company to grow with the times.
We therefore allocate ample resources to staff training
and development with the aim of sustaining a competent,
professional and ethical staff force that will contribute to
the success of the company. In 2016, over 29,000 hours
of in-house training were delivered to our frontline staff
and over 4,300 hours were delivered to non-frontline staff.
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. Our People-oriented Approach towards Cultivating Staff

Based on our staff’s different needs, we regularly
organize internal training and on-job training for staff
in different roles - not only to improve staff’'s work
performance, but also to help equip them with new
skills to face new challenges.

* Induction talk for new staff

Reinforcement and refresher training programme
equip staff with the latest information and skills to
carry out their duties to the highest standards.

ii. Other internal training offerings are designed to help staff
develop their capabilities, advance their careers and
enhance their management and interpersonal skills.

EEFEREE Cultivate positive attitudes
v v
BETERE - RIEER AR Stimulate the potential to create unlimited possibilities
] v
BEEREOD Foster teamwork cohesion
v v

RIh=REExBHh x #EH

o [XTRERERZI]

ESG.13

Success = Attitude x Hardworking x Competence

[ Never Give Up series ]
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b.

[ Buddying for New Frontline Staff ]

More experienced staff take on the role of mentors and
help take care of new members as part of our service
heritage.

iii. Giordano Corporate Management Guide

Giordano’s core values, corporate
culture and accumulated experience are
all parts of our success story. Under the
leadership of our Chairman, Dr. Peter
Lau, together with the contribution from
different staff members from various
departments, we have summarized this
information into four guide books for
staff’s easy reference. The aim is to turn
tacit knowledge built on experiences,
aptitudes and know-how into explicit
knowledge for the benefit of all staff
members in the long term.

iv. Online Learning Resources on the “Knowledge is
Golden” Webpage

[Professor G#83 ] Professor G Blog
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v. Self-Learning Scheme

Through an Employee Self-Learning Programme
adopted since 1999 in Hong Kong Headquarters, we
foster a continuous learning atmosphere to promote
staff’s individual initiative and responsibility for
development.

Scheme Objective 3 BIRE :
(1) BEEREBENTEE,
(2) ERTI&RE  RABARED

EM-—ERFEIREMNRHEENEE  RUTEHRBET
BhFM - UEEFRXBERREEACTHAR  RABARK
REREERBNESARERE -

vi. Survey on Training Needs

Each year, we conduct a survey on Training Needs in
order to understand our staff’s different expectations
and needs, which aids in designing the useful and
practical training programme for them.

vii. Training Subsidy
a. Training Allowance Scheme

To encourage our staff to enhance their knowledge and
skills for personal growth, which benefits their work
performance and future career development, Hong
Kong Headquarters has set up a “Training Allowance
Scheme” to subsidize our staff in taking external work-
related training courses.

b. Management Academic Assistance Scheme

In September 2016, Giordano devised the Management
Academic Assistance Scheme which is designed to
develop existing and future management talent through
supporting successful applicants that wish to pursue
higher education, such as studying in undergraduate
and postgraduate degrees or the attainment of
professional qualifications or accreditation, by way of
financial support.

viii. Career Development Programme for Shop Staff

To provide shop staff with more opportunities for
development and enhance their job satisfaction, we
have launched a Career Development Programme. Itis
tailored for those shop staff nominated by department
heads, aiming to equip staff with the skills they require
to develop their careers through additional training.

Social Aspect B4: Policies on Labour Standards and
Human Rights

Giordano prohibits the employment of child, forced or compulsory
labour in any of its operations, including at suppliers’ production
facilities. In 2016, we did not identify any operation or suppliers
having significant risks of child labour, young workers exposed
to hazardous works, or forced or compulsory labour.

ESG.15 2016 ESG Report 3755 - @ R EARE S
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GIORDANO: CARING FOR OUR SUPPLIERS

Social Aspect B5: Efficient Supply Chain Management

At Giordano, supply chain management is based on the premise
of satisfying customers’ needs, and better coordination among
the various functions of our business, such as the supplies,
manufacturing, warehousing and distribution by better planning
and through information sharing. Through more effective
integration of resources, we thus reduce costs and maximize
efficiency.

As at 31 December 2016, Giordano had a total of 104 suppliers,
located in different parts of the world:

{15 @AY thiE 3% Suppliers by Geographical Region
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3(2.8%)

thE (53E& %) China (including Hong Kong

87 (83.7%)

# @528 Southeast Asia

9(8.7%)

EUM Europe

5(4.8%)

Notes:

“Suppliers” refer to the manufacturers of apparel and accessories which are
directly engaged by Giordano.
The geographical location of a supplier is based on the location of its production
facilities and its headquarters.

We have established a complete supplier quality assurance
mechanism, which covers supplier approval and evaluation,
quality inspection and supervision, strategic supplier
development and materials procurement.

Besides, we actively promote the sustainable development of
our supply chain and the joint fulfillment of corporate social
responsibility with our partners to provide the public with
high quality products and services. As such, supply chain
management is always one of the key links in Giordano’s quality
control system.

(1) Ethical Sourcing

As supply chain management is critical for Giordano’s
success, we work closely with suppliers to ensure that
they comply with our quality, performance and not least
labour standards. In particular, we expect them to comply
with the below Core Ethical Sourcing Requirements:

ESG.16
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The Supplier

only employs workers that are above the local legal
minimum age;

does not use forced or prison labour in any part or
aspects of its facilities;

does not, or threaten to, physically abuse its workers;
does not contravene local environmental laws and
regulations;

provides a safe and healthy work environment for its
workers; and

is compliant with our various standards and committed
to following up corrective actions.

We aim to do business with those suppliers sharing
similar values and principles, and intend to purchase
from those who meet our above Core Ethical Sourcing
Requirements and have demonstrated a commitment to
improving their standards on labour, health and safety,
and environmental practices. Thus, prior to engagement,
new suppliers are required to complete and pass our
Ethical Audit Questionnaire.

(2) Quality Assurance Mechanism

i. Giordano exercises a high level of scrutiny over the selection
of suppliers. Based on adequate qualifications, suppliers
are subject to assessment and on-site audits on product
quality as well as suitability and quality consistency tests
made by our Quality Assurance team. They should pass
our audits and assessments before being included into the
“Qualified Supplier List” for purchases. Also, to ensure our
product quality, we carry out long-term quality monitoring
and regular audits/reviews on all suppliers. Should there be
any significant change in a supplier’s qualification or serious
quality issue, we may suspend its deliveries immediately
and, if necessary, cancel its status as a qualified supplier.
Moreover, our unannounced inspections from time-to-time
will ensure our suppliers comply with our various standards.

ii. In order to mitigate environmental and social risk within our
supply chain, and to promote the sustainable development
of our suppliers, a “Quality Manual” which covers below
guiding documents is also distributed to our key suppliers

Suppliers Code of Conduct;

Workplace Standards;

Product Safety and Regulated Substances Specification;
and

Accepting and Offering Policy.

iii. A supplier database has been established, and through on-
line transactions, we provide suppliers with fair, transparent
and competitive opportunities. With “open business,
controlled processes, fully documented and permanently
fraceable’ as our watchwords, we thus ensure the quality
of procured products and services compliant with our
standards.
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SR MmO mE - EMINR T BELEBE - AEEpolo B
Bl FEDCEEEANSERER 710%  BITXFRET
3% -

BEHRFE S EERN - FERRRBETK —ERDEFR - BHAZ

BETH

CRETHORE  TARTFHEEE AT AT A&SEEZY

Before: No Automation — Semi-finished garments were transported
manually by baskets from one work station to the next.
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(3) Technological Innovation Improves Competitiveness

i. Giordano will carefully examine every detail of the production
process and raise any issues that may be discovered, with
the aim of working with its suppliers to identify possible
areas of further improvement. By optimizing the process,
upgrading the technology and improving the workmanship,
the suppliers not only greatly improve their production
efficiency and product quality, but also help upgrade their
capabilities in response to more challenging markets and
enhance their competitiveness. This close-knit working
relationship between both sides allows the parties to
maintain a more stable and mutually benefit cooperation.

ii. In addition to investing in our own people, Giordano also
invests in training and development programme for its
business partners and franchisees in the Greater China
region to help them better compete in today’s rapidly
changing and highly competitive market.

e Green Semi-Automation in Production

Giordano is conscious of the role that technology plays
in driving production efficiency and in protecting the
environment. We work closely with our suppliers to improve
their production processes via environmentally-friendly
technology. In September 2016, our largest supplier, Speedy
Garment Manufacturing (Hong Kong)Company Limited,
introduced semi-automation into its production facility, of
which semi-finished garments are automatically transported
from one step to another during the construction process.
Throughthe Intelligent Hanger System using Radio Frequency
Identification (the “RFID”) in production management, semi-
automation helps to monitor the real-time production status
and quality, so as to speed up the entire production process.
Taking the manufacturing of polo shirts as an example, the
production lead time has been shortened by 10% and the
rework rate has been reduced by 3%.

WEHTHFEHEERN - FRERETK —EZDRTFE A
NEBRFIDIEENEEHEEBBRGT AT AEE
After: Semi-Automation — Semi-finished garments are transported
automatically by intelligent hangers with RFID tags.
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HERBEERERE -
RENBERE -

@@a

FBEBCEERAORET AR
R RIBNEE -

4% BZ 22 Use of Transformer

E¥ BB R R M EAN750RFEE
% BB ERFL0REFHEEE  <HE
BRIENFREERREZABUEANENZ —F

Facilitates the use of a 400W electricity generator
to support the operation of the semi-automation
system, instead of the conventional 750Wunits,
of which the daily electricity consumption can be
reduced by almost half

ESG.19

While enhancing the production efficiency, the semi-
automation is also environmentally-friendly in terms of its

design:

3 R ENAR AT ER R B R
Non-oil-lubricating moving components

e LED#ZEA 4% LED Lighting

TRASESBRCERDHBEIBH  ARFR

i

Avoid environmental pollution through the use of
lubricating oils, which contain heavy metals and
chemicals

BB A BHILEDH EEIREA

Replace lighting with more energy-efficient LEDs

2016 ESG Report 3737 - t @ R EAMEE
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(4) BEFEH

(5)
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EFEH S RERENREREEZ - EE S RAZL
BFEH - [BRAE] RESREESENS — @ik
DMEE - BFGSHEZENARRMNERFRE - &
EEENREEAR  ENRNBFEIERACE—F
WE - AR BANEFTZEG - RMETFEMREER
2 HE2016F12A31BMEFEEREATSXR

i. RTHEECHER  EARGE BT ETHRER

RPEAMINEENER  WERTEEEEERE
KOEFEMRE RO RS BEEEMIL E
ES

HERXEHWE FIREFBEZRSK ( "DBOTB” )
R A2016F L E 4R FDBOTB » A ¢

BRI GINMAR KRB EMIERER
REBER - FRARNERMZENGLER
mRERBENBERRE

AR E TS BN AR ¢ A

ERTEREZXEYE  ERAHNNEE - #mxALH
EHE -

(4) Inventory Control

(5)

ESG.20

Inventory control is a key indicator of merchandising
efficiency and remains a core competence of Giordano.
‘ZERO STORAGE” is another core values of Giordano’s
inventory control. We will continue to cautiously adjust our
store portfolio and, once the resultant overstock depletes,
our margins and profitability further recover. As a result of
our effective inventory control, our inventories remained
healthy, with inventory turnover days on cost for the year
ended 31 December 2016 being 78 days.

i. In addition to our own consolidated inventories, Giordano

responsibly monitors inventories held at our suppliers and
the franchisees in Mainland China to ensure that we do not
build up off-balance sheet inventories that would jeopardize
our merchandising flexibility and wholesale business in
future.

On-line Delivery Based Open-to-Buy Application (“DBOTB”)

Giordano started implementing an on-line DBOTB in 2016,
which:

iii.
iv.

V.

systematically controls and adjusts purchase orders and
delivery schedules;

improves communication among buyers, subsidiaries
and headquarters on-line;

shortens the planning and buying process;

allows prompt response to dynamic market conditions; and
enhances headquarters’ visibility when performing
stock allocation and hence maximizing sales opportunities.
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GIORDANO: CARING FOR OUR CUSTOMERS

Social Aspect B6: Service and Product Liability

At Giordano, we continuously strive to provide our customers
with the most enlightening shopping experience. Giordano’s
straight-forward mission, ‘To Make People FEEL GOOD and
LOOK GREAT, has fully revealed our total commitment to
superior service and outstanding quality.

(1) “Giordano Means Service” Campaign

Giordano’s commitment to superior service stems from
the “Giordano Means Service” campaign which was first
launched in 1989, at which time every staff wore yellow
badges bearing the words “Giordano Means Service”
Since then, quality service has become one of the tenets
of Giordano.

To ensure every shop staff offers excellent customer
service, we conduct performance evaluations frequently
at the store level, as well as for frontline staff by mystery
shoppers. Our efforts to provide excellent customer
service have been recognized by a long list of service-
related awards we have received over the years, including
the “2016 Service & Courtesy Award” presented by the
Hong Kong Retail Management Association in the
following 4 categories:

Best Service Outlet — Gold Award;

Fashion & Accessories Category (Junior Frontline
Level) — Winner;

Kids’ Merchandise Category (Junior Frontline Level)
— Winner; and

Outstanding Performance Award.

[HBUATHE] EZFREARTAN—EHERE -
ER - [BY] BEHE - ABERES [ RBERE
ZR—#]  [EHTENRSE] HEX - BAINEEE
REFXER BEMARNRE  EPHEAEBTEMH

MHEENEmM

407 H 3R 2 Hr Economic Daily News (6/12/2016)

“Exceeding customers’ expectations” is a simple objective
that Giordano has upheld for many years, which we
achieve through “thinking one step ahead for customers’
needs” and “providing tailor-made services”. Our frontline
staff provide professional advice and flexible and rapid
response to customers, helping them choose the right
products in need.

ESG.21 2016 ESG Report 3755 - @ R EARE S
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(2)

Safety and Health

i. In addition to the professional customer service, a pleasant
shopping experience also requires a comfortable and safe
shopping environment. We are committed to (a) ensuring a
safe and healthy environment for our staff and customers,
and (b) eliminating preventable accidents and health
hazards in our business locations.

ii. As mentioned in earlier Environmental Aspect B5(2)ii, we
do have a Quality Manual setting forth our standards and
specification for our suppliers’ compliance reference. We
also regularly issue reminders of our policy of accepting and
offering interest to core suppliers.

iii. We demand our suppliers to comply with all applicable laws
and regulations on product safety, and regularly update
them of the hazardous substance and inhumane production
processes banned by Giordano, such as the “sandblasting”
process and the “live-plucking” goose down process.

iv. We also engage independent and accredited third party
laboratories to test our materials and products, to ensure
compliance with the international safety standards.

Social Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

(1)

(2)

(3)

WESE ESG.22

We adopt a zero-tolerance approach towards bribery
and corruption, and our Code of Conduct clearly informs
our staff of Giordano’s strict standards regarding
anti-corruption, anti-bribery, conflicts of interest, gift,
procurement and whistle-blowing policies, as well as our
policies on dealings and investment in Giordano’s shares.

To ensure that our staff comply with the requirements
imposed and uphold high ethical standards, all staff
are required to complete and submit a “Declaration of
Interests” at least once a year. If there are any cases of
conflict of interest, the relevant staff are required to update
their declaration immediately.

We also proactively promote business integrity and
ethics among our staff by organizing seminars on anti-
corruption. For example, Hong Kong Headquarters
invited representatives from the Independent Commission
Against Corruption to make a presentation on the topic of
corruption prevention and integrity management for our
new staff in January 2016.
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EFEERERTIN - RIFEFEBEEES - HESTRNE
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#1#R Hong Kong Daily News (11/9/2014)

RERMERETROMLRER - RAERERBGHLEER
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BEE - RMABKERAE - BARILHIE B THNTHE2HE
MRBEMERIBE - B EMEENHEFRERE - RAW
HERSEMBYE - FIERBRE  BHAAER N2 ELRRE -

TRARSMEY B  AINEETHRHE -
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GIORDANO: CARING FOR OUR COMMUNITY

Social Aspect B8: Community Involvement

Contributing to our community is a very important part of
Giordano’s ethos. Acting on our belief in a ‘World Without
Strangers’, Giordano actively supports various charitable
organizations and causes, especially those associated with
education, children and the underprivileged.

Giordano is engaged in a number of ongoing educational
projects. In 2014, we launched the “Do Not Read This” campaign
in conjunction with Room to Read, which raised funds for the
non-profit organization through selling limited edition T-shirts in
Giordano’s shops. Using Giordano’s donations, Room to Read
published 15,000 copies of two children’s books in two Indian
languages for underprivileged children. This focus on education
for underprivileged children is also evident in another one of
Giordano’s ongoing projects. Project Hope, a public service
project organized by the China Youth Development Foundation.
Giordano has been a long-standing supporter of the project’s
work in providing children in poverty-stricken rural areas of
Mainland China with access to primary school education by
funding the construction of a number of Giordano Hope primary
schools. As at the end of 2016, 22 Giordano primary schools
of Hope have been completed. We also donated to the Caring
for Children Foundation in support of children’s welfare in the
Mainland.

E—AMEREn T ESE - AE U8
to Read i il

One of the children books, in Hindi, published by Room to
Read with Giordano’s donation

2 X fBRoom

We place high priority in creating value for the communities
we serve, which is illustrated through our investment in a
variety of community initiatives. We strive to create a positive
impact on the communities where we conduct business,
through collaboration, capacity-building initiatives, staff
volunteerism and strategic giving. Our public engagement
and donations help us uphold a commitment to serving the
communities by way of cash and in-kind donations, as well
as staff participation.

2016 ESG Report I35 - g RERREE
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[BBEESHERRE]

[Sponsorship on the 1st Charity Golf Tournament] (27/4/2016)

HME [HEE8g] 4F RUMEENEESBEIRERHREED -
We have partnered with The Society of Rehabilitation and Crime Prevention of Hong Kong to provide
apparel sponsorship for their first charity golf tournament.

[—EEREER]
[Yan Chai Hospital Flag Selling Day] (14/5/2016)

ERAREIUBTBRTNE TNMRR2EEEEE -
A total of 31 Hong Kong Headquarters staff and their relatives
volunteered for flag-selling.

[Z8) [HBEITE] STEX]
[ “ Walk For Love " Charity Walk Sponsorship] (24/9/2016)

HfAEm [ DERERESS] M [BLEASESS | HEEHOFT
SFURMAREER) - 1B 73001 “ILOVE SH™ TIM4E2EMEF -
Partnering with the Shanghai Soong Ching Ling Foundation and
Lingshan Charity Foundation, we donated 300 pieces of the “I LOVE
SH’ tees for the participants of the Charity Walk.

2016 ESG Report I3% - @ MEAHREE

[#MmE] [Blood Donation Day] (10/8/2016)

BARHBO0METHEES - REBSI1LE TRINIBM - =B - FH18
MmAE -

A total of 60 staff of Hong Kong Headquarters attended the event. In
total, 51 staff successfully donated blood, breaking the record set the
previous year.

[TBAEEREERAL] FTHI]
[Volunteer Day of Caring for Mentally-Disabled People] (27/9/2016)

M IDEHERESE ] AF 1MIAEMENE TNEEERAL
—REBUERIZER N2 B & & R R EDIY IR

Partnering with the Syin-Lu Social Welfare Foundation, 11 staff from our
Taiwan market made pineapple cakes and visited the Castle of Golden
Pineapple with mentally-disabled people.

ESG.24
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[ERFHREEABRE]
[Mid-Autumn Mooncake Charity Sale] (15/8/2016)

EBREINETIR [EMESESE] BE 7352 © LEBK7,0547T
HRERS EpESeEPEARILEEE/ NEHTIE -

Staff from our Hong Kong Headquarters purchased a total of 35 boxes

of mooncakes with the value of HK$7,054 from Sin Kai Fund Ltd. to

fund the construction of primary schools in poverty-stricken rural areas

in Mainland China.

[ZEdm (AT ZREES]
[Sponsorship on Pei Ho (Ming Gor) Charity Fund] (25/11/2016)

BANETEIERE LU EAPRBRENE RAEEES R BHERRE

AL - BB T AL (BRE) ZEES —$£5,0009RERE

Our Chairman, Dr. Peter Lau sponsored Pei Ho (Ming Gor) Charity Fund
with 5,000 meal vouchers for the homeless, in the name of Giordano
World Without Strangers Chairtable Fund, showing our care for the
grassroots.

ESG.25

[RRB [BIERE] ELR]
[Po Leung Kuk Volunteer Day of Caring for the Elderty] (12/11/2016)

BEEMNETERETER - AKX - W EIRE MEWGHA -

During the Caring for the Elderly event, volunteers from our Hong Kong
Headquarters played games and chatted with the elderly, as well as
offering gifts to them.

[RRY MBEREANER - VERKRBLERES]
[Setting up “World Without Strangers Scholarships”
Minority Students] (12/2016)

1E20164F12A - %zﬁﬁa‘)zﬁ%u%Tﬁiwtma/xﬁﬁﬁia‘)ﬁﬁ%%
THEEMN [HERES | RUERLEE+EINRSES  UWEBNL
PEGBEEETRESRRHAE -

In December 2016, our Chairman, Dr. Peter Lau contributed a total
of HK$100,000 to Hong Kong Unison, in the name of Giordano World
Without Strangers Chairtable Fund, for the scholarships to 9 ethnic
minority students studying in tertiary educational institutes in Hong
Kong.

for Ethnic
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Disclosures & KPIs_ Description 2016 ESG Report

‘Environmantal Aspeet A1: Emissions

H RS R UM A RAGHEIL - mK R B EHE S - AE R EEREYNE | A1

General Disclosure AR

(a) B R

(b) B TEEEIT A E R B ER S BHTE R

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

R SRR A1 BERUYRE S S AH B PR 8% [&1 Graphic 1

KPI A1A1 Types of emissions and respective emissions data.

e S 4 tE A A1.2 S RS SR BRI R (U ) T i 1 Graphic 1

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emission in total and, where appropriate, intensity. A2(1)

R SEGIRUR AR A1.3 EAEAEREYEERER)EE NN

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste were produced and, where appropriate, Note 2 of Graphic1
intensity.

WA SRR A1 4 P A S S B Y AR B R 1 Graphic 1

KPI A14 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity. B raphic

R SEG S A1.5 R HE R AT B TR AR A2

KPI A15 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. &1 Graphic 1

R SRS A1.6 R E SR E BRI 7 ~ AR A B S PR e R A2(4)

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, | [&1 Graphic 1

reduction initiatives and results achieved.

MBS A2 : WHEN Environmental Aspect A2: Use of Resources

et 28 AL &S (FLRRREE - 7K R Bt PR A EUR A2
General Disclosure Policies on efficient use of resources including energy, water and other
raw materials.

BRSRAAUG R A2 | ARG ) ) B R K P R AL R FE R R 1 Graphic 1

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity.

R SR LI ER A2.2 SEHKERERE ' _ [E1 Graphic 1

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity.

RS 4R WE R A2.3 T URE R S T 81 S T RcR A2

KPI A23 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved. [ 1 Graphic 1

il S AR U R A2.4 FRACRBUE R b el AEERRE » USRI KRG 8 R AngaciR | B FiEE3

KPl A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water, water Note 3 of Graphic1
efficiency initiatives and results achieved

R S LTI R A2.5 BRI T B R AR B R (A ] R A B & &1 Graphic 1

KPI A25 Total packaging material used for fmlshed products, and if applicable,
with reference to per unit produced. _ _

Sl Environmental Aspect AJ: The Environmaent and Matural Resounces
R R RS TT NSRS N RN E RS A E K BT ECR A3

General Disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

e S 4 A £ A3 RIUCE B BRI IR R S RINE R E A B R R UE B A R 21T | A3
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment
and natural resources and actions taken to manage them.

&Ml B1: W Soclal Aspect B1: Employment

PR HREETN N fF R ~ 1A R BT - PRS- B - “FEs - 2ok - | B
General Disclosure 2 15 45 DA R HAL 1 o8 R 1@ A
(@) BUE R
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(b)  HFEIEETT A E A BN R AE B &R

Information on:

(a) the policies, and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,

working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,

anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

R S SR I B1.1

FEVEI ~ (el - AT Rt & 73 Y fig B4R EL

KPlI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and lGﬁlrazr;&h% &3
geographical region.
foe i 4 R R B1.2 MR R R R E o B 8RR EER
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.
LW B2 : MM S  Social Aspect B2: Health and Safety
N AR (2 TARERE J Orl (e Bl T R M B ¢ B2
General Disclosure (a) R © e
(b) BFHE T A EH IS EAHRE S BB &t
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting employees from occupational
_hazards.
RS B2.1 PR L AERE AT PE R A B L
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities.
e i 4R U E AT B2.2 NTHBEA TIEHE
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
fofl i B WU EAE B2.3 AT RN E R B 2 1B T » DARAHRE AT S8R Ik B2
KPI B2.3 Description of occupation health and safety measures adopted, how
they are implemented and monitored.
LA B3 : MEENN Soclkl Aspect B3: Development and Training
R R ARARTHE BB TT LT B AY RGN BRERTECR - sl EF) B3
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training activities.
fo] 2 48 A £E B3 F | R e SR E 9 523l 2 or Lt
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category.
[6] 7 48 FH A B3.2 PR s R SRR E Ty~ R B 5 B2 I8 IR R
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category.
AN 4 BTN Social Aspect B4: Labour Standards. - - —
FReH 25 AR s HIsy THY B4
General Disclosure (a) BER T M
(b) BESFHE1T A E AR BTN R Z
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and
forced labour.
RS 4 I B4 IR S FA B 1 (018 e DAk o 8 T R 5 55 T B1(3), B4
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child
and forced labour.
o3 48 S A B4.2 A E S FE RS R PR L R as i 55 LI BR AU 2L B
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate child and forced labour practices
when discovered. B
Social Aspect BS: Supply Chain Management
e EE o B A AR Y BRI Rt o R B B B5
General Disclosure Policies on managing environment and social risks of the supply chain.
RS S R B5A Fsth s E oy Y R B 5 Graphic 5
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KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.
foe] $HE 43 TR BS.2 A RIS It FE RS RV IE D - [ H BT ARE IR e B - LAE | BS
KPI B5.2 RATE BRI TR ZE A
Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.
i 6 : MEME Sccial Aspect BE: Preduct Responsibility
e ER RPN R B AR B 4~ B - SRR LB B LU HiR | B6
General Disclosure FIEHT -
(@) B © J
(b) B FBIET AT A BRI A S SR BT &k
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of redress.
e $E 48 dH AE B6.1 2 5 L 2 0 A PR 2 e B B B e 111 2R ey E o B
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons.
fof i SR R AT B6.2 FEFERHT 22 ot e IR P O P B H LA R 904
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how
they are dealt with.
BRI LTRUEAE BB.3 B A0 5 s O R A R A TR A 1 1)
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.
o i 45 WU AT B6.4 U8 S b B IR R R URR P
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
RS 4 BB.S & AR R ALRRER - DL ST A B 22 )04
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they
| are implemented and monitored.
BT : Social Aspect BT: Anti-corruption
fie K 25 AP EHARS ~ R~ RO R B7
General Disclosure (a) B &
(b) BFHE T AAEH IS AR AR S BLIH & it
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.
RS RUEE BT 1 TR P 8 1 7 A SRR SR L R4S B9 a R = R8I H AT
KPI B7.1 INGER
Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
oI5 48 S AR BT .2 T HOAS S B AR e o DUSHRE T e B A B1(3)
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures,
how they are implemented and monitored.
| L@ M B8 - (L@ AR Social Aspect BE: Community Investment
e K 25 AR LI S BUR T g ST {+ L FR R b R R R B e S gtk | B8
General Disclosure Rl 5 s
Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
takes into consideration communities’ interests.
RS ST B8 BT Rk EE B8

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution.
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KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus areas.
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